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ESKOM HOLDINGS SOC LTD.

INVITATION TO TENDER

FOR

Repair of Vandalized miniature substation and ground mounted kiosk in Gauteng Cluster as an when required
	Tender number
	MWP1890DX

	Issue date
	10 March 2023

	Closing date and time
	06 April 2023 at 10h00 SAST (GMT+2)

	Tender validity period
	120 days from the closing date and time

	Non-compulsory Clarification Meeting
	Date:  22 March 2023 
Time 10:00am – 12:00pm,

Suppliers can attended non-compulsory meeting if require clarity for this tender: 

Details about meeting will be posted to document named: Microsoft Teams Clarification meeting -  

Microsoft Teams meeting 
Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 
Meeting ID: 325 419 977 220 
Passcode: ui4Ytw 
Download Teams | Join on the web

Please re-visit the websites regularly to confirm if there are any changes made in the Enquiry Documents.

	Tenders are to be delivered to the following address on the stipulated closing date and time: 
	The Tender Office
Megawatt Park Tender Office - Northside
No. 01 Maxwell Drive
Sunninghill
Gauteng




Request for Proposal

Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd (hereinafter “Eskom”) invites you to submit a tender for the Repair of Vandalized miniature substation and ground mounted kiosk in Gauteng Cluster as an when required for a period of three (3) years in Gauteng Cluster

The enquiry documents are supplied to you on the following basis:

· Free of charge

Eskom has delegated the responsibility for this tender to the Eskom Representative whose name and contact details are set out in the Tender Data.  A submission of a tender by you in response to this Invitation will be deemed as your acceptance of the Eskom Standard Conditions of Tender (to be accessed via www.eskom.co.za).

Queries relating to these Invitation documents may be addressed to the Eskom Representative.


Yours faithfully



____________________________________________
Vusani Phalanndwa
Middle Manager: Procurement
Distribution Gauteng Cluster

Date: ________________________________________










1.1 The following documents listed hereunder are attached to this enquiry:
	Number
	Description
	Annexures attached
	Attached 
(Y/ N/ N/A)

	1.1.1
	*Acknowledgement Form 
	Annexure A
	Y (Page 18)

	1.1.2
	*Tenderer’s Particulars 
	Annexure B
	Y (Page 20)

	1.1.3
	*Integrity Declaration Form 
(refer to www.eskom.co.za for the Supplier Integrity Pact that suppliers are required to download and read) 
	Annexure C
	Y (Page 24)

	1.1.4
	*CPA Requirements for Local Goods/Services (if applicable)
	Annexure D
	Y (Page 29)

	1.1.5
	*CPA(IG) for Foreign Goods/Services (if applicable)
	Annexure E
	Y (Page 33)

	1.1.6
	SBD 6.2 – Declaration Certificate for Local Production and Local Content (only applicable if designated materials are included)

Annexure C – Local Content Declaration – Summary Schedule

Annexure D – Imported Content Declaration – Supporting Schedule to Annexure C

Annexure E – Local Content Declaration – Supporting Schedule to Annexure C
	Annexure F1



Annexure F2


Annexure F3


Annexure F4
	Y (Page 37)



Y (Separately)


Y (Separately)


Y (Separately)

	1.1.7
	*SBD 1 – Invitation to Bid must be filled out by all tenderers and submitted with the tender at tender submission deadline
	Annexure G
	Y (Page 41)

	1.1.8
	*SBD 6.1 – Preference Points Claim Form in terms of PPPFA 2022 Regulations 
	Annexure H
	Y (Page 44)

	1.1.9
	*SBD 4 – Bidder’s Disclosure
	Annexure I
	Y (Page 49)

	1.1.10
	Technical / Functionality Requirements
	Annexure J
	Y (Separately)

	1.1.11
	Supplier Development, Localisation & Industrialisation (SDL&I) Undertaking
	Annexure K
	Y (Separately)

	1.1.12
	Safety Requirements
	Annexure L
	Y (Separately)

	1.1.13
	Quality Requirements
	Annexure M
	Y (Separately)

	1.1.14
	Environmental Requirements
	Annexure N
	Y (Separately)

	[bookmark: _Hlk126754662]1.1.15
	Requirements for Financial Statements Analysis
	Annexure O
	Y (Separately)

	1.1.16
	NEC3 Term Service Contract (TSC)
	Annexure P
	Y (Separately)








1.2	The Tender Data makes several references to the Eskom Standard Conditions of Tender and in those instances, the clause numbers are referenced hereunder. If the Eskom Standard Conditions of Tender is not attached to the Request for Proposal; then the tenderers are required to download this from www.eskom.co.za. The “Tender Data” as detailed herein shall take precedence over the Standard Conditions of Tender in the event of any ambiguity or inconsistency between the two (2) documents.

	Clause Number from Standard Conditions of Tender
	Tender Data

	1.1 Parties
	The Employer is Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd.

The Eskom Representative is:
Name: Angie Kundhlande
E-mail: Letsoaam@eskom.co.za

	1.3 Enquiry documents
	Invitation to tender number is MWP1890DX.

See the content list above for the enquiry documents.

	1.4 Type of Invitation to Tender
	This invitation to tender is an open Invitation to tender.

	1.6 Eskom's rights to accept or reject any tender 
	The tender shall be for the whole of the contract.

	2.1 Eligible tenders 
	Submit a tender only if the tenderer (whether a single company or a structure similar to a Joint Venture) complies with the eligibility criteria stated in the Tender Data and the tenderer, or any of his principals, is not under any restriction to do business with Eskom/State-Owned Companies.

Tenderers are deemed ineligible to submit a tender if:
 
1. Tenderers have the nationality of a country on any international sanctions list.  A tenderer shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the tenderer is a national or is constituted, incorporated, or registered and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country.  This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the Contract including related services.
1. Tenderers submit more than one (1) proposal either individually or as a partner in a joint venture (JV) or consortium.
1. Proposals submitted by a JV or consortium where the JV/consortium agreement does not explicitly state that the parties of the JV or consortium shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms.
1. A Tenderer must not have a conflict of interest.  All Tenderers found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified.  A Tenderer may be considered to have a conflict of interest with one or more parties in this tender process, if: 
· they have a controlling partner/majority shareholder in common; or
· they have a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on the proposal of another Tenderer, or influence the decisions of the Employer regarding this bidding process; 
1. Tenders signed by non-authorized persons
1. Where the tenderers are not registered on National Treasury’s Central Supplier Database (except Foreign Suppliers)
1. Any tenderer that is restricted by National Treasury 
1. Any tenderer on the Tender Defaulters list.
1. A tenderer that sub-contracts 100% Scope of Work.

Ineligible tenderers will be disqualified.

	2.2 - 2.5 Tender Closing 


	The deadline for tender submission is:
Date:  06 April 2023
Time: 10h00 SAST (GMT+2)
Late Tenders will not be accepted.

Tenders are to be submitted to the Eskom tender box at the following physical address:

THE TENDER OFFICE
Megawatt Park Tender Office - Northside
No. 01 Maxwell Drive
Sunninghill
Gauteng

	2.9 Copy of original tender

	The tenderer must submit the tender as a complete original tender, plus one (1) exact hard copy of the original tender at tender submission deadline. Eskom also prefers that one (1) additional complete soft copy (in USB) of the original tender be submitted. 
Tenderers are encouraged to submit the file in the following format : 
· Commercial file separately i.e. Tender Returnables, NEC, BOQ, Financial statements, Statutory documents, SDL&I 
· Safety File separately
· Technical file separately 
· Quality file separately 
· Environmental file separately 

Where a Tenderer does not submit one (1) exact hard copy of the original tender at tender submission deadline, the tenderer will be disqualified. The tenderer will not be permitted to provide the required copies after the deadline for tender submission have passed and the soft copy will not be replacing the hard copy.

Note: Tender evaluations will be based on the copy submitted. Therefore, it is the Tenderer’s responsibility to ensure that the copy is exactly identical to the original and Eskom will not accept any liability if it conducts evaluations on an incomplete copy submitted by the Tenderer.

	2.13 Tender Validity Period
	The tender validity period is 16 weeks (120 days). 

	2.16 Site Clarification Meeting
	A non-compulsory clarification meeting with representatives of the Employer will take place as follows:

Date:  22 March 2023 
Time 10:00am – 12:00pm,

Suppliers can attended non-compulsory meeting if require clarity for this tender: 

Details about meeting will be posted to document named: Microsoft Teams Clarification meeting -  

Microsoft Teams meeting 
Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 
Meeting ID: 325 419 977 220 
Passcode: ui4Ytw 
Download Teams | Join on the web
Tenderers must confirm their intention to attend with the Eskom Representative stating the name, position and contact details of each proposed attendee.  

	2.17 Clarification on enquiry documents

	The tenderer will notify the Employer of any clarifications required, before the closing time for clarification queries is 01 April 2023 at 10h00 SAST (GMT+2), which is five (5) working days before the deadline for tender submission.

	2.23 Alternative tenders (proposals)

	Alternative tenders are not allowed 


	2.31 Provision of security for performance
	Due diligence will be done through a review of financial viability, and should the tenderer be found financially not viable, security for performance will required as risk mitigating factors. The names of two (2) financial institutions that the tenderer will approach must be submitted during the review of financial viability.
The following bonds will be required for this enquiry as part of the risk mitigating:
1. Parent Company Guarantee (PCG) by the holding company; or 
2. Performance Bond from their bank - Please note that the PCG and the Performance Bond should be on an Eskom Legal approved template.
3. If it happens that the entity does not have a holding company and/or the bank cannot provide the Performance Bond, the owners of the entity should provide their tax returns for the past five (5) years plus personal financial position.

If the risks cannot be mitigated to ensure performance against the contract, the contract may be awarded to another supplier, which may not be the highest ranked supplier if offering market-related prices.

	3.4 Opening of tenders
	Tenders will be opened at the same date and time as the tender deadline.

	3.5 Prices to be read out
	Prices will not be read out.

	3.9 Basic Compliance
	Basic compliance for this tender are:

1. Meet the eligibility criteria for a tenderer
1. Submit one (1) hard copy of the original tender to Eskom
1. Submit a complete original tender with commercial, financial and technical information 
1. Submission of the mandatory commercial tender returnables as at stipulated deadlines.
1. Central Supplier Database (CSD) number (MAA……….…)

	3.10 Mandatory tender returnables

	A tenderer that does not submit mandatory documents/information required in mandatory documents by the required deadlines as stipulated in the Tender Returnable Section of the respective 
Invitation to Tender; will be deemed non-responsive. 

	3.13 Functionality requirements 
	Functionality requirements are applicable.

The following criteria will be applicable for this transaction under functionality criteria:

A weighted score-card approach will be used to evaluate technical compliance of tenders against the following criteria:

	Functionality Criteria
	Weighting
	Minimum Qualifying Score

	Technical
	100%
	80%



Failure by the tenderer to meet a maximum qualifying score of 80% for Functionality will be ineligible for further evaluations.




Refer to Annexure J for a detailed Technical evaluation criteria breakdown. 

The aim is to appoint the top 6 highest rank in terms of the PPPFA regulation. Should we not obtain 6 contractors, Eskom reserve the right to top up the number of contractors to achieve the 6 desired number. Alternatively, Eskom will re-assess the achieved number at the time and decide whether to top up or not to top up. 
Should more than six (6) contractors be tied in scoring the following will be applied to achieve the required six (6) contractors:

· If two or more tenderers score an equal total number of points, the contract must be awarded to the tenderer that scored the highest points for B-BBEE.
· If functionality is part of the evaluation process and two (2) or more tenderers score equal total points and equal preference points for Price and B-BBEE, the contract must be awarded to the tenderer that scored the highest points for functionality.
· If two (2) or more tenderers score equal total points in all respects, the award must be decided by the drawing of lots.  


	3.15 Evaluation of price
	Prices will be evaluated as follows: 

1. Inclusive of VAT 
2. Making the specified correction for arithmetical errors 
3. Excluding contingencies in any bill of quantities or activity schedule. 
4. Making an appropriate adjustment for any other acceptable variations, deviations, or alternative tenders submitted. 
5. Making a comparison of the Net Present Value of each adjusted tender based on the tendered programme (if provided) and prices, on the estimated effect of Price Adjustment Factors and rate of exchange fluctuations (if applicable) and on other evaluation parameters relating to uncertainty and risk, where applicable. 
6. Unconditional discounts must be taken into account for evaluation purposes. 
7. Conditional discounts must not be taken into account for evaluation purposes but should be implemented when payment is effected. 


	3.17 Evaluation of Specific Goals
	Allocation of preference points (20)

Preference points must be awarded to a bidder for attaining the B-BBEE status level of contribution in accordance with the table below:


The following specific goals score card applies: 

	B-BBEE Status Level of Contributor
	Number of points
allocated
(80/20 system)

	1
	20

	2
	18

	3
	               14

	4
	12

	5
	8

	6
	6

	7
	4

	8
	2

	Non-compliant contributor
	0



To claim preference points, a tenderer must submit the proof of         B-BBEE status level of contributor (e.g. a valid B-BBEE certificate issued by a SANAS accredited verification agency / sworn affidavit / CIPC affidavit)

Failure on the part of a supplier to submit “proof of B-BBEE status level of contributor” for purposes of evaluation and scoring by the tender closing will not result in disqualification (if tenderer is otherwise deemed to be responsive/acceptable in all other aspects). The tenderer will, however, be scored zero on B-BBEE for purposes of PPPFA scoring and ranking.

A tenderer may not be awarded points for specific goals if the tender documents indicate that the tenderer intends to subcontract more than 25% of the value of the contract to any other person not qualifying for at least the points that the tenderer qualifies for, unless the intended subcontractor is an EME that can execute the subcontract.

Note:

Failure on the part of the supplier to submit supporting documents/proof of specific goals for purposes of evaluation and scoring by RFQ closing will not result in disqualification (if tenderer is otherwise deemed to be responsive/acceptable in all other aspects). The tenderer will, however, be scored zero for Specific goals for purposes of PPPFA scoring and ranking.


	3.18 Ranking of tenders
	Suppliers will be ranked by applying the preferential point scoring based on the relevant system as stipulated hereunder:

· 80/20 for tender with rand value above R50 million
                                   
Eskom will then add the score from Pricing and Specific goals together and rank the suppliers from the highest to the lowest.

	[bookmark: _Hlk127284543]3.19 Objective Criteria


	Objective criteria are applicable.

Inclusion of objective criteria is not mandatory but a condition for contract award. If the tenderer does not meet objective criteria, it may lead to the second-ranked tenderer being recommended for award. 

The following objective criteria will apply:	
Designated materials

· Designated material and thresholds are applicable.

The following materials are identified as designated materials and the threshold thereof that the tenderers must meet in order to be evaluated further are tabulated as follow:

	Commodity
	Local Content Threshold

	Fabricated Steel / steel work
	100%

	Joining/ Connecting components
	100%

	Concrete works
	100%

	Kiosk
	100%

	Breakers
	100%

	Clamps/ joints
	100%

	PPE Textile/ Leather/ Clothing 
	100%

	Plastic pipes / Fitting
	100%



NOTE 2: SBD 6.2 Declaration Form is therefore mandatory for contract award and must be a tender returnable.

Tenderers need to complete and submit Annexure F1 on Page 37 and Annexure F2-F4 attached separately, hereto as evidence of compliance with this requirement.

The dtic has appointed SABS as the official verification agency for local content in terms of designated products.

A tender that fails to meet the minimum stipulated threshold for local production and content will not be justified for award.

In relation to designated sector, a supplier will not be allowed to subcontract in such a manner that the local production and content of the overall value of the contract is reduced to below the stipulated minimum threshold.

B-BBEE certificate

· Valid B-BBEE certificate issued by an authorized body or person; a sworn affidavit as prescribed by the B-BBEE Codes of Good Practice; any other requirement prescribed in terms of the Broad-Based Black Economic

Tenders are encouraged to propose subcontracting of activities which could be outsource to other enterprises in its supply chain during the execution of the contract scope of work. 
	Subcontracted Designated Group
	Tenderer Proposal

	Black Owned 
	

	Black Women Owned
	

	Black Youth Owned
	

	Black Persons with Disability
	



Enterprise development

Main contractor will be required to propose development in the following areas;

	Support Description
	Tenderer Proposal

	1%  x cumulative per annum 
The successful tenderer is required to identify and incubate an SME from the designated groups in the Gauteng Operating Unit area. 
Assistance could be in the form of business support, equipment and/or finance. 
The successful tenderer will also be required to draft an Enterprise Development programme and agreement within eight weeks of contract award. The ED agreement must be entered into with the beneficiary and sent to Eskom for review and acceptance. The accepted ED programme will be monitored throughout the duration of the contract. 
This requirement with be negotiated with the successful tenderer.
	



Job creation

The contractor should create jobs for the for unemployed local communities. 

 Jobs. Tenderers are required to submit proposals for the type and number of jobs that will be created and retained in South Africa as a direct result of being awarded a contract.
	Type of Jobs to be created
	Number of Jobs to be created

	
	



	Type of Jobs to be retained
	Number of Jobs to be retained

	
	



Note : 

Eskom prefers to contract with but is not limited to compliant BBEEE level 1-4 contractors.  Any tenderer who does not comply with this criterion should provide a migration plan that will form part of the contractual obligation. The terms and conditions will be negotiated ad agreed prior to contract award. The migration plan will be accepted based on partial fulfillment or as a whole depending on the time period allocated for the transaction/s.

Where there is a partial acceptance of a migration plan, should the same tenderer be awarded further contracts with Eskom the agreed migration plan must be shared with Eskom officials responsible for the tender for continued compliance monitoring.

Please note:
1. Eskom reserves the right to award to a tenderer who may not be the highest scoring/highest ranked tenderer, in line with Section (2) (1) (f) of the PPPFA.
1. Functionality and elements of Contractual requirements must not be used as Objective Criteria

	3.20 Reverse e-auction (if applicable)
	Reverse e-auction is not applicable.

Please note:-
The Tenderers will be required to submit a complete tender with prices. 

	Contractual Requirements
	Contractual Requirements may include the following:

The following will form part of the contractual requirements:
· SDL&I Requirements: Refer to Annexure B of this report (SBD6.2)
· Quality Requirements: Refer to Annexure C of this report.
· Safety Requirements: Refer to Annexure D of this report
· Environmental Requirements: Refer to Annexure E of this report
· Financial Requirements: Refer to Annexure F of this report

Please Note:
Contractual requirements are not evaluation criteria. They are required to be met and assessed after the evaluation and ranking of the tenders. Proof that the highest ranked tenderer/tenderer recommended for award (on the basis of objective criteria) is able to meet the contractual requirements, must be submitted prior to contract award.

Failure to meet “Contractual Requirements “by the stipulated deadlines; may result in the tenderer being regarded as non-responsive and ineligible for contract award. 

	2.25 Contractual Condition
	The conditions of contract will be the NEC3 Term Service Contract (TSC), attached separately as Annexure O.

	CIDB Requirements (where applicable for Engineering and Construction Works Contracts) 
	CIDB not applicable






Please note:

Tenderers are requested to bear in mind Eskom's standard payment terms as stipulated hereunder when submitting tenders and concluding contracts with Eskom: 

· For contracts valued below R50 000 000 (Fifty Million Rand) including VAT, Eskom is committed to paying Suppliers within 30 days of receipt of undisputed invoices. 
· For contracts valued above R50 000 000 (Fifty Million Rand) including VAT, Eskom is committed to paying suppliers within 60 days of receipt of undisputed invoices.

Eskom reserves the right to negotiate with preferred bidders after a competitive bidding process or price quotations; should the tendered prices not be deemed market-related. 

Main contractors/suppliers are discouraged from subcontracting with their subsidiary companies as this may be interpreted as subcontracting with themselves and / or using their subsidiaries for fronting. Where a main contractor subcontracts with a subsidiary this must be declared in tender documents. 

A report containing a list of potential sub-contractors may be drawn by accessing the following link: www.csd.gov.za 
“proof of B-BBEE status level of contributor” means-
(a) the B-BBEE status level certificate issued by an authorised body or person; or
(b) a sworn affidavit as prescribed by the B-BBEE Codes of Good Practice; or 
(c) any other requirement prescribed in terms of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act;

1.3 TENDER RETURNABLES 

The tenderer must submit the returnable set out hereunder as part of its tender at the stipulated deadline.

NOTE: 
[bookmark: _Hlk126313108] * Returnable required at Tender closing (disqualifiable) – These returnable are required to be fully completed, signed (if signature is required on the returnable) and submitted with the tender at Tender closing date and time. If not fully completed, signed (if signature is required on the returnable) and/or submitted by tender closing the tender must be disqualified.

 ** Returnable required at Tender closing (non-disqualifiable) – These returnable are also required to be fully completed, signed (if signature is required on the returnable) and submitted with Tender at Tender closing date and time, however, if not submitted by Tender closing, the Procurement Practitioners must request in writing the outstanding returnable to be submitted within five (5) working days. If the requested returnable are not fully completed, signed (if signature is required on the returnable) and/or received by the Procurement Practitioner within five (5) working days of the request; the tender must be disqualified. The five (5) working days requirement does not apply to CIDB proof of grading. (Refer to the returnable table under CIDB reference for prescribed period)

# These returnable are mandatory for evaluation and therefore required at tender closing time and date. These will not be requested by the Procurement Practitioner; however, the tenderer will not be disqualified but score zero.

	


Reference
	


Returnable From Suppliers
	[bookmark: _Hlk126310660][bookmark: _Hlk126310588]Returnable required at Tender closing (disqualifiable)*
	[bookmark: _Hlk126310845][bookmark: _Hlk126310602]Returnable required at Tender closing. (Non-disqualifiable) **
	Returnable required prior to Contract Award.

	Basic Compliance
	One (1) hard copy of the tender and exact copy of the original
	
	
	

	Annexure A
	Acknowledgement Form 
	
	
	

	Annexure B
	Tenderers Particulars
	
	
	

	Annexure C
	Integrity Pact Declaration Form
	
	
	

	Annexure D
	CPA for Local Goods/Services (if applicable)
	
	
	

	Annexure E
	CPA(IG) for Imported Goods/Services (if applicable) 
	
	
	

	Annexure F1-F4
	SBD 6.2 – Declaration Certificate for Local Production and Content and Annexures C, D, E (applicable for designated materials)
	
	
	

	Annexure G (applicable for all suppliers including Foreign suppliers)
	SBD 1 – to be completed and submitted by all tenderers. 
	
	
	

	# Annexure H

	SBD 6.1 – Preference Points Claim Form in terms of PPPFA 2022 Regulations 
	
	
	

	Annexure I 
	SBD 4 – Bidder’s Disclosure 
	
	
	

	Additional Documents required in event of JV:
	Letter of intent to form a JV/consortium or Valid Joint Venture Agreement confirming the rights and obligations of each of the joint venture partners and their profit-sharing ratios.
	
	
	

	
	Separate written confirmation that the joint venture will operate as a single business entity (incorporated) for the duration of the contract, or this may be included as an obligation within the JV agreement.
	
	
	

	
	# Proof of compliance to the stipulated Specific Goals - proof of B-BBEE status level of contributor
	
	
	

	
	Details and confirmation of a single designated bank account in the name of the JV and independent of the individual JV partners, as set out in the joint venture agreement.
	
	
	

	# Specific Goals - proof of B-BBEE status level of contributor
	Failure on the part of the supplier to submit “proof of specific goals” for purposes of evaluation and scoring by the tender closing will not result in disqualification (if tenderer is otherwise deemed to be responsive / acceptable in all other aspects). The tenderer will, however, be scored zero for Specific Goals for purposes of PPPFA scoring and ranking.
	
	
	

	Tax Clearance Certificates  
	A certified copy of a tax clearance certificate is still required by Foreign suppliers (with a footprint in South Africa- but who are not on CSD and have not provided a SARS pin number) and Local suppliers (who have not provided their SARS e-filing PIN number for verification by Eskom and/or their CSD profile / CSD number).

Foreign suppliers with no footprint in South Africa, must still complete the SBD-1 document, however no proof of tax compliance is required.
	
	
	

	Compliance with Employment Equity Act
	To the extent that the tenderer falls within the definition of a “Designated Employer” as contemplated in the Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998, the tenderer is required to furnish the Employer with proof of compliance with the Employment Equity Act, including proof of submission of the Employment Equity report to the Department of Labour (South African tenderers only)
	
	
	

	CIDB

	Not applicable
	
	
	

	NEC3 Term Service Contract (TSC) Documentation
	· Completed contract data with pricing.

Refer to Annexure P attached separately.
	
	
	

	Subcontracting
	· Proof of Signed Sub-contracting Intent Agreement / Signed Sub-contracting Agreement between the main contractor and sub-contractor/s
· CSD Report of Sub-contractor/s
· Subcontractor/s’ B-BBEE Certificate / Sworn Affidavit 
	
	
	

	DOCUMENTS REQUIRED UNDER CONTRACTUAL REQUIREMENTS (WHERE CONTRACTUAL REQUIREMENTS ARE STIPULATED)

	Annexure K
	Supplier Development, Industrialisation & Localisation (SDL&I) Undertaking
	
	
	

	Safety
	Safety documents as required per scope of works including COIDA – Original certificate of good standing or proof of application issued by the Compensation Fund (COID) or a licensed compensation insurer (South African tenderers only). Refer to Annexure L attached separately.
	
	
	

	Quality
	Documents that may be required per scope of work. Refer to Annexure M attached separately.
	
	
	

	Environmental
	Documents that may be required per scope of work. Refer to Annexure N attached separately.
	
	
	

	Due Diligence
	Audited Financial Statements of the tenderer for the previous 18 months, or to the extent that such statements are not available, for the last year. Tenderers must note that in the case of a joint venture or special purpose vehicle (SPV) especially formed for this tender, audited financial statements for each participant in the JV / SPV is required. Start-up enterprises formed within the last 12 months are not required to send in statements, but if successful with their tender will be required to send statements for the first year when once available. Refer to Annexure O attached separately.
	
	
	

	DOCUMENTS REQUIRED UNDER FUNCTIONALITY / TECHNICAL CRITERIA

	Technical (required for functionality scoring)
	Refer to Annexure A attached separately.
	
	
	










	ANNEXURE A

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 

We are in receipt of the Proposal from Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd. and the following addenda issued by Eskom:
	1. 
	

	1. 
	

	1. 
	



We confirm that the documentation received by us is: (Indicate by ticking the box)

Correct as stated in the Invitation to Tender Content List, and that each document is complete. 
                                                     
Or:	Incorrect or incomplete for the following reasons: 

	[bookmark: _Hlk102494413]

	



Cataloguing Acknowledgement:

1. We agree to provide the cataloguing information as described in the tender submission.    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
1. We do not intend to provide the cataloguing information for the required scope / specifications for the reasons stated hereunder:        
                                             
	

	



1. I confirm that I am a Distributor/Importer/Agent and my Principal, being the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) is or is not in the position to supply cataloguing information for items. See attached letter from OEM confirming his position.        





Request for Proposal No: ____________________ 

Name of company/JV: _______________________________________

Country of registration: _______________________________________

Name of contact person: _______________________________________

Contact details of contact person:

	Tel (landline):
	

	Cell phone:
	

	e-mail address:
	






















ANNEXURE B
TENDERER’S PARTICULARS
The tenderer must furnish the following particulars where applicable:
	Indicate the type of tendering structure by marking with an ‘X’ (where applicable provide registration number):

	Individual tenderer
	

	Unincorporated Joint venture (registration number for each member of the JV)
	

	Incorporated JV 
	

	Other
	


Please complete the following:
	Name of lead partner/member in case of JV
	

	CIPC Registration Number or CIPC disclosure certificate (for each individual company / JV member)
	

	VAT registration number (for each individual company / JV member)
	

	CIDB registration number (for each individual company/JV member if applicable), respective contractor grading designation for each individual company/JV member, and combined cidb contractor grading designation (for JVs)
	

	Contact person
	

	Telephone number
	

	E-mail address
	

	Postal address (also of each member in the case of a JV)


	


	Physical address (also of each member of the JV)


	




If subcontractors are to be used, indicate the following for the main sub-contractor(s). Add to the list of applicable.
	Name of contractor
	

	CIPC Registration number or CIPC disclosure certificate
	

	VAT registration number
	

	CIDB Registration number (if applicable) and CIDB grade specified for the sub-contractor as may be stipulated in the Tender Data
	

	Proposed Scope of work to be done by sub-contractor
	

	Contact person
	

	Telephone number
	

	Fax number
	

	E-mail address
	

	Postal address
	

	Physical address
	







1. If you are currently registered as a vendor with Eskom, please provide your Vendor Registration Number with Eskom. ________________

1. If you are currently registered as a vendor on the Treasury Central Supplier Database (CSD) please provide your supplier registration number with Treasury _____________

1. Please note that it is mandatory for you to register on National Treasury’s CSD, if you intend doing work with any State department or State-owned entity/company.

1. You may register online at National Treasury website on www.treasury.gov.za 

1. If you are registered on SARS Efiling system, please provide your pin number in order to verify your tax compliant status ___________________

1. If you are required to be tax compliant as per SBD-1 but are not registered on CSD (foreign suppliers) or have not provided your SARS Efiling pin, please confirm that you have attached/will send a copy of a current valid tax compliant certificate as a tender returnable (by contract award stage).  
	YES
	
	NO
	


      
7. If sub-contracting is prescribed in the specific enquiry, you need to compete 7.1- 7.7 

7.1 Confirm if you intend sub-contracting
	YES
	
	NO
	




7.2 What percentage will you be sub-contracting?  _____%    
  
7.3 To whom do you intend sub-contracting? _______________________________

7.4 Is the said sub-contractor registered on CSD?
	YES
	
	NO
	



7.5 If yes to 7.4, please provide CSD number. _____________________________

7.4 Please confirm B-BBEE level of said sub-contractor. ______________________

7.5 Which designated group does the sub-contractor belong to:
An EME or QSE;
An EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people;
An EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people who are youth;
An EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people who are women;
An EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people with disabilities;
An EME or QSE which is 51% owned by black people living in rural or underdeveloped areas or townships;
A cooperative which is at least 51% owned by black people;
An EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people who are military veterans; or
More than one of the categories referred to in paragraphs (a) to (h)?

7.6 Please confirm that you have attached your signed intent to sub-contract document. 
	YES
	
	NO
	



7.7 Have you attached proof of sub-contractor’s belonging to designated group?                     
	YES
	
	NO
	


   

	1. [bookmark: _Toc445097469][bookmark: _Toc445985408][bookmark: _Toc446136885][bookmark: _Toc450628529][bookmark: _Toc450634530]Single tenderers

I, the undersigned, _________________________________________(Full names) hereby confirm that I am duly authorised to sign all documents in connection with this tender and any contract resulting from it, on behalf of ___________________     (insert the full legal name of the tenderer).

Signature: _______________

Designation: ____________________

Date: _________________

2. Joint Ventures

We, the undersigned, are submitting this tender in Joint Venture and hereby authorise Mr/Ms _______________________________________(full names), an authorised signatory of  _______________________________________, (insert the full legal name of the business entity serving as the lead partner) acting in the capacity of lead partner, to sign all documents in connection with the tender and any contract resulting from it on our behalf.  

We attach to this Schedule a copy of the joint venture agreement which incorporates a statement that all partners are liable jointly and severally for the execution of the contract and that the lead partner is authorised to incur liabilities, receive instructions and payments and be responsible for the entire execution of the contract for and on behalf of any and all the partners.

	Legal Name of Joint Venture Member
	Full Name and Capacity of Authorised Signatory
	Signature

	

	
	

	

	
	

	

	
	

	

	
	

	

	
	






	


	[bookmark: _Toc454960347][bookmark: _Toc454960463][bookmark: _Toc454961316]ANNEXURE C
INTEGRITY DECLARATION FORM 

Note: This returnable is required to be fully completed, signed and submitted with Tender at Tender closing date and time, however, if not submitted by Tender closing, the Procurement Practitioners must request in writing the outstanding returnable to be submitted within five (5) working days. If the requested returnable is not fully completed, signed and/or received by the Procurement Practitioner within five (5) working days of the request; the tender must be disqualified.
[bookmark: _Toc454960348][bookmark: _Toc454960464][bookmark: _Toc454961317]  
0. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

I/We understand that any natural/legal person, including employees of the State and/or those related to an Eskom employee/director (as per the definition of “related” set out hereunder), may tender to Eskom. However, in view of possible allegations of favouritism (the practice of showing favour to, or giving preference to some person/group, to the detriment of, or at the expense of another that is entitled to equal treatment or an equal opportunity), should the resulting tender, or part thereof, be awarded to such natural/legal person, as described herein, it is required that the tenderer/s declare such interest/relationship where:

1. the tenderer/s employees/directors are also employees/contractors/consultants/ directors in the state or a state-owned entity.

1. the tenderer/s employees/directors are also employees/contractors/consultants/ directors of Eskom.

1. the tenderer/s employees/directors are also employees/contractors/consultants or directors in another entity together with Eskom employees/consultants/contractors/ directors.

1. the legal person/s (including its employees/contractors/directors/members/ shareholders) on whose behalf the tender documents are signed, is in some other way “related” to an Eskom employee/contractor/consultant/director involved in the tender evaluation/tender adjudication/tender negotiation. “Related” meaning that:

31.  an individual is related to another individual of they are married, or live together in a relationship similar to marriage; 
31. or are separated by no more than two degrees of natural or adopted consanguinity or affinity;
31. an individual is related to a juristic person if the individual directly or indirectly controls the juristic person, as determined in accordance with the definition of “control” (as per Companies Act section 2(1)); and
4  a juristic person is “related” to another juristic person if:
2. either of them directly/indirectly controls the other, or the business of the other, as determined in accordance with the definition of “control” (as per Companies Act Section 2(1)); 
2. either is a subsidiary of the other; or
2. a person directly/indirectly controls each of them, or the business of each of them, as determined in accordance with the definition of “control”.

1. the tenderer/s and one or more of the tenderers in this RFP process have a controlling partner in common, or a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on the proposal of another tenderer or influence the decisions of Eskom regarding this bidding process.

To give effect to the provisions above, please complete the table hereunder with all required information.
	Full Name & Capacity/ Position within tenderer (e.g. employee/Director/member/ owner/shareholder)
	Identity Number

	Confirm and provide details (including employee number) if you are a State/State owned entity employee/contractor/ director.

	Full Names & Capacity/Position of Eskom employee/ director/ consultant and details of the relationship or interest (marital/
familial/personal/
financial etc.)
	To your knowledge
is this person involved in the evaluation/
adjudication/
negotiation of tenders

	
	
	
	
	


	
	
	
	
	


	
	
	
	
	


	
	
	
	
	




1. If any employee/director/member/shareholder/owner of tenderer/s is also currently employed by Eskom, state whether this has been declared and whether there is authorisation (Y/N) to undertake remunerative work outside public sector employment and attach proof to this declaration. _________________________

1. Do the tenderer/s and other tenderer in this RFP process share a controlling partner or have any relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties? (Y/N) If Yes, attach proof to this declaration. 

[bookmark: _Toc454960349][bookmark: _Toc454960465][bookmark: _Toc454961318]2. DECLARATION OF FAIR TENDERING PRACTICES

This serves as a declaration that when goods/services are being procured, all reasonable steps have been taken to address and/or prevent the exploitation of the procurement process and the use of any unfair tendering practices.

A proposal will be disqualified if the tenderer/s, or any of its directors have:
1. abused the institution’s procurement process (e.g. bid rigging/collusion)
1. committed fraud or any other improper conduct in relation to such system.
Please complete the declaration with an ‘X” under YES or NO 

	Item
	Question 
	Yes
	No

	1.1
	Is the tenderer/s (or any of its directors/members/shareholders) listed on National Treasury’s Database of Restricted Suppliers as companies/persons prohibited from doing business with the public sector

[Note: Companies/persons who are listed on the Database were informed in writing of this restriction by the Authority/Accounting Officer of the institution that imposed the restriction after the audi alteram partem rule was applied].

The Database of Restricted Suppliers can be accessed on the National Treasury’s website (www.treasury.gov.za).
	
	

	1.2
	Is the tenderer/s (or any of its directors / members / shareholders)?  listed on the Register for Tender Defaulters in terms of section 29 of the Prevention and Combatting of Corrupt Activities Act (No 12 of 2004) 

The Register for Tender Defaulters can be accessed on the National Treasury’s website (www.treasury.gov.za).
	
	

	1.3
	Was the tenderer/s (or any of its directors/members/shareholders) convicted by a court of law (including a court outside South Africa) for fraud and/or corruption with respect to the procurement/tendering processes/procedures during the past five years?
	
	

	1.3.1
	Provide details.




	1.4
	Was the tenderer/s(or any of its directors/members/shareholders) prohibited from doing business with any International Financial Development/funding Agency or Lending Institution
	
	

	1.5
	Is there any history/record of the tenderer/s (or any of its              directors/members/shareholders) failing to meet their   contractual obligation with any SOC?
	
	



1. DECLARATION OF SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION

I, the undersigned __________________________ [Position] _______________________ hereby declare that I am the duly authorised representative of ___________________ [Name of Tenderer]. 
I further declare that the following individuals and/or entities listed hereunder are Shareholders in ______________________________ [Name of Tenderer]: 
Note that this information in the tables hereunder must be fully completed for each tenderer (including incorporated JVs).  In event that the tenderer is an unincorporated JV, this must be completed for each JV member. Please add additional rows if required.

Individuals: 

	[bookmark: _Hlk98423462]Full Name 
	Identity Number 
	Shareholding Percentage 

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	



Other Entities*: 

	Full Legal
/ Trading Name
	Registration Number / Trust Number
	Shareholding Percentage
	Full name and surname of the directors / beneficiaries / shareholders of the shareholding entity
	Identification Numbers of the shareholders / directors / beneficiaries of the shareholding entity

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	



I, the undersigned,__________________________ (full names) hereby confirm that I am duly authorised to sign all documents in connection with this tender and any contract resulting from it on behalf of ____________________ (insert the full legal name of tenderer). 
 
[bookmark: _Hlk109902306]I declare that I have read and understood the provisions of the Supplier Integrity Pact, that all information furnished herein is correct, that it is understood that the tenderer's proposal may be rejected, and that Eskom will act against the tenderer should any aspect of this this declaration prove to be false, and  

I give my consent for this information to be used for the purpose as described in this Integrity Declaration Form and/or in relation to the Supplier Integrity Pact, and  

I further consent that information provided in terms of this Integrity Declaration Form may be processed for verification of conflicts of interest and other ancillary purposes by Eskom.  Such processing may include the sharing of the information with third parties.
 
	Signature:
	

	Designation and capacity in which signing
	

	Date:
	


Joint Ventures

I, the undersigned, ________________________(full names) hereby confirm that acting in the capacity of lead partner, I am duly authorised to sign all documents in connection with the tender and any contract resulting from it on behalf of ___________________________ (insert the full legal name of the JV); and 

I declare that I have read and understood the provisions of the Supplier Integrity Pact, that all information furnished herein is correct, that it is understood that the JV's proposal may be rejected, and that Eskom will act against the JV should any aspect of this declaration prove to be false; and 
I give my consent for this information to be used for the purpose as described in this Integrity Declaration Form and/or in relation to the Supplier Integrity Pact, and  

I further consent that information provided in terms of this Integrity Declaration Form may be processed for verification of conflicts of interest and other ancillary purposes by Eskom.  Such processing may include the sharing of the information with third parties.

	Signature:
	

	Designation and capacity in which signing
	

	Date:
	



(A copy of the joint venture agreement which incorporates a statement that all partners are liable jointly and severally for the execution of the contract and that the lead partner is authorised to incur liabilities, receive instructions and payments and be responsible for the entire execution of the contract for and on behalf of any and all the partners is attached to the Request for Proposal).














ANNEXURE D
CPA REQUIREMENTS FOR LOCAL GOODS AND SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) 
THE APPLICATION OF CONTRACT PRICE ADJUSTMENT (CPA) TO TENDER SUBMISSIONS
This Section will not be applicable to professional services contract.
1. APPLICATION OF CPA 
Eskom will afford Tenderers an opportunity to propose additional/alternate offers to the abovementioned.  Additional Offers, which are optional, will only be considered if a fully compliant Main Offer is submitted and acceptable

CPA conditions may apply if the contractual duration is to be longer than 12 months.  If the contractual duration will be less than or equal to 12 months, a fixed priced offer must be submitted.
1. TENDER SUBMISSIONS 
Tenderers shall comply with the following requirements:

a. 	Main offer:

1. A Main Offer that is fully compliant with the CPA requirements as specified in the Enquiry.

1. This condition is mandatory unless a fully fixed priced offer is submitted.  If more than one offer is submitted, then the fully CPA compliant offer must be indicated as the Main Offer.  

Failure to do so may result in the supplier’s offer(s) being disqualified.

b.	Additional/Alternative offer:
Additional offers, which are optional, will only be considered if a fully compliant main offer is submitted and acceptable:
1. A fixed priced offer in addition to the fully CPA compliant main offer; or
1. Any other offer with CPA specifications which deviate from the CPA requirements specified in the enquiry.  However, it is compulsory that all such deviations are sufficiently substantiated.
Additional/Alternative Offers must be clearly indicated as such
1. ESKOM’S PREFERRED INDEX LIST
Eskom’s preferred index list is set out hereunder in Tables 1 and 2. The index list comprises indices that could be used in the Tenderers main offer.
1. FOREIGN PORTION OF THE TENDER/AGREEMENT PRICE
In instances where the preferred index list does not specify a foreign index which is required for the specific agreement, the following must apply:

1. The source of an index must be that of the national statistical institute of the relevant country or a generally acknowledged statistical (e.g. industry) body in or for that country, e.g. BEAMA and MEPS.
1. The index must be the equivalent, or if unavailable, the nearest equivalent index to that of the specific prescribed local index.

5 NUMBER OF FORMULAE & INDICES

The Tenderer is limited to a maximum of 10 (ten) indices in total, i.e.:  a maximum of 5 local indices and maximum of 5 foreign indices, excluding the fixed portion per CPA formula, per offer/agreement.

6 CPA FIXED PORTION

A minimum of 15% of the total agreement value is to be fixed when a CPA formula applies; except in the case of professional services or consulting agreements.

7   BASE DATE

· In instances of indices or other references published monthly, the Base Date is to be:
       	The month before the month in which the Enquiry closes
· In instances where the reference figures, e.g. market prices, are published daily or at more intervals than once a month: 
      The average for the month before the month in which the Enquiry closes.
· In this case, the following shall apply:
· Where the average is published:
The average published price in the currency Eskom will be exposed to. e.g. The currency in which Eskom will effect payment.
· Where a high, low and mean are published:
The mean
· Where other prices than the Cash Settlement or Cash Sellers Price are published:
The Cash Settlement or Cash Sellers Price
· Where applicable, these principles, must also apply for the CPA “cut-off” date.

8     CPA FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

The preferred index to be used for adjusting these agreements is the country specific CPI Headline index.

The price adjustment factor will be effective from each contractual anniversary of the base date. This must be the average of the country specific CPI Headline index figures published for the last twelve-month period (cycle) ending before the contract anniversary date. 

No fixed portion is mandatory.

	Signed
	
	Date
	

	Name
	
	Position
	

	Tenderer
	



Table 1: Preferred Local Index List - this list of indices needs to be relevant to the commodity. Buyers need to check and include the relevant indices.
 
	Labour
	Commodities
	Processed material
	Transport
	Others

	Labour general (hourly paid)
SEIFSA, C3, actual labour cost
	Steel
StatsSA, P0142.1 Table 2, basic iron and steel
	Mechanical engineering material
SEIFSA, G, mechanical engineering material
	SEIFSA, L2, road freight costs
	StasSA, PO141 CPI (Headline) all items
OR
SEIFSA, D-2 (CPI)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Copper
SEIFSA, F, copper metric ton
	Electrical
engineering material
SEIFSA, G-1, electrical engineering material
	
	

	Labour general
SEIFSA, C3 (a), actual labour cost (field force) where subsistence allowance is paid
	Aluminium
SEIFSA, R, aluminium
	
	
	StasSA, PO142.1), PPI
1. Final Manufactured Goods

Or
1. Intermediate Manufactured Goods OR
1. SEIFSA Table U Producer Price Index (PPI
- final manufactured GOODS OR Intermediate Manufactured Goods

	
	Zinc
SEIFSA, F, zinc
	Building and construction material
SEIFSA, G, building and construction material
	
	

	
	Lead
SEIFSA ,F, lead
	
	
	


Table 2: Preferred Foreign Index List

	Labour
	Commodities
	Processed material
	Transport
	Others

	National Statistical Institute, 
Country-specific general labour index
	MEPS,
Country-specific general steel index
	National Statistical Institute, 
Country-specific mechanical engineering material
	National Statistical Institute, 
Country-specific general transport cost index

	National Statistical Institute, 
Country-specific CPI (Headline)

National Statistical Institute, 
Country-specific PPI

	
	LME, Copper
	National Statistical Institute, 
Country-specific electrical engineering material
	
	

	
	LME, aluminium
	
	
	

	
	LME, zinc
	National Statistical Institute, 
Country-specific building and construction material
	
	

	
	LME, lead
	
	
	



Closing date of tender		__________/__________/__________

TENDERER’S SIGNATURE	______________________________



















ANNEXURE E

CPA (IG) REQUIREMENTS FOR FOREIGN GOODS AND SERVICES 

CONTRACT PRICE ADJUSTMENT AND FOREX PAYMENTS – IMPORTATION

Failure to propose contract price adjustment methods, either by completing this document or proposing alternative methods for any portion of the tender price, will lead to that portion of the tender price being considered fixed.

Where space in this document is insufficient, the tenderer shall submit the required information on separate schedules, duly referenced to this document.

Where foreign exchange is involved, and Eskom will cover the risk forward, the methods of payment listed in Part 1 are the only acceptable methods. It must be noted that Eskom considers Payment Method 1 to be the default payment method.

PART 1:  PAYMENT OF FOREIGN COMMITMENTS

Payment of Eskom’s foreign commitment in foreign currency will be made either:

Payment Method 1A:

To a nominated bank account in a foreign country in a foreign currency (payment will be made to the party and account nominated by the supplier in the contract, and not to any other party).
Please note that the contracting party must be the direct importer of the goods
Applicable (Y / N) 

Payment Method 1B:

To a valid SARB approved CFC account in South Africa, in a foreign currency (payment will be made to the party and account nominated by the supplier in the contract, and not to any other party). 

Please note: 
1. The contracting party must be the direct importer
1. For payment purposes, Eskom will require both the foreign (commercial) invoice and the local tax invoice
1. The foreign currency values on both the commercial and local invoice must   be the same. Eskom will not pay any profit in foreign currency.
1. Service-related payments are excluded from this option.
         Applicable (Y/N) or 



Payment Method 2:	

In South African Rand at the selling spot rate of exchange obtained by Eskom’s Treasury on the date that the forward cover is cancelled.  Eskom will notify the supplier of the date that the forward cover is cancelled as well as the intended payment date, which will be as per the agreed payment terms.

Any exchange rate adjustment after Eskom has notified the supplier of the date and the rate which the forward cover is cancelled, will be for the account of the supplier. 
Please note: 
1. The contracting party has to be the direct importer of the goods. 
1. This payment option is not applicable for the payment of services
Applicable (Y/N) ………..

An indemnity in writing confirming that the supplier will not buy forward cover is required where Payment Method 1 or 2 is contracted.

[Payment Method 2 must be accepted by the Commercial Policy and Procedure Manager before the tender documentation is sent out, but at the latest before the tender closing date.  If it is not approved before tender closing, Payment Method 1 will be the default.]

Fixed ZAR pricing
The tenderer may elect to be responsible for the hedging of the exposure of the imported content. However, Eskom reserves the right to have line of sight of the exchange rates to be quoted by the tenderer. This entails a simultaneous exercise of the verification of the exchange rates to be used.
Applicable (Y/N) ………..

Please note: Eskom will require substantiating proof of importation at the time of invoicing, if payment methods 1A,1B and 2 are selected.

Where goods were previously imported into stock by the supplier, for delivery to various customers, including Eskom, the price quoted must be in South African Rand.  In such cases Eskom will not undertake any foreign exchange commitment or arrange forward cover.

PART 2:  EXCHANGE RATES

The tenderer shall use the exchange rate as at 12H00 on the date of the advertisement of the tender. The source of the exchange rates shall be the South African Reserve Bank (www.resbank.co.za)

Please note that the tenderer is required to submit proof of the SARB rate/s used.

PART 3:  ADJUSTMENT OF IMPORTATION COSTS, ETC.

The values in Rand included in the tender/contract price for the following costs shall be based on rates ruling for the month prior to the closing date of the tender and any variation in these rates applied to the value included in the tender price will be for Eskom’s account.

	
	RATES/TARIFFS

	Sea/Air Freight
	

	Bunker Adjustment Factor
	

	Currency Adjustment Factor
	

	Marine Risk Insurance (MRI) (Eskom will provide cover)
	

	Rate for Extension of MRI after Arrival of Goods at Site (if required)
	

	Wharfage
	

	Landing Charges
	

	Customs Duties
	

	RSA Port on which Import Charges are Based
	



PART 4:	ADJUSTMENT OF OVERSEAS MANUFACTURE, EXPATRIATE LABOUR AND OTHER COSTS (To be read in conjunction with Eskom CPA Index)

Eskom requires a fixed portion (free of price adjustment) appropriate to the nature of the contract.

The methods/formulae proposed in this part shall clearly identify the base month, the period over which adjustment will apply, the elements of labour and materials and source of the indices/rates/prices to be used.

The source of indices/prices/rates nominated in this part shall be from a recognised publishing authority. It must be clearly and completely defined.  Supplier in-house indices are not acceptable.

The value of overseas manufacture, labour and material costs (ex-works), inland transportation, expatriate labour, etc. included in the tender/contract price shall be subject to adjustment in accordance with the methods stated hereunder.

The base indices/prices/rates shall be those ruling for the month prior to the month of the closing of the enquiry.
56. MANUFACTURING CPA METHOD (LABOUR AND MATERIAL) 
	Please submit your proposals for this section on a separate sheet of paper as an annexure.
56. EXPATRIATE LABOUR METHOD
	Please submit your proposals for this section on a separate sheet of paper as an annexure.
56. OTHER VALUES METHOD (e.g. Engineering fees, design fees, barging, inland transportation, etc.)
	Please submit your proposals for this section on a separate sheet of paper as an annexure.

PART 5: ADJUSTMENT OF LOCAL MANUFACTURE/SUPPLY MATERIAL, TRANSPORT AND ERECTION COSTS

The contract price adjustment method for local manufacture or partly local manufacture from imported stock, equipment or plant cost, transport cost within the RSA and local erection/installation cost shall be in accordance with the attached Eskom CPA Principles.

PART 6:  GUIDELINES FOR CONTRACT PRICE ADJUSTMENT CLAIMS --- PART 2, 3 AND 4

1. When the percentage increase or decrease between two indices/prices/tariffs is calculated, the earlier figure shall be taken as the base.
1. Where portions of the works are delivered at different times, contract price adjustments shall be made in respect of appropriate portions of the contract price.
1. Where the terms of payment of the contract allow progress payments, other than Eskom’s standard payment terms, the agreed contract price adjustment method shall be applied to the value of such payment and to the date and level of completion to which payment is linked.
1. Where any figure given in a table is therein stated to be a provisional figure or is subsequently amended, the figure as ultimately confirmed or amended in the publication concerned shall apply.
1. Where the appropriate claim indices/prices, as defined in terms of the agreed formulae, are not available or are provisional, interim claims based on the last published confirmed or revised indices/prices as at the date of delivery/installation may be submitted.  When the confirmed or revised index/price becomes available the final claim may be submitted, provided that such claim is received within 180 days of the date of delivery/installation.
1. Where requested by Eskom, the contractor shall submit publications showing base indices/prices/rates as they become available as well as updated values at three monthly intervals during the course of the contract.
1. Where it is considered necessary Eskom reserves the right to call for any documentary evidence to substantiate claims.


Closing date of tender		__________/__________/__________

TENDERER’S SIGNATURE	_______________________________

ANNEXURE F1
									                         SBD 6.2
DECLARATION CERTIFICATE FOR LOCAL PRODUCTION AND CONTENT FOR DESIGNATED SECTORS 

This Standard Bidding Document (SBD) must form part of all bids invited. It contains general information and serves as a declaration form for local content (local production and local content are used interchangeably).

Before completing this declaration, bidders must study the General Conditions, Definitions, Directives applicable in respect of Local Content as prescribed by the dtic,  the South African Bureau of Standards (SABS) approved technical specification number SATS 1286:2011 (Edition 1) and the Guidance on the Calculation of Local Content together with the Local Content Declaration Templates [Annex C (Local Content Declaration: Summary Schedule), D (Imported Content Declaration: Supporting Schedule to Annex C) and E (Local Content Declaration: Supporting Schedule to Annex C)].

1. General Conditions

1.1. dtic makes provision for the promotion of local production and content. 

1.2. dtic prescribes that in the case of designated sectors, organs of state must advertise such tenders with the specific bidding condition that only locally produced or manufactured goods, with a stipulated minimum threshold for local production and content will be considered.

1.3. A person awarded a contract in relation to a designated sector, may not sub-contract in such a manner that the local production and content of the overall value of the contract is reduced to below the stipulated minimum threshold.

1.4. The local content (LC) expressed as a percentage of the bid price must be calculated in accordance with the SABS approved technical specification number SATS 1286: 2011 as follows: 

	LC = [1 -[image: ] x / y] * 100

Where
	x 	is the imported content in Rand
	y	is the bid price in Rand excluding value added tax (VAT) 

Prices referred to in the determination of x must be converted to Rand (ZAR) by using the exchange rate published by South African Reserve Bank (SARB) at 12:00 on the date of advertisement of the bid as indicated in paragraph 4.1 below.
The SABS approved technical specification number SATS 1286:2011 is accessible on http://www.thedtic.gov.za/sectors-and-services-2/industrial-development/ at no cost.  

1.5. A bid may be disqualified if this Declaration Certificate and the Annex C (Local Content Declaration: Summary Schedule) are not submitted at the stipulated deadlines.

2. The stipulated minimum threshold(s) for local production and content (refer to Annex A of SATS 1286:2011) for this bid is/are as follows:

	Description of services, works or goods
	Stipulated minimum threshold
	Tenderer’s proposal

	Fabricated Steel / steel work
	100%
	

	Joining/ Connecting components
	100%
	

	Concrete works
	100%
	

	Kiosk
	100%
	

	Breakers
	100%
	

	Clamps/ joints
	100%
	

	PPE Textile/ Leather/ Clothing 
	100%
	

	Plastic pipes / Fitting
	100%
	



3. Does any portion of the goods or services offered have any imported content? 
(Tick applicable box)
	YES
	
	NO
	




3.1	If yes, the rate(s) of exchange to be used in this bid to calculate the local content as prescribed in paragraph 1.5 of the general conditions must be the rate(s) published by SARB for the specific currency at 12:00 on the date of advertisement of the bid.

The relevant rates of exchange information is accessible on www.reservebank.co.za

Indicate the rate(s) of exchange against the appropriate currency in the table below (refer to Annex A of SATS 1286:2011):
	Currency 
	Rates of exchange

	US Dollar
	

	Pound Sterling
	

	Euro
	

	Yen
	

	Other
	


NB: Bidders must submit proof of the SARB rate (s) of exchange used.
4. Where, after the award of a bid, challenges are experienced in meeting the stipulated minimum threshold for local content the dtic must be informed accordingly in order for the DTIC to verify and in consultation with the AO/AA provide directives in this regard.

LOCAL CONTENT DECLARATION

(REFER TO ANNEX B OF SATS 1286:2011)

	LOCAL CONTENT DECLARATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OR OTHER LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE PERSON NOMINATED IN WRITING BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OR SENIOR MEMBER/PERSON WITH MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY (CLOSE CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP OR INDIVIDUAL) 

IN RESPECT OF BID NO. .................................................................................

ISSUED BY: (Procurement Authority / Name of Institution): .........................................................................................................................
NB   

1 The obligation to complete, duly sign and submit this declaration cannot be transferred to an external authorized representative, auditor or any other third party acting on behalf of the bidder.
2 Guidance on the Calculation of Local Content is accessible on http://www.thedtic.gov.za/sectors-and-services-2/industrial-development/
3 Local Content Declaration Templates (Annex C, D and E) is attached to this enquiry and must be submitted at the stipulated deadline.
4 Bidders should first complete Declaration D.  After completing Declaration D, bidders should complete Declaration E and then consolidate the information on Declaration C. Declaration C should be submitted at the stipulated deadline of the bid in order to substantiate the declaration made in paragraph (c) below.  Declarations D and E should be kept by the bidders for verification purposes for a period of at least 5 years. The successful bidder is required to continuously update Declarations C, D and E with the actual values for the duration of the contract.

I, the undersigned, …………………………….................................................... (full names), do hereby declare, in my capacity as ……………………………………………..of ...............................................................................................................(name of bidder entity), the following:

(a) The facts contained herein are within my own personal knowledge.

(b) I have satisfied myself that:
(i) the goods/services/works to be delivered in terms of the above-specified bid comply with the minimum local content requirements as specified in the bid, and as measured in terms of SATS 1286:2011; and
(c) The local content percentage (%) indicated below has been calculated using the formula given in clause 3 of SATS 1286:2011, the rates of exchange indicated in paragraph 4.1 above and the information contained in Declaration D and E which has been consolidated in Declaration C:

	Bid price, excluding VAT (y)
	R

	Imported content (x), as calculated in terms of SATS 1286:2011
	R

	Stipulated minimum threshold for local content (paragraph 3 above) 
	

	Local content %, as calculated in terms of SATS 1286:2011
	



If the bid is for more than one product, the local content percentages for each product contained in Declaration C shall be used instead of the table above.  

The local content percentages for each product has been calculated using the formula given in clause 3 of SATS 1286:2011, the rates of exchange indicated in paragraph 4.1 above and the information contained in Declaration D and E.

(d) I accept that the Procurement Authority / Institution has the right to request that the local content be verified in terms of the requirements of SATS 1286:2011.
(e) I understand that the awarding of the bid is dependent on the accuracy of the information furnished in this application. I also understand that the submission of incorrect data, or data 	that are not verifiable as described in SATS 1286:2011, may result in the Procurement Authority / Institution imposing any or all of the remedies as provided for in Regulation 9.1 of the Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2022 promulgated under the Preferential Policy Framework Act (PPPFA), 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000).

	SIGNATURE:                                                  			DATE: ___________

	WITNESS No. 1                                              			DATE: ___________

	WITNESS No. 2                                              			DATE: ___________










ANNEXURE G
SBD 1
                                                                                PART A
INVITATION TO BID
	YOU ARE HEREBY INVITED TO BID FOR REQUIREMENTS OF THE (NAME OF DEPARTMENT/ PUBLIC ENTITY)

	BID NUMBER:
	MWP1890DX
	CLOSING DATE:
	19 April 2023
	CLOSING TIME:
	10H00 SAST (GMT+2)

	DESCRIPTION
	Repair of Vandalized miniature substation and ground mounted kiosk in Gauteng Cluster as an when required

	THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER WILL BE REQUIRED TO FILL IN AND SIGN A WRITTEN CONTRACT FORM (SBD7).

	BID RESPONSE DOCUMENTS MAY BE DEPOSITED IN THE BID BOX SITUATED AT (STREET ADDRESS)

	

	THE TENDER OFFICE 

	MEGAWATT PARK TENDER OFFICE – NORTHSIDE 

	NO. 01 MAXWELL DRIVE 

	SUNNINGHILL 

	GAUTENG

	

	SUPPLIER INFORMATION

	NAME OF BIDDER
	

	POSTAL ADDRESS
	

	STREET ADDRESS
	

	TELEPHONE NUMBER
	CODE
	
	NUMBER
	

	CELLPHONE NUMBER
	

	FACSIMILE NUMBER
	CODE
	
	NUMBER
	

	E-MAIL ADDRESS
	

	VAT REGISTRATION NUMBER
	

	
	

	
	TCS PIN:
	
	OR
	CSD No:
	

	B-BBEE STATUS LEVEL VERIFICATION CERTIFICATE
[TICK APPLICABLE BOX]
	|_| Yes  

|_| No
	B-BBEE STATUS LEVEL SWORN AFFIDAVIT  
	|_| Yes 
  
|_| No

	IF YES, WHO WAS THE CERTIFICATE ISSUED BY? 
	

	AN ACCOUNTING OFFICER AS CONTEMPLATED IN THE CLOSE CORPORATION ACT (CCA) AND NAME THE APPLICABLE IN THE TICK BOX
	|_|
	AN ACCOUNTING OFFICER AS CONTEMPLATED IN THE CLOSE CORPORATION ACT (CCA)

	
	|_|
	A VERIFICATION AGENCY ACCREDITED BY THE SOUTH AFRICAN ACCREDITATION SYSTEM (SANAS)

	
	|_|
	A REGISTERED AUDITOR

	
	
	NAME:

	[A B-BBEE STATUS LEVEL VERIFICATION CERTIFICATE/SWORN AFFIDAVIT (FOR EMEs& QSEs) MUST BE SUBMITTED IN ORDER TO QUALIFY FOR PREFERENCE POINTS FOR B-BBEE]

	ARE YOU THE ACCREDITED REPRESENTATIVE IN SOUTH AFRICA FOR THE GOODS /SERVICES /WORKS OFFERED?

	|_|Yes                         |_|No 


[IF YES ENCLOSE PROOF]

	ARE YOU A FOREIGN BASED SUPPLIER FOR THE GOODS /SERVICES /WORKS OFFERED?

	|_|Yes |_|No

[IF YES ANSWER PART B:3 BELOW]


	SIGNATURE OF BIDDER
	………………………………
	DATE
	

	CAPACITY UNDER WHICH THIS BID IS SIGNED (Attach proof of authority to sign this bid; e.g. resolution of directors, etc.)
	

	TOTAL NUMBER OF ITEMS OFFERED
	
	TOTAL BID PRICE (ALL INCLUSIVE)
	

	BIDDING PROCEDURE ENQUIRIES MAY BE DIRECTED TO:
	TECHNICAL INFORMATION MAY BE DIRECTED TO:

	DEPARTMENT/ PUBLIC ENTITY
	
	CONTACT PERSON
	

	CONTACT PERSON
	
	TELEPHONE NUMBER
	

	TELEPHONE NUMBER
	
	FACSIMILE NUMBER
	

	FACSIMILE NUMBER
	
	E-MAIL ADDRESS
	

	E-MAIL ADDRESS
	
	



PART B
TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR BIDDING
	
	1. BID SUBMISSION:

	64. BIDS MUST BE DELIVERED BY THE STIPULATED TIME TO THE CORRECT ADDRESS. LATE BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED FOR CONSIDERATION.

64. ALL BIDS MUST BE SUBMITTED ON THE OFFICIAL FORMS PROVIDED–(NOT TO BE RE-TYPED) OR  ONLINE

64. BIDDERS MUST REGISTER ON THE CENTRAL SUPPLIER DATABASE (CSD) TO UPLOAD MANDATORY INFORMATION NAMELY: (BUSINESS REGISTRATION/ DIRECTORSHIP/ MEMBERSHIP/IDENTITY NUMBERS; TAX COMPLIANCE STATUS; AND BANKING INFORMATION FOR VERIFICATION PURPOSES). B-BBEE CERTIFICATE OR SWORN AFFIDAVIT FOR B-BBEE MUST BE SUBMITTED TO BIDDING INSTITUTION.

64. WHERE A BIDDER IS NOT REGISTERED ON THE CSD, MANDATORY INFORMATION NAMELY: (BUSINESS REGISTRATION/ DIRECTORSHIP/ MEMBERSHIP/IDENTITY NUMBERS; TAX COMPLIANCE STATUS MAY NOT BE SUBMITTED WITH THE BID DOCUMENTATION. B-BBEE CERTIFICATE OR SWORN AFFIDAVIT FOR B-BBEE MUST BE SUBMITTED TO BIDDING INSTITUTION.             

64. THIS BID IS SUBJECT TO THE PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT POLICY FRAMEWORK ACT 2000 AND THE PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS, 2022, THE GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT (GCC) AND, IF APPLICABLE, ANY OTHER LEGISLATION OR SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT.


	1. TAX COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

	1. BIDDERS MUST ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THEIR TAX OBLIGATIONS. 
1. BIDDERS ARE REQUIRED TO SUBMIT THEIR UNIQUE PERSONAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN) ISSUED BY SARS TO ENABLE   THE ORGAN OF STATE TO VIEW THE TAXPAYER’S PROFILE AND TAX STATUS.
1. APPLICATION FOR TAX COMPLIANCE STATUS (TCS) OR PIN MAY ALSO BE MADE VIA E-FILING. IN ORDER TO USE THIS PROVISION, TAXPAYERS WILL NEED TO REGISTER WITH SARS AS E-FILERS THROUGH THE WEBSITE WWW.SARS.GOV.ZA.
1. BIDDERS MAY ALSO SUBMIT A PRINTED TCS TOGETHER WITH THE BID. 
1. IN BIDS WHERE CONSORTIA / JOINT VENTURES / SUB-CONTRACTORS ARE INVOLVED, EACH PARTY MUST SUBMIT A SEPARATE PROOF OF   TCS / PIN / CSD NUMBER.
1. WHERE NO TCS IS AVAILABLE BUT THE BIDDER IS REGISTERED ON THE CENTRAL SUPPLIER DATABASE (CSD), A CSD NUMBER MUST BE PROVIDED. 

	1. QUESTIONNAIRE TO BIDDING FOREIGN SUPPLIERS

	72. IS THE BIDDER A RESIDENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA (RSA)?		|_|  YES  |_| NO
72. DOES THE BIDDER HAVE A BRANCH IN THE RSA?				              |_|  YES   |_| NO
72. DOES THE BIDDER HAVE A PERMANENT ESTABLISHMENT IN THE RSA?	                               |_|  YES  |_| NO
72. DOES THE BIDDER HAVE ANY SOURCE OF INCOME IN THE RSA?		                |_|  YES  |_| NO

IF THE ANSWER IS “NO” TO ALL OF THE ABOVE, THEN, IT IS NOT A REQUIREMENT TO OBTAIN A TAX COMPLIANCE STATUS / TAX COMPLIANCE SYSTEM PIN CODE FROM THE SOUTH AFRICAN REVENUE SERVICE (SARS) AND IF NOT REGISTER AS PER 2.3 ABOVE.



NB: FAILURE TO PROVIDE ANY OF THE ABOVE PARTICULARS MAY RENDER THE BID INVALID.

































ANNEXURE H			SBD 6.1

PREFERENCE POINTS CLAIM FORM IN TERMS OF THE PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS 2022


This preference form must form part of all tenders invited.  It contains general information and serves as a claim form for preference points for specific goals. 

NB:	BEFORE COMPLETING THIS FORM, TENDERERS MUST STUDY THE GENERAL CONDITIONS, DEFINITIONS AND DIRECTIVES APPLICABLE IN RESPECT OF THE TENDER AND PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS, 2022


1. GENERAL CONDITIONS

The following preference point systems are applicable to invitations to tender:
the 80/20 system for requirements with a Rand value of up to R50 000 000 (all applicable taxes included); and 
the 90/10 system for requirements with a Rand value above R50 000 000 (all applicable taxes included).

For this Request for Proposal
	
1. The applicable preference point system for this tender is the 80/20 preference point system.

1. Points for this tender (even in the case of a tender for income-generating contracts) shall be awarded for: 

· Price; and
· Specific Goals.

3     The maximum points for this tender are allocated as follows:
	
	POINTS

	PRICE
	80

	SPECIFIC GOALS
	20

	Total points for Price and SPECIFIC GOALS 
	100



4    Failure on the part of a tenderer to submit proof or documentation required in terms of this tender to claim points for specific goals with the tender, will be interpreted to mean that preference points for specific goals are not claimed.

5     The organ of state reserves the right to require of a tenderer, either before a tender is adjudicated or at any time subsequently, to substantiate any claim in regard to preferences, in any manner required by the organ of state.

1. DEFINITIONS
1. “tender” means a written offer in the form determined by an organ of state in response to an invitation to provide goods or services through price quotations, competitive tendering process or any other method envisaged in legislation; 
1. “price” means an amount of money tendered for goods or services, and includes all applicable taxes less all unconditional discounts; 
1. “rand value” means the total estimated value of a contract in Rand, calculated at the time of bid invitation, and includes all applicable taxes; 
1. “tender for income-generating contracts” means a written offer in the form determined by an organ of state in response to an invitation for the origination of income-generating contracts through any method envisaged in legislation that will result in a legal agreement between the organ of state and a third party that produces revenue for the organ of state, and includes, but is not limited to, leasing and disposal of assets and concession contracts, excluding direct sales and disposal of assets through public auctions; and 
1. “the Act” means the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000).  

1. FORMULAE FOR PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES

82. POINTS AWARDED FOR PRICE

3.1.1      THE 90/10 PREFERENCE POINT SYSTEMS 
[bookmark: _Hlk78214518]	A maximum of 90 points is allocated for price on the following basis:

		90/10			

			
	Where
	Ps	=	Points scored for price of tender under consideration
	Pt	=	Price of tender under consideration
	Pmin	=	Price of lowest acceptable tender


82. FORMULAE FOR DISPOSAL OR LEASING OF STATE ASSETS AND INCOME GENERATING PROCUREMENT

1. POINTS AWARDED FOR PRICE

A maximum of 90 points is allocated for price on the following basis:
	
		            90/10
	               	          
			
	
Where
	Ps	=	Points scored for price of tender under consideration
	Pt	=	Price of tender under consideration
	Pmax	=	Price of highest acceptable tender

1. POINTS AWARDED FOR SPECIFIC GOALS 

83. In terms of Regulation 4(2); 5(2); 6(2) and 7(2) of the Preferential Procurement Regulations, preference points must be awarded for specific goals stated in the tender. For the purposes of this tender the tenderer will be allocated points based on the goals stated in table 1 below as may be supported by proof/ documentation stated in the conditions of this tender: 

83. In cases where organs of state intend to use Regulation 3(2) of the Regulations, which states that, if it is unclear whether the 90/10 preference point system applies, an organ of state must, in the tender documents, stipulate in the case of: 

1. an invitation for tender for income-generating contracts, that either the 90/10 preference point system will apply and that the highest acceptable tender will be used to determine the applicable preference point system; or
 
1. any other invitation for tender, that either the 90/10 preference point system will apply and that the lowest acceptable tender will be used to determine the applicable preference point system, then the organ of state must indicate the points allocated for specific goals for both the 90/10 preference point system. 




Table 1: Specific goals for the tender and points claimed are indicated per the table below. 
Note to tenderers: The tenderer must indicate how they claim points for each preference point system.)  
	B-BBEE Status Level of Contributor
	Number of points
allocated
(80/20 system)
	Number of points claimed (80/20 system)
(To be completed by the tenderer)

	1
	20
	

	2
	18
	

	3
	                   14
	

	4
	12
	

	5
	8
	

	6
	6
	

	7
	4
	

	8
	2
	

	Non-compliant contributor
	0
	



DECLARATION WITH REGARD TO COMPANY/FIRM

85. Name of company/firm…………………………………………………………………….

85. Company registration number: …………………………………………………………...

85. TYPE OF COMPANY/ FIRM
	Partnership/Joint Venture / Consortium
	One-person business/sole propriety
	Close corporation
	Public Company
	Personal Liability Company
[bookmark: _Hlk117764996]	(Pty) Limited 
	Non-Profit Company
	State Owned Company
[TICK APPLICABLE BOX]

85. I, the undersigned, who is duly authorised to do so on behalf of the company/firm, certify that the points claimed, based on the specific goals as advised in the tender, qualifies the company/ firm for the preference(s) shown and I acknowledge that:
1. The information furnished is true and correct;
1. The preference points claimed are in accordance with the General Conditions as indicated in paragraph 1 of this form;
1. In the event of a contract being awarded as a result of points claimed as shown in paragraphs 1.4 and 4.2, the contractor may be required to furnish documentary proof to the satisfaction of the organ of state that the claims are correct; 
1. If the specific goals have been claimed or obtained on a fraudulent basis or any of the conditions of contract have not been fulfilled, the organ of state may, in addition to any other remedy it may have:

89. disqualify the person from the tendering process;
89. recover costs, losses or damages it has incurred or suffered as a result of that person’s conduct;
89. cancel the contract and claim any damages which it has suffered as a result of having to make less favourable arrangements due to such cancellation;
89. recommend that the tenderer or contractor, its shareholders and directors, or only the shareholders and directors who acted on a fraudulent basis, be restricted from obtaining business from any organ of state for a period not exceeding 10 years, after the audi alteram partem (hear the other side) rule has been applied; and
89. forward the matter for criminal prosecution, if deemed necessary.


……………………………………….
SIGNATURE(S) OF TENDERER(S)

SURNAME AND NAME:	 ……………………………………………………….
DATE:			………………………………………………………
ADDRESS:		………………………………………………………
			………………………………………………………
		………………………………………………………
		………………………………………………………















Annexure I                                                                                                          SBD 4
BIDDER’S DISCLOSURE

1. PURPOSE OF THE FORM

Any person (natural or juristic) may make an offer or offers in terms of this invitation to bid. In line with the principles of transparency, accountability, impartiality, and ethics as enshrined in the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa and further expressed in various pieces of legislation, it is required for the bidder to make this declaration in respect of the details required hereunder.

Where a person/s are listed in the Register for Tender Defaulters and / or the List of Restricted Suppliers, that person will automatically be disqualified from the bid process. 


2. BIDDER’S DECLARATION

2.1 	Is the bidder, or any of its directors / trustees / shareholders / members / partners or any person having a controlling interest[footnoteRef:1] in the enterprise, employed by the state? YES/NO	 [1:  the power, by one person or a group of persons holding the majority of the equity of an enterprise, alternatively, the person/s having the deciding vote or power to influence or to direct the course and decisions of the enterprise.

] 


2.1.1	If so, furnish particulars of the names, individual identity numbers, and, if applicable, state employee numbers of sole proprietor/ directors / trustees / shareholders / members/ partners or any person having a controlling interest in the enterprise, in table below.

	Full Name
	Identity Number
	Name of State Institution

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	



2.2	Do you, or any person connected with the bidder, have a relationship with any person who is employed by the procuring institution? YES/NO	
				                                          
2.2.1   If so, furnish particulars:
……………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………

2.3 	Does the bidder or any of its directors / trustees / shareholders / members / partners or any person having a controlling interest in the enterprise have any interest in any other related enterprise whether or not they are bidding for this contract? YES/NO

If so, furnish particulars:
…………………………………………………………………………….
…………………………………………………………………………….


3. DECLARATION

I, the undersigned, (name)……………………………………………………………………. in submitting the accompanying bid, do hereby make the following statements that I certify to be true and complete in every respect:

3.1 I have read and I understand the contents of this disclosure;

3.2 I understand that the accompanying bid will be disqualified if this disclosure is found not to be true and complete in every respect;

3.3 	The bidder has arrived at the accompanying bid independently from, and without consultation, communication, agreement or arrangement with any competitor. However, communication between partners in a joint venture or consortium[footnoteRef:2] will not be construed as collusive bidding. [2:  Joint venture or Consortium means an association of persons for the purpose of combining their expertise, property, capital, efforts, skill and knowledge in an activity for the execution of a contract.] 


3.4 	In addition, there have been no consultations, communications, agreements or arrangements with any competitor regarding the quality, quantity, specifications, prices, including methods, factors or formulas used to calculate prices, market allocation, the intention or decision to submit or not to submit the bid, bidding with the intention not to win the bid and conditions or delivery particulars of the products or services to which this bid invitation relates.

3.5	The terms of the accompanying bid have not been, and will not be, disclosed by the bidder, directly or indirectly, to any competitor, prior to the date and time of the official bid opening or of the awarding of the contract.

3.6 	There have been no consultations, communications, agreements or arrangements made by the bidder with any official of the procuring institution in relation to this procurement process prior to and during the bidding process except to provide clarification on the bid submitted where so required by the institution; and the bidder was not involved in the drafting of the specifications or terms of reference for this bid.
I am aware that, in addition and without prejudice to any other remedy provided to combat any restrictive practices related to bids and contracts, bids that are suspicious will be reported to the Competition Commission for investigation and possible imposition of administrative penalties in terms of section 59 of the Competition Act No 89 of 1998 and or may be reported to the National Prosecuting Authority (NPA) for criminal investigation and or may be restricted from conducting business with the public sector for a period not exceeding ten (10) years in terms of the Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act No 12 of 2004 or any other applicable legislation.

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION FURNISHED IN PARAGRAPHS 1, 2 and 3 ABOVE IS CORRECT. I ACCEPT THAT THE STATE MAY REJECT THE BID OR ACT AGAINST ME IN TERMS OF PARAGRAPH 6 OF PFMA SCM INSTRUCTION 03 OF 2021/22 ON PREVENTING AND COMBATING ABUSE IN THE SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SHOULD THIS DECLARATION PROVE TO BE FALSE.  




………………………………	 ..…………………………………………… 	
Signature             	                Date


………………………………	………………………………………………
Position 	                             Name of bidder














ANNEXURE A – Technical Requirements

























ANNEXURE B – SDL&I Undertakings
	Business Unit
	Gauteng Cluster

	Description/ Scope of Work
	•	Repair of Vandalized miniature substation and ground mounted kiosk in Gauteng Cluster as an when required

	Duration of the Project
	Three (3) years 

	Budget
	

	Name of Buyer
	Angela Kundhlande 


Section 1: Objective Criteria for Preferential Procurement
	SD&L will apply the following pre-qualification criteria as envisaged in PPPFA 2017 regulation 4

	
	
	YES
	NO

	a) Minimum BBBEE status level of contributor?
	☐	
	If Yes, what is the BBBEE status and/or level required
	



	
	YES
	NO

	b) Is there BBBEE category targeted for this enquiry?
	☐	
	If Yes, BBBEE category
	



	
	YES
	NO

	c) Minimum subcontracting requirement for this?
	☐	
	If Yes, what is the minimum percentage?
	





NOTE 1: If subcontracting is part of the objective criteria (c), (not applicable)
•	Sub-contracting agreement/s should be submitted as a tender returnable.  
•	Valid B-BBEE certificates/ valid affidavits of the sub-contractor/s
Note: tenderers are encouraged to meet the objective criteria for Subcontracting (submit a Sub-contracting agreement/s between Main Contractor and subcontractor
Valid B-BBEE certificates/ valid affidavits of the sub-contractor/s will form part of the contract agreement (NEC).

A tenderer to subcontract a minimum of 30% to one or more of the following designated groups: 
I.	an EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people;
II.	an EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people who are youth;
III.	an EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people who are women;
IV.	an EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people with disabilities;
V.	an EME or QSE which is 51% owned by black people living in rural or underdeveloped area or townships;
VI.	a cooperative which is at least 51% owned by black people; 
VII.	a EME or QSE which is at least 51% owned by black people who are military veterans

Tenderers should identify specific subcontracting opportunities and submit a comprehensive proposal to leverage on the proposed percentage.

	
	YES
	NO

	d) Is this commodity or part of it a Designated Sector?
		☐
	If Yes, it is the objective criteria  to be completed Section 2
	



	
	YES
	NO

	e) Is there CIDB compulsory training?
	☐	
	If Yes, what is the what is the% of the Construction Skills Development Goal % (CSDG)
	

	If Yes, it is objective criteria to complete Section 3
	



NOTE 1: If subcontracting is part of the objective criteria (c), Sub-contracting agreement/s should be submitted as a tender returnable that is negotiable at contract award.  



Section 2: Local Content Designated Sectors
	 When applicate the following stipulated minimum threshold for Local Production and Content must be achieved in full by the tenderer

	[bookmark: _Hlk125455895]
	Commodity
	Local Content Threshold

	Fabricated Steel / steel work
	100%


	Joining/ Connecting components
	100%

	Concrete works
	100%

	Kiosk
	100%

	Breakers
	100%

	Clamps/ joints
	100%

	PPE Textile/ Leather/ Clothing 
	100%

	Plastic pipes / Fitting
	100%



NOTE 2: SBD 6.2 Declaration Form is therefore objective criteria and should be a tender returnable.

Note: For this section (Special Conditions of Tendering) the following documents should also be completed and signed: 

A completed and duly signed SBD 6.2 – Local Content Declaration Certificate as a tender returnable. 

Note: For this section (Special Conditions of Tendering) the following documents should also be completed and signed: 

     •	A completed and duly signed SBD 6.2 – Local Content Declaration Certificate.
     •	A completed and duly signed Annexure C, D and E.
     •	Completed and duly signed Preference point Claim form.




Section 3: CIDB Skills Development 
	Continuation of Pre-qualification

	
	Criteria
	Eskom Target
	Tenderer Commitment

	
	
	

	
	
	



Note 3: Failure by the Contractor/Service Provider/Supplier to meet the CIDB CSDG mandatory % will render their tender non-responsive.


Section 4: Validity of Affidavit
	The following must be considered when it comes to validity of Affidavits;

	General Information on Validity of Sworn Affidavits
	The following must be considered when it comes to validity of Affidavits;

	Tenderers submitting B-BBEE Sworn Affidavits must ensure that the affidavits meet the following key pointers to ensure their validity:
· Name/s of deponent as they appear in the identity document and the identity number. 
· Designation of the deponent as the director, owner or member must be indicated in order to know that person is duly authorised to depose of an affidavit. (Mark the applicable option).
· Name of enterprise as per enterprise registration documents issued by the CIPC, where applicable, and enterprise business address. 
· Percentage of black ownership, black female ownership and designated group. In the case of specialised enterprises as per Statement 004, the percentage of black beneficiaries must be reflected. (No blank spaces to be left).
· Indicate total revenue for the year under review and whether it is based on audited financial statements or management account. (Mark the applicable option).
· Financial year end as per the enterprise’s registration documents, which was used to determine the total revenue. (Financial year end to be stipulated by day/month/year).
· B-BBEE Status level. An enterprise can only have one status level. (Tick applicable level)
· Empowering supplier status must be indicated. For QSEs, the deponent must select the basis for the empowering supplier status. 
· Date deponent signed and date of Commissioner of Oath must be the same. (The sworn affidavit must be signed in the presence of the Commissioner of Oath. Furthermore the Commissioner must also sign and stamp)
· Commissioner of Oath cannot be an employee or ex officio of the enterprise because, a person cannot by law, commission a sworn affidavit in which they have an interest.







Section 5: SD&L Undertaking
	Tenderers who complete and submit the undertaking as required, but who do not meet Eskom’s targets, will not be disqualified. SD&L undertakings do not form part of scoring but commitments will form part of contractual obligations



5.1 Enterprise Development 
The main contractor will be required to propose development in the following areas: EME1-2
	Support Description
	Tenderer Proposal

	1%  x cumulative per annum 

The successful tenderer is required to identify and incubate an SME from the designated groups in the Gauteng Operating Unit area. 
Assistance could be in the form of business support, equipment and/or finance. 
The successful tenderer will also be required to draft an Enterprise Development programme and agreement within eight weeks of contract award. The ED agreement must be entered into with the beneficiary and sent to Eskom for review and acceptance. The accepted ED programme will be monitored throughout the duration of the contract. 
This requirement with be negotiated with the successful tenderer


	




5.2 Tenderers procuring from entities with a minimum 51% black ownership
Tenders are encouraged to propose subcontracting of activities which could be outsource to other enterprises in its supply chain during the execution of the contract scope of work. 
Tenderers can also achieve subcontracting requirements by claiming invoices paid to service providers of indirect expenses that it incurs in the operation of its business.  Such expenses may include courier services, training, transport costs, facility management, office /property rental, cleaning, gardening, ICT services.

	Subcontracted Designated Group
	Eskom Target
	Tenderer Proposal

	Black Owned 
	
	

	Black Women Owned
	
	

	Black Youth Owned
	
	

	Black Persons with Disability
	
	



5.3  Job Opportunities
Tenderer to indicate number of Jobs to be created and/or retained from this contract;
	Number of Jobs to be created
	Number of Jobs to be retained 

	


	



5.4 Skills Development 
Tenderers are required to submit a proposal for skills development.
 Eskom reserves the right to negotiate with the tenderer on Eskom’s requirements. The outcome of the negotiations will be a contractual obligation. If negotiations are not required, the tenderer’s SDL&I undertaking will become a contractual condition.
Skills development is designed to benefit the currently unemployed graduates from school; further education and training campuses; and universities.
The composition of these candidates must be representative of the population demographics of South Africa. Note that these targets for skills development candidates categorically exclude Eskom employees and registered learners. 
Skills development Twenty four is (12) candidates over the period of 3 (three) years in order to address the critical, core and scares skills shortage in the country as provided for in the MerSETA. This requirement is supported by the list of occupations in high demand 2018 as stipulated in the Government Gazette 41728.
The following candidates should be sourced in the Gauteng region.
	Category
	Eskom Target
	Tenderer Proposal

	Electrical Engineers / Artisans
	4
	

	Safety Officer
	4
	

	Supervisors 
	4
	



NOTE 2: An estimated 0.25% of the tender value is expected to be committed on skills development
NOTE 3: For each of the above training we require: 
1 candidate (for either of the training courses above) for every R2 Million worth of accumulated purchase orders that has been allocated to the contractor.
Note 1:
Eskom prefers to contract with but is not limited to compliant BBEEE level 1-4 contractors.  Any tenderer who does not comply with this criterion should provide a migration plan that will form part of the contractual obligation. The terms and conditions will be negotiated and agreed prior to contract award. The migration plan will be accepted based on partial fulfillment or as a whole depending on the time period allocated for the transaction/s.

Where there is a partial acceptance of a migration plan, should the same tenderer be awarded further contracts with Eskom the agreed migration plan must be shared with Eskom officials responsible for the tender for continued compliance monitoring
Section 6: SDL&I Penalty
	

	· Eskom will apply a penalty of 2.5% of the Contract Value for failure to meet SDL&I obligations. 
· For the duration of the contract, Eskom will retain 2.5% of every invoice (excluding VAT) as security for the fulfilment of all SDL&I Obligations. The retained amounts shall only be released to the Contractor upon fulfilment of all SDL&I obligations at the end of the contract.
· Alternatively the Contractor shall submit a bond equivalent to 2.5% of the Contract Value and shall only be released to the Contractor upon fulfilment of all SDL&I Obligations



Section 7: Reporting and Monitoring
	

	· [bookmark: OLE_LINK6]The suppliers shall on a bi-annual basis submit a report to Eskom in accordance with Data Collection Template on their compliance with the SDL&I obligations described above.
· Eskom shall review the SDL&I reports submitted by the suppliers within 60 (sixty) days of receipt of the reports and notify the suppliers in writing if their SDL&I obligations have not been met.
· Upon notification by Eskom that the suppliers have not met their SDL&I obligations, the suppliers shall be required to implement corrective measures to meet those SDL&I obligations before the commencement of the following report, failing which Retention clauses shall be invoked.
· Every contract shall be accompanied by the SDL&I Implementation Schedule which must be completed by the suppliers and returned to SDL&I representative for acceptance 28 days after contract award. This will be used as a reference document for monitoring, measuring and reporting on the supplier’s progress in delivering on their stated SDL&I commitments


Section 8: Market Research
	The following information demonstrates market analysis and assisted in arriving at the targets above.  

	Market analysis was performed on: 
· CSD data bases and
· Industry Experts and 
· Eskom Database
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ANNEXURE D – SAFETY EVALUATION CRITERIA

	Ref.
	KPIs
	Submission
	Actual score
	Comments


	
	
	Y = Yes
N= No
N/A = Not applicable
	
	

	1
	Annexure B
Is the acknowledgement of Eskom's SHE rules and requirements form signed and submitted by the tenderer?
	
	
	

	2
	Health and Safety Plan (must address the project/ scope of work OHS risk (s) and aligned with the health and safety specification or requirements)
	
	
	

	3
	Costing for Health and Safety management
Has the tenderer submitted detailed costing for OHS (the cost should be broken down not provided as a lump sum)
· The costing must be based on the overall scope of work/service to be performed
· The scope of work and risk assessment my serve as a guideline
	
	
	

	4
	Baseline OHS Risk Assessment (BRA)
Identification, assessment and management of OHS risks related to the scope of work. The methodology used for the risk assessment must be provided together with the BRA
	
	
	

	5
	Valid Letter of Good Standing (COIDA or equivalent)
	
	
	

	6
	OHS policy signed by CEO
The submitted policy must comply to OHS Act Section 7
	
	
	

	7
	OHS Competency
(Consider scope of work, risks , OHS plan and applicability) CV’s and qualifications / certificates
· Safety officer
· SHE rep
· First aider
· Incident investigator
	
	
	

	
	· TOTAL
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Approved/ Not Approved



Score:
0 = Document not submitted OR submitted but does not satisfy the minimum requirements
1 = Document submitted and the content satisfy the minimum requirements






















ANNEXURE E – ENVIRONMENTAL EVALUATION CRITERIA

	
[image: Black on White[2]a]
	GAUTENG OPERATING UNIT: ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR Repairs of minisubs in the Gauteng Cluster
	

	Item no.
	
	Weight (%)
	

	Part A
	Minimum Requirements for Environmental Management System
EMS as per ISO 14001:2015. Certification is not required by suppliers only compliance thereof
	Score 
	

	1
	Environmental Management Policy
	30
	

	1.1
	Company’s environmental policy (Integrated or Non-integrated with safety)
	
	

	1.2
	Environmental Policy must Commit to Compliance to all relevant Environmental Legislation/ Laws, Pollution prevention and continual improvement
	
	

	1.3
	Environmental policy must be signed-off by the company senior member (MD/CEO)
	
	

	2
	Environmental Resources roles and responsibility
	10
	

	
	Signed Appointment letter stating environmental resources responsibilities
	
	

	3
	Competence, Training and development
	5
	

	
	Have representatives of the organisation attended environmental law training or Evidence of an Environmentally related Certificate or Diploma or Degree?
	
	

	4
	Control of documents
	5
	

	
	All the organisations documents to be controlled
	
	

	5
	Emergency Preparedness 
	10
	

	
	Response to Environmental incidents such as bees, wildlife interaction, hydrocarbon spillages
	
	

	6
	Environmental Method statement for site rehabilitation
	10
	

	
	Method statement of how site will possibly be rehabilitated in different environments such as in close proximity to water courses, in wetlands on slopes and road reserves
	
	

	7
	Non-conformity and corrective Action procedure
	10
	

	
	Procedure on management of non-conformances (NCRs in relation to environmental non-conformances
	
	

	          8
	Waste Management Plan
	10
	

	8.1
	List of waste streams during construction and register of such waste types
	
	

	8.2
	Management plan for possible waste streams (storage and disposal of waste streams)
	
	

	          9
	Environmental Management plan must include the following details
	10
	

	
	Access Control
	1
	

	
	Landowner liaison
	1
	

	
	Monitoring
	1
	

	
	Sanitation
	1
	

	
	Protection of water resources
	1
	

	
	Storm Water Management
	1
	

	
	Vegetation management
	1
	

	
	Hazardous Substances Management
	1
	

	
	Noise Control
	1
	

	
	Waste management
	1
	

	
	
	
	



ANNEXURE F – FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

BUSINESS EVALUATION AND ANALYSIS SERVICES

Requirements for financial analysis

In order for the Finance to be able to perform financial analysis of companies / entities for the above contract, latest 2 years comparative financial statements containing the following information will be required:

Companies 
· Signed Independent Auditors’ Report/Reviewers’ Report
· Directors’ Report
· Statement of Financial Position (comparative figures)
· Statement of Comprehensive Income (comparative figures)
· Statement of Changes in Equity (comparative figures)
· Statement of Cash Flows (comparative figures)
· Notes to the financial statements

Close Corporations

· Signed Accounting Officers’ Report 
· Members’ Report
· Statement of Financial Position (comparative figures)
· Statement of Comprehensive Income (comparative figures)
· Statement of Changes in Equity (comparative figures)
· Statement of Cash Flows (comparative figures) 
· Notes to the Financial statements

Joint Venture

· Signed joint venture agreement indicating percentage shareholding per entity
 
New or entities that are less than 1 year old

· Owner’s 5-year tax returns
· Owner’s financial position  (income and expenditure, assets and liabilities statements)

Applicable to Companies, Entities, JV’s and Close Corporations

· A Signed Guarantee Letter (if a subsidiary which is tendering does not have its own set of financial statements or its financials are consolidated into that of the Holding company, the Holding company must provide a guarantee letter which will allow Eskom to utilize its financial information for the purposes of their subsidiary and to further guarantee any liability which may arise as a result of a subsidiary failing to perform in terms of the contract).

Other information, where applicable:
1. Parent Company Guarantee (PCG) by the holding company; or
1. Performance Bond from their bank
Please note that the PCG and the Performance Bond should be on an Eskom Legal approved template.
1. If it happens that the entity does not have a holding company and/or the bank cannot provide the Performance Bond, the owners of the entity should provide their tax returns for the past 5 years plus personal financial position.
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Evaluation criteria for vandalised mini-subs 2022.pdf
Technical evaluation criteria for vandalises Type A and Type B mini-
substations

1. Technical evaluation criteria for repairs to be done on vandalised mini-substations:
Mandatory requirements

Level 1 gatekeeper

Acceptance

Criteria Evidence
Yes/No

Submit a signed letter with the company letterhead,
that states and guarantees that the following
activities for a minisub enclosure are done in-
house:

e Cutting 6mm thick 3CR12 steel
e Bending 6mm thick 3CR12 steel

e Welding (Metal arc (MMA) or Tungsten Signed letter
Inert Gas (TIG))

e Post Welding cleaning

e Powder Coating with Avocado C12 colour
in accordance with SANS 1091

e The corrosion protection of the installed
metal part shall be of category C5
according to specification 240-75655504

Any “NO” on the above scores, the supplier will be disqualified.

2. Technical evaluation criteria for repairs to be done on vandalised mini-substations:
Level 2 scoring- (only submission that passes Level 1 gatekeepers)

TASK / MEASURE

Criteria Clause Weighting Score

Submit a signed letter with the company
letterhead, that states and guarantees that the
following scope of work, where applicable, can be
done:

e Replace/install mini-sub doors, roof
and/or padlock protection facility with
new ones made of 6mm thick 3CR12,
stainless steel or zinc metal sprayed mild
steel (depending on the vandalized part) SANS 1029 25

e Allreplaced/installed mini-sub doors (MV
and LV) shall be recessed such that they
are flush with the sides of the mini-sub
enclosure

e The corrosion protection of the
replaced/installed metal part shall be of
category C5 according to specification
240-75655504

Sensitivity: Controlled Disclosure





2. Technical evaluation criteria for repairs to be done on vandalised mini-substations:
Level 2 scoring- (only submission that passes Level 1 gatekeepers)

TASK / MEASURE

Criteria

Clause

Weighting

Score

e Replace/install heavy duty hinges on all
the doors

e The final colour of the mini-sub enclosure
shall be Avocado C12 in accordance with
SANS 1091

e Supply and install busbars

e Supply and install jumpers to busbars

e Supply and install missing wiring on the
LV and/or MV compartment

e Re-test LV panel as per SANS 1029

e Re-testthe RMU (to be arranged with the
OEM)

Equipment and tools list

NB: All tools must be owned; marks will be
deducted if tools are hired

Print and complete the
provided tool/equipment list
on annexure A and sign

15

Vehicles

Provide proof of ownership for LDV, and proof of
ownership or hiring letter for a truck (LDV, Truck)

Print and complete the
vehicle list on annexure B
and sign, and/or submit
hiring letter where applicable

20

PPE for all staff assigned to the job with register
signed by the employees

PPE asset register

20

Provide staff training certificates from the service
providers or training instructors. This is to ensure
that staff is trained and qualified to do the work
e.g., welding, crimping, etc.

20

TOTAL

/100

NB: The tenderer must score 80% on the scoring phase of this this evaluation to get compliance. A

score below 80% will result in disqualification.

Compiled by: Sandisiwe Mtshaulana

Signature:m/

Date: 27/01/2023

Approved by: Stephen Nkwane
Signature:

Date: 27/01/2023

Sensitivity: Controlled Disclosure






Annexure A

EiT Tool/Equipment Owned/hired Max Score
1 Handheld welding machine 3
2 220V generator 3
3 Multi-meter 1
4 Polarity tester 1
5 Crimping Tools 4P1 MV 1
6 Hex Crimping Tool LV 2
7 Barricading for the working 2
space
8 Road traffic signage 2
Total 15
Signature: Date:

Sensitivity: Controlled Disclosure






Annexure B

Vehicles Registration number Owned/Hired | Max Score

5-10 ton truck 10

LDVs 10

Total 20
Signature: Date:

Sensitivity: Controlled Disclosure
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1. Introduction

It is important that a site be characterised in terms of its expected atmospheric corrosivity prior to the selection
of appropriate corrosion protection systems.

Typical on-site factors or types of microclimates which can cause breakdown of protective coatings include the
following:

. Exposure to sunlight

. Exposure to sea breezes

. Temperature

. Moisture

. Air pollutants

. Use or normal wear and tear
. Land contours etc.

2. Supporting clauses
2.1 Scope

The document specifies the corrosion protection methods to be used for new Eskom Distribution and
Transmission equipment exposed to indoor and outdoor environments. The standard covers coatings for new
mild steel and hot dip galvanised mild steel, as well as 3CR12, 316 and 304L stainless steel fabricated
equipment for use in various corrosive environments.

The Contractor shall refer to the Project Manager for queries related to this standard or items not addressed
in this standard.

The standards detailed herein shall not be modified in any way without the written approval of the Project
Manager.

2.1.1 Purpose

None

2.1.2 Applicability

This document shall apply to Eskom Distribution and Transmission Divisions.
2.2 Normative/informative references

Parties using this document shall apply the most recent edition of the documents listed in the following
paragraphs.

2.2.1 Normative

[1] ASTM D4414: Standard practice for measurement of wet film thickness by notch gauges

[2] ASTM E376: Measuring coating thickness by magnetic field or eddy current electro-magnetic test
methods. (Can be used as alternative to SANS ISO 2808).

[3] BS EN 22063: Metallic and other inorganic coatings. Thermal spraying. Zinc, aluminium and their
alloys.

[4] ISO 2409. Paints and varnishes — Cross cut test.

[5] ISO 4624. Paints and varnishes — Pull-off test for adhesion.

ESKOM COPYRIGHT PROTECTED

When downloaded from the WEB, this document is uncontrolled and the responsibility rests with the user
to ensure it is in line with the authorized version on the WEB.





Document Classification: Controlled Disclosure

CORROSION PROTECTION STANDARD FOR NEW Unique Identifier: 240-75655504
INDOOR AND OUTDOOR ESKOM EQUIPMENT, L

COMPONENTS, MATERIALS AND STRUCTURES Revision: 2
MANUFACTURED FROM STEEL STANDARD Page: 5 of 42

[6]

[7]

[8]

(9]

[10]

[11]

[12]

[13]

[14]
[15]
[16]
[17]
[18]
[19]
[20]

[21]

[22]
(23]

[24]

[25]

[26]
[27]

(28]

ISO 4628 — 1. Paints and varnishes — Evaluation of degradation of coatings — Designation of quantity
and size of defects, and of intensity of uniform changes in appearance — Part 1: General introduction
and designation system.

ISO 4628 — 3. Paints and varnishes — Evaluation of degradation of coatings — Designation of quantity
and size of defects, and of intensity of uniform changes in appearance — Part 3: Assessment of degree
of rusting.

ISO 8501-1. Preparation of steel substrates before application of paints and related products — Visual
assessment of surface cleanliness — Part 1: Rust grades and preparation grades of uncoated steel
substrates and of steel substrates after overall removal of previous coatings.

ISO 8502-3. Preparation of steel substrates before application of paint and related products — Test
for the assessment of surface cleanliness — Part 3: Assessment of dust on steel surfaces prepared
for painting (pressure sensitive tape method). (Can be used as alternative to SANS 5769).

ISO 8502-6. Preparation of steel substrates before application of paint and related products — Test
for the assessment of surface cleanliness — Part 6: Extraction of soluble contaminants for analysis —
The Bresle method.

ISO 8503-4. Preparation of steel substrates before application of paint and related products — Surface
roughness characteristics of blast-cleaned steel substrates — Part 4: Method for the calibration of ISO
surface profile comparators and for the determination of surface profile — Stylus instrument procedure.
(Can be used as alternative to SANS 5772).

SANS ISO 9002: Quality systems — Model for quality assurance in production, installation and
servicing.

ISO 12944-3. Paint and varnishes — Corrosion protection of steel structures by protective paint
systems. Part 3: Design considerations.

ISO 9223: Corrosion of metal and alloys — Corrosivity of atmospheres — Classification.

ISO 14713: Protection of iron and steel structures — Zinc and aluminium coatings — Guidelines.
SAHDGA 01-1990 — Code of practice for surface preparation and application of organic coatings.
SANS 1091: National colour standards for paints

SANS 10064: The preparation of steel surfaces for coating.

SANS 1274: Coatings applied by the powder-coating process.

SANS 1391 (1-3): Thermally sprayed metal coatings Part 1: Zinc and aluminium coatings for the
protection of iron and steel against atmospheric corrosion.

SANS / ISO 2808: Paints and Varnishes: Determination of film thicknesses (Can be used as
alternative to ASTM E376).

SANS 5159: Adhesion of paint and varnish films (cross-cut test).

SANS 5769: Cleanliness of blast-cleaned steel surfaces for painting thicknesses (Can be used as
alternative to ISO 8502-3).

SANS 5770: Preparation of steel substrates before the application of paints and related products —
Test for the assessment of cleanliness of blast-cleaned steel surface — Freedom from certain soluble
salts.

SANS 5772: Preparation of steel substrates before the application of paints and related products —
Surface roughness characteristics of blast-cleaned steel surfaces — Profile of blast-cleaned surfaces
determined by a micrometer profile gauge (Can be used as alternative to ISO 8503-4).

SANS 630:1972: Decorative high gloss enamel paints

SANS 121 (ISO 1461): Hot-dip galvanised coating on fabricated iron and steel articles — Specification
and test methods.

SANS 53811 (EN 13811). Sherardizing — Zinc diffusion coatings on ferrous products — Specification.
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[29] SIS 055900: Swedish Code of Practice - Pictorial surface preparation standard for painted steel
surfaces. (Can be used as alternative to ISO 8501 — 1).

[30] Eskom Distribution — Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011.

2.2.2 Informative

None

2.3 Definitions

2.3.1 General
Definition Description

Approved Refers to written approval by the Project Manager

Coat/coating/film

Refers to single layer of a product.

Coating System

Coating system is an all-embracing term including generic type, the number of
coats, the thickness of each and the overall thickness of the system

Contractor

Means the person(s) named as Contractor in the Contract Agreement.

Detailed Specification
(DS)

Plant/ltem specific corrosion protection specifications as attached in Section
3.1.9

High strength friction
grip bolts

High strength friction grip bolts are bolts of high tensile steel, used in conjunction
with high strength nuts and hardened steel washer, which are tightened to a pre-
determined shank tension in order that the clamping action thus afforded will
transfer loads in the connected members by friction between the parts in contact
and not by shear or bearing in the bolts.

Inspector Someone with vast experience in the application of coatings and ideally qualified
as a NACE International or SAQCC [South African Quality Certification
Committee] Coating Inspector.

Manufacturer Means the company that supplies the paint.

Product Data Sheet

Technical document issued by the Paint/Material Supplier for their products,
detailing the physical, chemical and performance qualities of the material, as
well all necessary information related to the safe handling and application of the
materials.

Supervisor Refers to a person having a minimum of two years’ experience in the field of
surface preparation and application of surface coatings.
2.3.2 Disclosure classification

Controlled disclosure: controlled disclosure to external parties (either enforced by law, or discretionary).

2.4 Abbreviations
Abbreviation Description
DFT /d.f.t Dry film thickness.
DS Detailed specification
ISO International Organisation for Standardisation
MIO Micaceous ion oxide
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Abbreviation Description
RP Repair Procedures
SANS South African National Standards
SAQCC South African Qualification and Certification Committee for Corrosion.
w.f.t Wet film thickness

2.5 Roles and responsibilities

Not applicable.

2.6 Process for monitoring

Not applicable.

2.7 Related/supporting documents
Not applicable.

3. Requirements

3.1 Health and Safety

a)

b)

3.2

It is important to realise that health and safety hazards can occur at different stages of the coating
process, i.e. during surfaces preparation, storage of paint, application of paint and the service use of
the coated surface, and that regular exposure to toxic elements may cause long-term health
problems. Therefore, before any work commences, the Contractor shall ensure that he conforms to
all statutory and regulatory requirements as reflected in all applicable Acts and regulations governing
occupational safety and health.

Emphasis is placed on the following:

1) Proper safety procedures and risk assessments shall be in place prior to any painting work
being carried out.

2) Special care shall be taken when working with all organic liquid materials. Prior to the use of
any of these specifications, the Material Safety Data Sheets for each product to be used shall
be obtained from the relevant coating supplier/manufacturer.

3) The use of any flammable products, such as solvents, cleaning agents, etc. in confined
spaces shall be closely monitored by a Qualified Safety Representative. Proper ventilation
of the internals shall be established and strictly monitored.

4) The Contractor shall ensure that the necessary protective equipment, clothing and safety
measures are provided for each of his workers.

Environmental

The Contractor shall ensure that any solid waste materials or liquids stripped or generated during the surface
preparation and coating processes are discarded in accordance with all statutory and regulatory requirements,
or as governed by Eskom’s Environmental Management Procedures.
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3.3 Quality assurance, control and surveillance
3.3.1 Paint supervisor and coating inspector requirements

Most coating failures on newly painted surfaces are the result of poor surface preparation. Therefore, all
coating work shall be overseen by a full-time, experienced paint supervisor. As a “minimum?” this person shall
have a recognised SAQCC or NACE coatings inspection qualification and at least two years’ experience in the
field of surface preparation and application of surface coatings.

3.3.2 Contactor quality requirements and documentation

a) The Contractor and his paint manufacturer shall have in place a quality system detailing application
techniques, processes, quality control methods and inspection points. SABS ISO 9000 series shall
be referred to for guidance.

b) Eskom may witness the final inspection and may elect to have witness and hold points other than
the final inspection. Prior to the commencement of work, the Contactor shall confirm with Eskom in
writing, the date of the commencement of work and Eskom’s inspection requirements.

c) In all cases, the Contractor shall be responsible for meeting the quality requirements and keep
records of all inspections and tests. These shall include quality control plans, inspection sheets, batch
certificates, daily inspection reports, as well as material and safety data sheets. The use of an
independent coating inspector by the Contractor is also strongly advised.

3.3.3 Eskom or third party quality surveillance inspections

The Project Manager may enforce witness and hold points during surface preparation and application of the
coating system. Quality surveillance inspections may also be carried out by a third party inspectorate team.
However, any quality surveillance inspections carried out by Eskom staff, the Project Manager or by an
appointed third party inspector shall not relieve the Contractor of his duties or liabilities in terms of quality
assurance and control during application of the coating system, and it is expressly understood that the
Contractor shall not rely on any reports or representations made by such a third party inspector.

3.3.4 Contractor quality documents and inspections

a) Prior to the commencement of work, the Contractor shall confirm with the Project Manager in writing,
the date of the commencement of work and the Project Manager’s inspection requirements.

b) The Contractor shall provide a detailed quality control plan of how the work will be done. This shall
be verified by the Project Manager or a coating specialist i.e. for technical correctness and whether
all the factors have been considered.

c) Prior to the application of any coating material, the selected manufacturer's product and safety data
sheets for the products to be used, shall be obtained by the Contractor. Copies of these data sheets
shall be signed by the coating supplier. This is to ensure that the latest product data sheet has been
provided to the Contractor, that the material manufacturer is aware of this standard, the conditions
under which their product/s will be applied/used and to allow for technical back-up where required.

d) In addition to obtaining updated product data sheets, the Contractor shall establish the impact of any
deviations from the standard recommended application procedures and exposure conditions of the
coating, as well as limitations of use, i.e. compared to the information provided in the most current
product data sheet, prior to the use of the material.

e) The Contractor shall be responsible for preparing and inspection of the metal surfaces to be
protected, the coating application/inspection of the work during and after coating, as well as testing
for electrical insulation defects, if required.

f) In order to comply with this standard, as well as to monitor and record the following parameters
throughout the coating process, the Contractor shall have suitable calibrated equipment on-site at all
times.
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Parameters to be monitored:

o Storage conditions of abrasives and coating materials (here the ambient temperature and humidity
shall be recorded).

. Expiry dates of paint materials.

o Calibration dates of all quality control test equipment.

. Acceptance of surfaces for coating — i.e. filling of imperfections and removal of sharp edges, burrs,
rags, weld spatter in accordance with ISO 12944-3.

. Degree of surface preparation — in accordance with ISO 8501/1 or SIS 055900.

. Blast profile readings — in accordance with SANS 5772 / ISO 8503-4.

) Degree of surface cleanliness — as per SANS 5769 / ISO 8502-3.

. Soluble salts — By means of the Weber Riley, Chlor*Test or Bresle Method (ISO 8502-6) or other
approved standard methods.

. Ambient and substrate temperatures — by means of calibrated temperature probes.

o Relative humidity — with a calibrated humidity meter.

o Dew point — by means of a dew point calculator.

. Other environmental conditions, e.g. incidence of industrial fall-out, mist, rain, etc.

o Mixing times of paint and quantities used.

. Wet film thickness (w.f.t) per each individual coat - in accordance with ASTM D4414.

. Dry film thickness (d.f.t) per each individual coat — in accordance with ASTM E376 / SANS I1SO 2808.

. Overcoating times — as per product data sheet

3.4 Design Requirements

Cognisance shall be taken of the fact that up to 15% of a steel component is seen as critical in terms of
corrosion protection because of inadequate welds, bolted surfaces, sharp edges and areas where dirt and
water can collect. Perfection of such finer points shall form an integral part of the design phase, the details of
which can be obtained from 1SO 12944-3, Paint and varnishes — Corrosion protection of steel structures by
protective paint systems. Part 3:

35 Material Selection and Manufacture
3.5.1 Alternative manufacturer’s or materials

a) In the case of most detailed specifications (DSs), specific products and suppliers are specified of
which the details and performance criteria are provided in Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest
revision). Where alternative manufacturers/materials are favoured, prior approval shall be obtained
from the Project Manager.

b) Where alternative corrosion protection systems or improved methods are known to the Contractor,
prior to the granting of any concessions for change, information of these systems or methods shall
be supported by detailed, technical reports and applicable case studies to show that the proposed
alternatives will meet or exceed Eskom’s performance requirements. Prior approval shall be obtained
from the Project Manager before any alternative coating systems or protection methods can be used.

C) In the case of equipment manufacturer proprietary finishes, these proprietary systems shall only be
used if prior approval has been obtained.
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3.5.2  Material supply, storage, testing, composition and application methods

3.5.2.1 Material Supply

a) All materials, i.e. paint, solvents and cleaning agents for a specific paint system shall be supplied by
the same manufacturer.

b) All coatings, solvents and cleaning materials shall be supplied in sealed, sturdy containers which
have been labelled with all the information necessary to ensure proper storage, mixing, application
and traceability. The coating containers shall be of a size large enough to allow mixing in the
containers themselves.

3.5.2.2 Material Storage

a) All containers (i.e. coatings, solvents and cleaning materials) shall be kept in a storage area that is
completely dry, enclosed, well ventilated, covered and maintained at a temperature compatible with
good preservation of the materials.

b) Should any of the coating containers show traces of leakage prior to use, the contents of that
container shall not be used.

C) Similar to the coatings, all abrasive media shall be stored in an area that is completely dry and
covered to allow for good preservation of the materials.

3.5.2.3 Material Testing

a) All materials (coatings) shall be regularly tested at the manufacturers' factories. The Contractor shall
make sure that regular quality control tests are carried out to ensure that good quality of the materials
is maintained.

b) The following properties shall be closely monitored:

. Quality of raw materials

. Analytical formulation of finished products
. Percentage solids by volume

o Specific gravity

. Colour and gloss

. Drying time

. Viscosity

c) Records of the batch numbers, expiry dates, dates of manufacturing of each type of system used,
shall be retained by the Contractor. These records shall be presented to the Project Manager or his
appointed third-party inspector, prior to commencement of work. The Contractor shall also ensure
that the coating/material manufacturer retains a sample of each batch for at least the guarantee
period (see Section 3.8).

3.5.2.4 Material composition and application methods

a) All coatings shall be consistent and formulated for the proposed application method. If the Contractor
regards the proposed application method as unsuitable for the materials specified, he shall notify the
Project Manager in writing. His proposed alternative application method shall only be used after
approval has been obtained from the Project Manager.

b) All coats of a coating system shall come from the same manufacturer.

c) During application, solvents shall only be used for thinning of the coating:

o When they are specified by the manufacturer as being compatible with the coating material,
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. When the percentage added does not exceed the limits given by the paint manufacturer’s

d)

e)

3.6
3.6.1

b)

c)

3.6.2

b)

c)

d)

3.6.3

a)

b)

c)
d)

product data sheet.

Under no circumstances shall solvents be used that are not supplied by the relevant coating
manufacturer.

In the case of 2-part materials, the splitting of kits as supplied from the factory will not be permitted.
The Contractor either has to make use of smaller kits or needs to plan the coating work in such a
way that any unnecessary wastage of paint is avoided.

Surface Preparation
General

No leniency shall be tolerated in terms of the quality of surface preparation prior to application of the
coatings. It is extremely important that the Contractor endeavour to achieve the best surface
preparation possible, by means of using the latest technologies when it comes to surface preparation
apparatus and materials. The minimum degree of surface preparation shall be as stipulated in the
Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specifications (DS).

Industrial type surface preparation apparatus shall be used to ensure effective and time-efficient
cleaning of surfaces. The Contractor shall ensure that operative standard moisture and grease traps
are installed on all pressurised airlines of which the effectiveness may have to be demonstrated.

In general the following aspects shall always be considered:

. Before application of the protective system, the substrate shall be prepared, in accordance
with each Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specification (DS)'s requirements and
where applicable, as described in detail below.

. All harmful contaminants such as scale, grease, oil, soil, salt residues, corrosion product and
any foreign matter or residues that may affect the performance of the coating system shall
be removed, prior to application of the protective system.

Degreasing
All detrimental deposits of oil or grease spots and any other contaminants shall be removed prior to
the application of the coating system.

Depending on the degree of contamination, degreasing shall be carried out using a water-soluble
alkaline cleaner, alkaline detergent or cold organic solvents.

Following the degreasing operation, all surfaces shall be thoroughly rinsed with clean potable water
to remove any traces of the cleaning agent residues. The surfaces shall thereafter be allowed to dry
completely prior to coating or before continuing with the rest of the surface preparation process.

It is important that clean potable water is used for cleaning, or the surfaces will be left contaminated
after washing.
Acid Cleaning

Cleaning with acids shall only apply where specified in the Detailed Plant/Item Corrosion Protection
Specifications (DS).

Cleaning with acids shall be followed by neutralisation, passivation and rinsing with clean, potable
water.

All acid solutions shall be applied and removed as directed by the manufacturer.

The Contractor shall ensure that no smut is present after acid cleaning or the adhesion of the
coating/lining will be impaired.
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3.6.4 High pressure water jetting

a) High to ultra-high pressure water jetting may be required prior to, or after abrasive blast cleaning, or
subsequent to power and hand-tool cleaning of surfaces to remove excessive salts, paint, scale and
other loose contaminants.

b) All surfaces shall be tested for salt contamination prior to coating. In general the maximum permissible
limit is 100mg/m2. However, where lower values are preferred or considered critical by the paint
supplier, their maximum value shall apply.

C) In the case where water jetting is specified as the only form of surface preparation, the visual
assessment of surface cleanliness shall be as stipulated in the Detailed Item/Plant Corrosion
Protection Specification (DS) and in accordance with ISO 8501-4.

3.6.5 Power and hand-tool cleaning

a) Cleaning by means of hand or power-tools, i.e. wire brushes, chipping hammers, scrapers, grinders,
sanders, needle descalers etc. may only be used where specified in the Detailed Plant/ltem
Corrosion Protection Specification (DS) and the condition of the substrate metal is such that efficient
cleaning can be achieved and where the protective system is designed for application to brushed or
ground surfaces, e.g. in the case of surface tolerant coatings.

b) Prior to power or hand-tool cleaning, all welds shall be free of slag, slag inclusions and pinholes.
Adjacent areas shall be free of weld spatter, which shall be removed by grinding or scraping.

c) Oil and grease deposits shall be removed prior to cleaning as detailed above. In this regard, special
attention shall be paid to drillings, bolt holes, etc.

d) Following the degreasing as described above, all surfaces of steelwork and plant under this category
shall be prepared to remove all loose millscale, rust, paint and other deleterious matter.

e) Hand-tool cleaning may be utilised provided the required standard of finish is achieved. The finish
shall be to the stipulated standard Grade in the Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specification
(DS) and in accordance with 1ISO 8501-1 or SIS 055900. Where necessary, power-tool cleaning
shall be used. Burnishing of the surface shall not be permitted.

f) In all cases, after wire brushing or grinding, all traces of loose material shall be removed from the
surface by compressed air or vacuum cleaning.

Q) Cleaned surfaces shall not be contaminated with oil, grease, rust or other deposits before
coating/lining.

3.6.6 Abrasive blast cleaning

a) Abrasive blast cleaning is by far the preferred method for surface preparation and shall always be
considered first before any other cleaning method is used.

b) Prior to blast cleaning, all surfaces shall be free of oil and grease. Degreasing shall be carried out as
detailed above. In this regard special attention shall be paid to drillings, bolt holes, etc.

c) Prior to abrasive blast cleaning, all welds shall be free of slag, slag inclusions and pinholes. Adjacent
areas shall be free of weld spatter, which shall be removed by grinding or scraping. Here the onus is
on the Contractor to ensure that the surfaces are ready for coating.

d) Different grades and types of blasting media exist. The Contractor shall select the most suitable
abrasive to be used, in combination with a specific coating system. Here the required blast profile
height shall also be taken into consideration.

e) Abrasive blast cleaning shall be carried out by means of industrial equipment suitably designed for
this purpose.

f) The visual degree of surface cleanliness shall be to the requirements stipulated in the Detailed

Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specification (DS) and in accordance with ISO 8501-1 or SIS
055900.
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s)] In general, Grade Sa 2 % and Sa 3 are specified in the case of most protective coating systems. In

h)

k)

the case of the former grade, the requirement is very thorough blast cleaning where at least 95% of
the mill scale, rust and other matter are removed, whereas in the case of Grade Sa 3, the surfaces
must be blast-cleaned to white metal where all traces of rust, mill scale and other foreign matter are
removed. The Contractor shall refer to the relevant pictorial standards as provided in ISO 8501-1 or
SIS 055900 for verification purposes.

In general an anchor profile height of 25 to 75um is recommended for most industrial coating systems
up to a dry film thickness of about 250 micrometres. However, in the case of heavy-duty thicker film
systems, the anchor profile needs to be increased in order to cope with the mounting stresses exerted
by the coating.

The required blast profile height shall be carefully considered and be within the range of the specified
coating system, and as recommended in the product data sheets.

It is important that the blast profile does not exceed the specified thickness of the primer or first coat,
especially where delays in over coating are expected / encountered. Any primed or coated surfaces
showing signs of “measle” corrosion shall be considered defective and shall be re-blasted.

Blast cleaning of severely corroded surfaces may result in high profiles (i.e. > than 100 micrometres).
In these cases, an additional primer coat or second coat will be required. However, agreement shall
be reached between the Contractor and coating manufacturer as to the most suitable profile range
for a specific coating system. The following shall only be used as a guideline with respect to blast
profile requirements.

Table 1: Typical profile ranges

Coating/Lining Thickness Minimum profile Maximum profile

(Total) (um) (um)

90 to 180 micrometres 30 micrometers 60 micrometers

120 to 225 micrometres 40 micrometers 75 micrometers

150 to 300 micrometres 50 micrometers 100 micrometers

300 to 500 micrometres 75 micrometers 100 micrometers

>500 micrometres 75 micrometers 125 micrometers

m)

0)

p)

Abrasive blast cleaning shall be carried out on dry surfaces by means of dry air, free from impurities
(in particular grease or oils), in an atmosphere where relative humidity is less than 85%, and the
ambient temperature above +5°C. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to demonstrate
that the air is clean and dry.

Blast cleaned surfaces shall be coated as soon as possible after treatment and preferably within 4
hours. Alternatively, provided no deterioration of the blast has taken place, and the surface
cleanliness requirements of ISO 8501-1 or SIS 055900 are maintained, the primer coat may be
applied within the same working shift. Under no circumstances shall uncoated blast-cleaned
surfaces be permitted to stand overnight. Any surfaces showing signs of flash rusting or change of
colour shall be re-blasted.

Caution shall be taken to ensure adequate protection of machined parts or any other part not
requiring blast cleaning and coating/lining. Every effort shall be taken to avoid deformation of the
substrate and damage to welds, as well as to machined surfaces.

Blast cleaning may be carried out using grit or slag (silica sand is not allowed). Irrespective of the
type of abrasive used for blast cleaning, it shall in all cases be free of foreign matter such as clay,
humus, chlorides and bitumen. The use of re-cycled blasting media is not allowed for the final blast.

The Contractor shall satisfy himself that the abrasive materials used conform to all national health
and safety standards.
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q) Good quality abrasives shall be used in order to minimise the amount of waste grit being generated
and contamination of the surfaces.

r Subsequent to blast cleaning, all traces of blasting media and dust shall be removed from the surface
by vacuum cleaning or compressed dry air.

S) Cleaned surfaces shall not be contaminated with oil, grease, rust or other deposits before coating.
Unnecessary traffic prior to painting shall be avoided.

t) Blast cleaning on site shall only be carried out in areas approved by the Project Manager.

3.7 Coating Application General Procedures

a) Except where alternative application methods are mentioned in the Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion
Protection Specification (DS), all coatings shall be applied by means of airless spray technique. This
technique is not only normally quicker than other common application methods, but also usually
produces higher film thicknesses per coat, as well as a smoother and more uniform film of coating.
The correct hose, pump, tip and air cap shall be used.

b) General requirements that shall be followed to ensure that the coating is given optimal opportunity

to perform to acceptable standards are:

1) Painting is a skilled process and shall only be carried out by capable and experienced
personnel, as well as with equipment suitably designed for application of the coating.

2) All surfaces shall be inspected prior to coating, to ensure that the standard of cleaning
complies with the criteria as stipulated in the Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection
Specification (DS) and is in accordance with ISO 8501-1 or SIS 055900. The blast profile
shall also be verified.

3) Immediately before coating, the blast-cleaned steel shall not exhibit more than 0,2% dust
and debris when tested in accordance with SANS 5769.

4) Coating application and cleaning shall not take place when site conditions are likely to
negatively affect these operations. The Contractor shall ensure that the necessary protective
equipment is used to prevent contamination of the coatings and to minimise delays due to
such site conditions.

5) Surrounding areas shall be protected from overspray and paint contamination.

6) Equipment name plates and identification plates shall be protected from coating. No
coatings shall be applied over any surfaces where these will adversely affect the
performance of the item or component.

7 All newly primed steelwork, prior to erection, shall be stored clear of the ground on trestles
or other suitable material. The steelwork shall be placed in such a manner as to ensure
adequate drainage of rainwater and condensation.

8) The different coats shall all be evenly applied to form smooth, continuous, unbroken layers
free from sags, runs and other defects. Each coat shall provide complete coverage and the
film thicknesses for the different coats shall be as specified in the Detailed Plant/ltem
Corrosion Protection Specifications (DS).

9) With respect to the methods of application, overcoating requirements, pot life, mixing,
induction time, straining, thinning, drying times, etc. the manufacturer's recommendations
(as per the product data sheet) shall be strictly adhered to.

10) Mixing of the paint shall be carried out in accordance with the product data sheet. Here
proper industrial type power mixing tools shall be used and the paint shall be supplied in
containers large enough for mixing of the paint.

11) During application, the relative humidity shall not exceed 85% and ambient temperatures
shall be between 10°C and 30°C. However, in the case of special coatings, these conditions
may be waived providing the requirements as stipulated in the product data sheet are met.
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12) Using the above data, the dew point shall be determined by means of a suitable dew point

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

21)
22)

23)

24)

25)

calculator. During coating application, the substrate temperature shall be at least 3°C above
the dew point.

The maximum/minimum substrate temperature at the time of coating application shall be in
accordance with the product data sheet.

Care shall be taken to ensure adequate coating of all bolt and mouse holes, welds, fasteners,
edges and other areas normally prone to corrosion attack. These areas shall always be stripe
coated by brush prior to application of the rest of the coating system. Under no circumstances
shall stripe coating be carried out by roller or spray-application.

Where more than one coat is applied, the colour of each coat shall be clearly different from
the colour of the previous coat. However, two finishing coats of the same colour may be
applied to achieve complete colour uniformity. All finishing colours shall be to the Project
Manager’s approval. In the case where aesthetic requirements are secondary, repairs after
final testing shall be carried out using a different colour. All primers shall be of a contrasting
colour to the newly prepared substrate.

The coating shall be evenly applied to form a smooth, continuous, unbroken layer/s free from
sags, runs and other defects.

Each coat shall provide complete coverage and the film thickness per coat shall be as
specified in the product data sheet, providing any necessary deviations and the impacts
thereof can be supported by technically correct research data.

The coating thicknesses shall comply with the relevant Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion
Protection Specification (DS). All coating thicknesses on metal substrates shall be measured
in accordance with ASTM E376 or ISO 2808. These measurements shall be made on
surfaces free of contaminants. Calibrated electronic instruments and shims shall be used
for determination of film thicknesses.

Thicknesses of both magnetic and non-magnetic substrates shall also be checked by
verification of the quantity of coating consumed and by means of wet film thickness
measurements.

The average thickness of each coat shall be within the range as defined in the Detailed
Plant/ltem Coating Specification (DS). 90% of random readings shall be equal to or greater
than the lower specified thickness. No individual reading shall be less than 80% of the lower
specified thickness. No individual reading shall be greater than 120% of the upper specified
thickness. In the areas where stripe coating is carried out, the maximum total specified dry
film thickness range shall allow for the additional coat.

All deficient film thicknesses shall be rectified prior to release.

Where excessive film thicknesses can be detrimental to the integrity of the coating, the
manufacturer's recommended maximum (as indicated in the Product Data Sheet) shall

apply.

During application of the coatings, the Contractor shall ensure adequate ventilation to avoid
explosions or toxic effects of the solvent vapour.

Damaged paint, due to handling and erection of components, shall be cleaned and repaired.
Rust spots and any other deleterious matter shall be removed. Spot repairs shall be carried
out such that the patch painting extends at least 25 mm beyond the damaged areas. Spot
repairs shall reinstate each of the previous coats and shall commence directly after surface
preparation.

Due to the difficulty in repairing some coatings, if the defect cannot be rectified by patch
repairing or by application of an additional coat of the material, then the component shall be
repainted.
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26) In the case where dust and other light contaminants have settled on newly painted surfaces,

or in the case of pre-coated steel, prior to the application of additional coats of paint or
overcoating on site, the contaminants shall be removed by washing of the surfaces with clean
potable water, followed by drying. Removal of more persistent contaminants shall be dealt
with on a case by case basis.

27) All coatings shall be given adequate time for curing prior to service. On average, for most
organic coating systems, full cure is achieved after 7 days at 25°C providing good ventilation
iS maintained.

28) Prior to commencement of any coating process, the following shall be verified:
i. That the Contractor has the correct paint on site as specified.
il The materials are all from the same supplier and if relevant, of different colours.

iii. The containers are sealed / unopened.

iv. The paint is fresh and within its expiry date.
V. The Contractor has the proper mixing equipment, e.g. electric mixers.
Vi. The Contractor and employees have proper safety equipment on site.

29) The adhesion of the coating may be verified by means of cross cut or pull-off adhesion tests.
The method to be used shall be approved by all parties concerned and the damaged areas
repaired by the Contractor at no additional expense to Eskom.

3.8 Guarantees

3.8.1 Signing of product data sheets and contract order acceptance

It is important to note that all the Detailed Specifications (DSs) have been compiled based on long-term
laboratory and natural exposure testing of numerous materials, as well as written recommendations provided
by the various paint suppliers. Since the Contractor is obliged to submit signed product data sheets to the
Project Manager at the time of the Contract Order Acceptance, in doing so, and by supplying materials to the
Contractor, both the Contractor and his paint supplier bind themselves to a minimum guarantee period of 36
months in terms of the performance of the corrosion protection system.

3.8.2 Performance guarantee

As a minimum, the guarantee regarding the performance of the corrosion protection system is stipulated as
follows:

The coating will be considered defective should rusting of the coated surfaces develop within 36 months where
it is rated more than Ri 1 or 0.05% (in accordance with ISO 4628-3)

and/or

Blistering, flaking, delamination, cracking, alligatoring, or any other defects not specifically listed, are present
that in the opinion of the Project Manager or his coating specialist, reduces the aesthetic appearance or
compromises the integrity of the coating system.

It is important to note that this guarantee period is based on the natural exposure testing of coatings over a
period of more than 20 years, where it has been shown that most defective or unsuitable coatings fail within
the first two to three years of service. Research has also shown that when the rating for the degree of rusting
of coated surfaces exceeds Ri 1 (>0.05%), that the coating is no longer providing adequate protection of the
underlying substrate.
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3.9 Classification and Selection of Corrosion Protection Systems

3.9.1

Classification of corrosivity of atmospheres

The Detailed Specification (DS) to be used for the corrosion protection of the various items of plant shall be as
defined in 3 of this document. Each procedure has been provided with an arbitrary reference number (e.g. DS
-1) which should not be linked to other specifications or previous versions of this document. The procedures
distinguish between different atmospheric environments of which the corrosivity is classified in terms of 1ISO

9223 as follows:

Table 2: Categories of corrosivity of atmospheres

Corrosivity category General description Corrosivity Corrosion rate for mild steel
Ci Indoors and Desert to rural Very low <1.3 pm/yr
Cc2 Rural to light industrial Low <25 pum/yr
C3 Moderate iqdustrial or Medium <50 pm/yr
marine
c4 High industrial or marine High <80 pum/yr
C5 Severe / heavy industrial or Very high <200 pm/yr
marine
References:
. CSIR - Callaghan, BG Atmospheric corrosion testing in Southern Africa — Results of a twenty year

national exposure programme

. TSI Investigation Reports - Eskom Resources and Strategy Research Reports and
SABS ISO 12944 -2: 1998.

. ISO 9223: Corrosion of metal and alloys — Corrosivity of atmospheres — Classification.

3.9.2 Corrosion protection requirements

Table 3: Type of environment versus corrosion protection requirements

Hot dip
Cor_roswlty Environment Cc_:rrosmn rate of Mild steel g_alvanlsed and Stainless steel | 3CR12
Rating mild steel zinc metal
sprayed steel
DS 13 or DS14 bainti fional Painting optional -
VERY LOW Must be painted | Painting optional | —2nind optional |or;a more for
Indoors Less than 5um/yr - - - Mmore OF | aesthetic/colour
pmiyr- | DS-1or DS-20or | - more  for | aesthetic/colour -
(€1 DS-3 or DS5 ; . coding purposes
or aesthetic/colour | coding purposes
coding purposes
DS 13 or DS14 . .
- . Painting optional | painting optional -
_ Painting optional | 7 ,5re for | more for
Low  To | outdoors '\DA;S; be FE)aSmged e oo aestneticlcolour | aesthetic/colour
HIGH (Inland and | 5 to 80um/yr DS:7 or DS-6 or g(e)(sjin; ;fu?go()sljers co Ing' pur.poses codlng- purposes
(C2to C4) industrial) . o If required: If required:
(DS-8%) If required: DS-18 or DS-19 | DS-9 or DS-10
DS-15 or DS-16 (DS12¥)
or DS-17
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Hot dip
Cor_rosmty Environment C(_)rroswn rate of Mild steel g_alvanlsed and Stainless steel | 3CR12
Rating mild steel zinc metal
sprayed steel
outd Must be | ps 13 Or DS 14 | Painting
HIGH  TO | DUdoors galvanised torl Must be duplex | recommended | Painting
VERY HIGH S/CO""S""" H?“ﬂ 80 to 200um/yr ;g‘r‘;ye g Mo | painted to protect from | recommended
ery ig .
(C410CS) | i qustrial) then  duplex | DS-15 or DS-16 | fuststaining DS-11
coated or DS-17 DS-18 or DS-19 | (DS12%)

* DS-8 and DS-12 - Coating specifications only to be used where spray painting techniques cannot be used.

Table 4: Summary of Detailed Specifications

DS Number Indoors / Environmental Conditions Applicability
Outdoors
DS-1 Indoors Very low to Low corrosive Powder coating of mild steel indoor
environments components
DS-2 Indoors Very low to Low corrosive Spray painting of mild steel indoor
environments components — Alkyd system
DS-3 Indoors Very low to Low corrosive Powder coating of mild steel outdoor
environments components - Epoxy system
DS-4 Indoors Very low to Low corrosive Spray painting of mild steel outdoor
environments components — Polyurethane system
DS-5 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Spray painting of mild steel outdoor
components — Polyurethane system
DS-6 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Powder coating of mild steel outdoor
components
DS-7 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Spray painting of mild steel outdoor
components — Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DS-8 Outdoors Warning: The following procedure applies to
This specification shall only be the flow coating of mild steel
used to protect mild steel components
components, which due to their
complicated geometry, cannot be
properly painted by normal spray
techniques. Before this technique
can be used, the supplier shall
submit full details regarding the
specific products to be used, as
well as the reasons why the spray-
application specifications cannot
be used. Permission to use this
specification shall only be given
once Eskom has confirmed that
spray application isn’t feasible.
DS-9 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Spray painting of 3CR12 fabricated
components — Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DsS-10 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Powder coating of 3CR12 fabricated
components
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DS Number Indoors / Environmental Conditions Applicability
Outdoors
DS-11 Outdoors High to Very High corrosive Spray painting of 3CR12 fabricated
environments components — Epoxy/Polyurethane
system
DS-12 Outdoors Warning: Flow coating of 3CR12 components
This specification shall only be
used to protect 3CR12 steel
components, which due to their
complicated geometry, cannot be
properly painted by normal spray
techniques. Before this technique
can be used, the supplier shall
submit full details regarding the
specific products to be used, as
well as the reasons why the spray-
application specifications cannot
be used. Permission to use this
specification shall only be given
once Eskom has confirmed that
spray application isn’t feasible.
DS-13 Outdoors Low to Medium corrosive Hot dip galvanising of structural
environments — Uncoated steelwork and other fabricated
Medium to Very High corrosive components
environments — Duplex coated
DS-14 Outdoors Low to Medium corrosive Zinc metal-spraying of mild steel
environments — Uncoated surfaces
Medium to Very High corrosive
environments — Duplex coated
DS-15 Outdoors Medium to Very High Corrosive Duplex coating of new hot dip
Environments galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed
surfaces — Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DS-16 Outdoors Medium to Very High Corrosive Duplex coating of new hot dip
Environments galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed
surfaces - Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DS-17 Outdoors Medium to Very High Corrosive Duplex coating of new hot dip
Environments galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed
surfaces — Water based system
DS-18 Outdoors High to Very High Corrosive Spray painting of 316 or 304L
Environments stainless steel fabricated
components - Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DS-19 Outdoors High to Very High Corrosive Spray painting of 316 or 304L
Environments stainless steel fabricated
components — Water-based system
DS-20 Outdoors Where required Repair of new galvanised or zinc
metal-sprayed surfaces
DS-21 Outdoors Where required Patch repair of newly painted
damaged surfaces
DS-22 Outdoors Small items Hot spun galvanising or sherardizing

of small to medium threaded and
cast iron articles.
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3.9.3 Special Notes

a) It is important to realise that not all site conditions can be simulated under laboratory conditions.
Therefore, the practical applications of the specified corrosion protection systems will depend on the
specific product requirements and actual site conditions. These must be considered by the
Contractor prior to Contract Signature.

b) Various options are provided. This is to provide the opportunity for the Contractor to select a material
that he is most familiar with and to accommodate Contractor specific constraints. The Contractor
needs to familiarise himself with the constraints related to the site application of these materials.

C) Where proprietary coatings are specified, these shall be subject to the Project Manager’s approval.

d) Special care needs to be taken when working with all organic coatings. Prior to the use of any of
these specifications, the Material Safety Data Sheets shall be obtained from the relevant coating
supplier/manufacturer and a copy shall be given to the Project Manager.

e) With respect to the particulars not covered by the Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection
Specifications (DS) (e.g. equipment requirements, overcoating and curing times, mixing ratios, pot
life, thinning, safety precautions etc.), the manufacturer’s recommendations shall be strictly adhered
to (refer to Product Data Sheets).

f) All coatings shall be given adequate time for curing prior to service according to the Detailed
Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specifications (DS) or Product Data Sheets. On average, for most
organic coatings systems, full cure is achieved after 7 days at 25°C.

0)] The performance of all of these systems will depend on the quality of application.

h) During the applications of all coatings, care shall be taken to ensure adequate ventilation, to allow
for good visibility and proper curing of the coatings and to avoid/minimise health and safety risks.

i) Any solid waste materials or liquids stripped or generated during the coating operation shall be
discarded in accordance with the Site Environmental Management Plan.

)] Repairs to galvanising shall be carried out in accordance with SANS 121 or ISO 1461

k) The colour of each coat shall be different to the previous coat and the final coat shall be as specified.

) The specifications mentioned in this document shall apply unless otherwise specified by the Project
Manager whereby his alternative requirements shall take precedence.

m) For Very Low to Medium corrosive environments, unless otherwise detailed in the equipment
specification the colour of the final coat shall be “Avocado”, C12 of SANS 1091.

n) For High to High Corrosive conditions, unless otherwise detailed in the equipment specification the
colour of the final coat shall be “Dark Admiralty Grey”, G12 of SANS 1091.

3.9.4 Detailed plant/item corrosion protection specifications.

3.9.4.1 Specification DS -1

3.9.4.1.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to powder coating of mild steel indoor components.

(Indoors)
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Activity: Detail
Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1) or degrease, rinse, pickle and
phosphate.
Pre-treatment: The method used for cleaning the substrate and the need to prime the substrate prior

to the application of the powder coating shall be at the discretion of the Powder
Coating Applicator whom shall be held responsible for the satisfactory adhesion of the
powder coating to the substrate.

Coating system: Epoxy/polyester Resin Powder coating system applied by electrostatic process in
accordance with the Coating Manufacturer’s proprietary procedure.

Dry film thickness 60 to 70 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.2 Specification DS -2
3.9.4.2.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to spray painting of mild steel indoor components.

(Indoors)
Activity: Detail
Surface Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

preparation:

Coating system:

Primer coat: Apply one coat Semi High Build Alkyd Zinc Phosphate Primer by brush, roller or spray
to a dry film thickness of 60 to 80 micrometres.

Final coat: Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, apply one coat High Quality High
Gloss Enamel by brush roller or spray to a dry film thickness of 30 to 50 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 90 to 130 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

suppliers and/or

products:

3.9.4.3 Specification DS -3
3.9.4.3.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to spray painting of mild steel indoor components.

(Indoors)
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Activity: Detail
Surface Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

preparation:

Coating system:

Primer coat: Apply one coat general purpose epoxy primer by brush, roller or spray to a dry film
thickness of 35 to 50 micrometres.

Final coat: Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, apply one coat epoxy or
polyurethane enamel finish by brush roller or spray to a dry film thickness of 30 to 50
micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 65 to 100 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.4 Specification DS -4
3.9.4.4.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of mild steel indoor components
(Indoors)

Activity: Detail

Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

First coat: Apply one coat, Two Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film
thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.5 Specification DS-5
3.9.4.5.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of mild steel outdoor components

(Low to High corrosive environments)

Activity: Detail

Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

First coat: Apply one coat, Two Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film
thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Stripe coat: After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.
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Activity: Detail

Second coat:

Final coat:

Allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, the manufacturer's recommendations
shall be adhered to in this regard, apply an additional coat of Two Component High
Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply an additional coat of Two
Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120
micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 240 to 360 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.6 Specification DS -6

3.9.4.6.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the powder coating of mild steel outdoor components

(Low to High corrosive environments)

Activity:

Detalil

Surface
preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1) or degrease, rinse, pickle and
phosphate.

Pre-treatment:

The method used for cleaning the substrate and the need to prime the substrate prior
to the application of the powder coating shall be at the discretion of the Powder Coating
Applicator whom shall be held responsible for the satisfactory adhesion of the powder
coating to the substrate.

Coating system:
Primer coat:

Final coat:

Apply one coat zinc-rich epoxy primer to a dry film thickness of 65 to 90 micrometres.

Apply one coat exterior polyester powder coating system by means of electrostatic
spraying in accordance with the Coating Manufacturers proprietary procedure

Dry film thickness 85 to 120 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 150 to 210 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.7 Specification DS -7

3.9.4.7.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of mild steel outdoor components

(Low to High corrosive environments)
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Activity: Detail:

Surface preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Second coat:

Nuts and Bolts:

Final coat:

Apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack Zinc-rich Epoxy Primer to a dry film
thickness of 75 to 100 micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Twin Pack Epoxy MIO to a dry film thickness of 100 to 150 micrometres.

All fixings shall be additionally protected with one coat intermediate coat prior to
application of the final coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer’s
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Twin Pack High Build Recoatable Polyurethane Acrylic Finish to a dry film thickness
of 60 to 80 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 235 to 330 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.8 Specification DS -8

3.9.4.8.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the flow coating of mild steel components

Warning:

This specification shall only be used to protect mild steel components, which due to their complicated
geometry, cannot be properly painted by normal spray techniques. Before this technique can be used, the
supplier shall submit full details regarding the specific products to be used, as well as the reasons why the
spray-application specifications cannot be used. Permission to use this specification shall only be given once
Eskom has confirmed that spray application isn’t feasible.

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1) or Phosphoric acid etch.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

Apply by flow coating technique, one coat Phenolated Alkyd Primer to a dry film
thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Apply by flow coating technique, one coat Quick Dry Alkyd Gloss Enamel to a dry film
thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Upon completion of assembly, apply by airless spray a second coat Quick Dry Alkyd
Gloss Enamel to a dry film thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 120 to 165 micrometres.
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Activity: Detail:
Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these

materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.9 Specification DS-9
3.9.4.9.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of 3CR12 fabricated components

(Low to High corrosive environments)

Activity: Detail:

Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

First coat: Apply one coat, Two Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film
thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Stripe coat: After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Second coat: Allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, the manufacturer’'s recommendations
shall be adhered to in this regard, apply an additional coat of Two Component High
Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 160 to 220 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.10 Specification DS - 10
3.9.4.10.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the powder coating of 3CR12 fabricated components

(Low to High corrosive environments)

Activity: Detail

Surface preparation:  Chemical cleaning or pickling.

Pre-treatment: Chemical cleaning or pickling of 3CR12 steel is carried out using formulations based
on Nitric (HNO3z) and Hydrofluoric (HF) acids designed specifically for 3CR12.

Thorough washing with copious amounts of clean cold water is required after pickling
to remove all traces of the acids used.

Passivation of 3CR12 steel is carried out within a short period after post weld cleaning
as possible. A solution made up of 10% to 20% HNOs: balance water (Hz20) is suitable
for passivation of 3CR12 steel.

Thorough washing with clean, cold water after passivation is required.

Coating system:
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Primer coat: Apply one coat liquid or powder epoxy primer to a dry film thickness of 60 to 90

micrometres.

Final coat: Apply one coat exterior polyester powder coating system by means of electrostatic
spraying in accordance with the Coating Manufacturers proprietary procedure.

Dry film thickness 80 to 120 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 140 to 210 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.11 Specification DS - 11
3.9.4.11.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of 3CR12 fabricated components

(High to Very High corrosive environments)

Activity: Detail:

Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

Primer coat: Apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack General Purpose Epoxy Primer to a dry
film thickness of 80 to 100 micrometres.

Stripe coat: After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Undercoat: Allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, the manufacturer’'s recommendations
shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray one coat Polyamide Cured
Epoxy MIO to a dry film thickness of 100 to 150 micrometres.

Final coat: Allowing sufficient time for the wundercoat to cure, the manufacturer’s
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Twin Pack High Build Recoatable Polyurethane Acrylic Finish to a dry film thickness
of 60 to 80 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 240 to 330 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.12 Specification DS — 12
3.9.4.12.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the flow coating of 3CR12 components.
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Warning:

This specification shall only be used to protect 3CR12 steel components, which due to their complicated
geometry, cannot be properly painted by normal spray techniques. Before this technique can be used, the
supplier shall submit full details regarding the specific products to be used, as well as the reasons why the
spray-application specifications cannot be used. Permission to use this specification shall only be given once
Eskom has confirmed that spray application isn’t feasible.

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1) or Phosphoric acid etch.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

Apply by flow coating technique, one coat Modified Alkyd Flow-coating Primer to a
dry film thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Apply by flow coating technique, one coat Quick Dry Alkyd Gloss Enamel to a dry film
thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Upon completion of assembly, apply by airless spray a second coat Quick Dry Alkyd
Gloss Enamel to a dry film thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 120 to 165 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.13 Specification DS - 13

3.9.4.13.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to hot dip galvanising of structural steelwork and other fabricated components.

(Low to High corrosive environments) — Uncoated hot dip galvanised steel as per SANS 121.

(Medium to Very High corrosive environments) — Duplex coating, i.e. Hot dip galvanised mild steel
overcoated with a suitable organic coating system.

Activity:

Detail:

Design:

Special design considerations need to be taken in terms of all items to be protected
by means of hot dip galvanising. Here the design engineer needs to refer to 1SO
14713 and the “Design for hot dip galvanizing” from HDGASA for guidance.

In order to ensure proper hot dip galvanising of the steel surfaces, the Contractor shall
ensure that the steel to be used for galvanising shall comply with the requirements of
SANS 121 (ISO 1461).

Surface preparation:

All weld areas shall be abrasively blast-cleaned to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).
Following blastcleaning of the welds, all items shall be suitably pickled, rinsed, dried
and fluxed.

Galvanising:

All items shall be hot dip galvanised in accordance with SANS 121 (ISO 1461), to a
minimum coating thickness as laid down in the appropriate tables of SANS 121 (ISO
1461).
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Activity: Detail:

All nuts, bolts, clips and other items, including High Strength Friction Grip and High
Tensile Bolts up to M10 size required for the fixing of galvanised articles shall be hot
dip galvanised to this Standard. Hot dip galvanising of higher strength bolts greater
than M10 size is not allowed (due to the possibility of hydrogen embrittlement) and
these shall be Electro-plated in accordance with BS 3382.

Tolerances: Tolerances on all threaded articles shall be according to SANS 121 (ISO 1461).
Threaded items shall be spun in a Centrifuge during the galvanising process.
Note: In addition to the requirements of SANS 121 (ISO 1461), the following criteria with

respect to white rust and passivation treatments shall apply.

1) White rust:

All material shall be free from white rust and black staining when it is handed over to
Eskom.

To assist in meeting this requirement, close attention shall be paid to the manner in
which the material is stacked and stored at the galvaniser's works and also during its
subsequent handling until such time as it is handed over to Eskom.

Material, which has been inspected at the galvaniser's or manufacturer's works and
passed by Eskom's appointed inspectors will still be liable to rejection if it has been
found that white rust has developed between the date of inspection and the date when
the material is handed over to Eskom.

If the material is affected by white rust the Contractor may clean it (using non-metallic
brushes) before handing over and if the weight of zinc coating still meets the
requirements specified in the appropriate tables of SANS 121 (ISO 1461), the material
will be accepted.

Unless galvanised items are to be subsequently painted, all items shall be passivated.

2) Passivation

The passivation coating shall be applied to the material immediately after galvanising
to afford temporary protection to the galvanised surfaces

This coating shall be even, and shall be sufficiently transparent to enable Eskom's
appointed inspectors to examine the underlying surfaces for any defects.

Duplex coating:

Duplex coating is a special process and requires proper surface preparation to avoid
delamination of the organic coating system. (SAHDGA 01-1990 — “Code of practice
for surface preparation and application of organic coating can be consulted in this
regard).

When a further paint system is to be applied over the hot dip galvanised surfaces, this
shall be done in accordance with Detailed Specification DS — 15, DS 16 or DS -17.

Approved
galvanisers:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.14 Specification DS - 14

3.9.4.14.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to zinc metal-spraying of structural steelwork and other fabricated

components.

(Medium to Very High corrosive environments) — Duplex coating, i.e. Zinc metal-sprayed mild steel
overcoated with a suitable organic coating system.
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Activity: Detail:

Surface preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 3.

Metal spraying:

All metal spraying shall be carried out by Plasma Arc or the hot wire spraying process.
Maximum atomisation of wire shall be attained, at all times, to obtain a fine-grained,
dense sprayed film.

Zinc sprayed coatings shall be carried out in accordance with BS EN 22063. The wire
analysis shall be: -Zinc 99,995% minimum.

Metal spray types:

Unless otherwise agreed to by Eskom, the minimum coating thickness shall be 110
to 130 micrometres.

Coating thickness:

The final metal-sprayed surface shall be free of all lumps, atomised wire and other
surface irregularities.

General:

Prior to the application of a paint system, the surface shall be brushed down to remove
all loose oxidation deposits and blown off with clean, dry compressed air.

3.9.4.15 Specification DS - 15

3.9.4.15.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the duplex coating of new hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed

surfaces.

(Medium to Very High Corrosive Environments)

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Hot dip galvanised or zinc-metal sprayed surfaces shall be cleaned prior to painting
to provide a water break-free surface, using a solvent detergent degreaser specifically
formulated by the supplier of the paint system, for cleaning new galvanising surfaces.

Water rinsing after cleaning is essential to remove all traces of the cleaner. This is
best achieved by hosing with a high-pressure water spray. Allow drying.

Or

Micro blasting can be carried out in accordance with SAHDGA 01- 1990 — Code of
practice for surface preparation and application of organic coatings. It is critical that
the micro blasting does not damage or remove the hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-
sprayed coating.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack Epoxy
Primer specifically formulated for zinc surfaces to a dry film thickness of 80 to 100
micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply one coat of Two
Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120
micrometres.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply an additional coat of Two
Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120
micrometres.
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Activity: Detail:

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 240 to 340 micrometres.

Safety note:

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.16 Specification DS — 16

3.9.4.16.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the duplex coating of new hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed

surfaces.

(Medium to Very High Corrosive Environments)

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Hot dip galvanised or zinc-metal sprayed surfaces shall be cleaned prior to painting
to provide a water break-free surface, using a solvent detergent degreaser specifically
formulated by the supplier of the paint system, for cleaning new galvanising surfaces.

Water rinsing after cleaning is essential to remove all traces of the cleaner. This is
best achieved by hosing with a high-pressure water spray. Allow drying.

Or

Micro blasting can be carried out in accordance with SAHDGA 01- 1990 — Code of
practice for surface preparation and application of organic coatings. It is critical that
the micro blasting does not damage or remove the hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-
sprayed coating.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack Epoxy
Primer specifically formulated for zinc surfaces to a dry film thickness of 80 to 100
micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the first and stripe coats to cure, the manufacturer’s
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply one coat Twin Pack Epoxy
MIO to a dry film thickness of 100 to 150 micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, apply by airless spray, one
coat of Twin Pack High Solids Polyurethane Acrylic Finish to a dry film thickness of
50 to 60 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 230 to 310 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
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3.9.4.17 Specification DS - 17

3.9.4.17.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the duplex coating of new hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed

surfaces.

(Medium to Very High Corrosive Environments)

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Hot dip galvanised or zinc-metal sprayed surfaces shall be cleaned prior to painting
to provide a water break-free surface, using a solvent detergent degreaser specifically
formulated by the supplier of the paint system, for cleaning new galvanising surfaces.

Water rinsing after cleaning is essential to remove all traces of the cleaner. This is
best achieved by hosing with a high-pressure water spray. Allow drying.

Or

Micro blasting can be carried out in accordance with SAHDGA 01- 1990 — Code of
practice for surface preparation and application of organic coatings. It is critical that
the micro blasting does not damage or remove the hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-
sprayed coating.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Water-based Acrylic
Primer specifically formulated for zinc surfaces to a dry film thickness of 25 to 35
micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt
holes and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same
material as the following coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, the manufacturers
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Water-based Modified Vinyl Acrylic to a dry film thickness of 180 to 220 micrometres.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, a second
coat Water-based Modified Vinyl Acrylic to a dry film thickness of 180 to 220
micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 385 to 475 micrometres.

Safety note:

and/or products:

Approved suppliers

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.18 Specification DS — 18

3.9.4.18.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of 316 or 304L stainless steel fabricated components.

(High to Very High Corrosive Environments)
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Activity: Detail:
Applicability: This specification covers the overcoating of 316 Stainless Steel for outdoors

Surface preparation:

applications and can be used where stainless steel are preferred for their non-
magnetic properties or where these materials are to be painted for colour coding
purposes. This specification also applies to High to Very High corrosive environments.

Remove all loose oxidation deposits by means of brushing down with “Scotch Brite”
Pads. Scrub down all surfaces using a suitable degreaser. Rinse with fresh water and
allow drying.

No more than 4 hours shall elapse between cleaning and the application of the
coating.

Metal spraying:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Final coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack General
Purpose Epoxy Primer to a dry film thickness of 50 to 80 micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, apply by airless spray, one coat
of Twin Pack Polyurethane Acrylic Finish 60 to 80 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 110 to 160 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer’s recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.19 Specification DS - 19

3.9.4.19.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of 316 or 304L stainless steel fabricated components.

(High to Very High Corrosive Environments)

Activity:
Applicability:

Surface preparation:

Detail:

This specification covers the overcoating of 316 Stainless Steel for outdoors
applications and can be used where stainless steel are preferred for their non-
magnetic properties or where these materials are to be painted for colour coding
purposes. This specification also applies to High to Very High corrosive environments.

Remove all loose oxidation deposits by means of brushing down with “Scotch Brite”
Pads. Scrub down all surfaces using a suitable degreaser. Rinse with fresh water and
allow drying.

No more than 4 hours shall elapse between cleaning and the application of the
coating.

Metal spraying:

Primer coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Water-based Acrylic
Primer specifically formulated for non-ferrous surfaces to a dry film thickness of 25 to
35 micrometres.
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Activity: Detail:

Stripe coat:

After allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt
holes and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same
material as the following coat.

Second coat:

Final coat:

Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, the manufacturers
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Water-based Modified Vinyl Acrylic to a dry film thickness of 100 to 150 micrometres.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, an
additional coat of the Water-based Modified Vinyl Acrylic to a dry film thickness of 100
to 150 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 225 to 335 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.20 Specification DS - 20

3.9.4.20.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the repair of new hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed surfaces

(Only applicable where hot dip galvanising or zinc metal-spraying is specified)

Activity: Detail:

Applicability: The following specification covers the repair of new galvanised or zinc-metal sprayed
surfaces prior to erection.

Inspection: A detailed visual inspection shall be carried out to identify all areas where the

galvanising coating is damaged.

Surface preparation:

The affected and close surrounding areas shall be degreased using a solvent
detergent degreaser specially formulated for galvanising. Water rinses after cleaning
is essential to remove all traces of the cleaner.

The damaged area shall then be lightly abraded with sandpaper to remove all
corrosion products and any other deleterious matter.

Following abrading of the surface, the affected area shall be cleaned down to a
smooth surface and feathered back to a hard edge, using abrasive paper. This
cleaning shall be extended to a minimum distance of 25 mm beyond the periphery of
the affected area. It is vitally important that the sound, existing galvanising/zinc
coating be abraded in order to provide a good "key" for the repair coating.

After sanding, the affected area shall be washed with clean potable water to remove
all dust, abrasive products etc. and finally allowed to dry.

Spot repair:
Option 1:

First coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry (no more than 4 hours shall elapse between cleaning
and the application of the repair system to avoid recontamination of the surface) apply
by brush, one coat Single Pack Zinc-Rich (> 90%) Primer to a dry film thickness of 40
to 60 micrometres.
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Activity: Detail:

Second coat:

Spot repair:
Option 2:

First coat:

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure (the Manufacturer’s
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard) apply a second coat Single Pack
Zinc-Rich (>90%) Primer to a dry film thickness 40 to 60 micrometres.

As soon as the surfaces are dry (no more than 4 hours shall elapse between cleaning
and the application of the repair system to avoid recontamination of the surface) apply
by brush, one coat Twin Pack Solvent free Zinc-Rich (>80%) Epoxy to a dry film
thickness of 90 to 110 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

and/or products:

Approved  suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.21 Specification DS - 21

3.9.4.21.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the patch repair of newly painted damaged surfaces.

(Applicable in terms of all organic coating specifications)

Activity:

Detail

Inspection:

A detailed visual inspection shall be carried out to identify all areas where localised
rusting or mechanical damage to the existing coating is evident.

Surface preparation:

The damaged area shall be thoroughly mechanically and/or hand wire brushed to
remove all paint, corrosion product and any other deleterious matter.

Following wire brushing, the affected area shall be cleaned down to a smooth
surface and feathered back to a hard edge, using abrasive paper. This cleaning
shall be extended to a minimum distance of 25 mm beyond the periphery of the
affected area. It is vitally important that the sound, existing coating be abraded in
order to provide a good "key" for the repair coating.

After sanding, the affected area shall be washed with clean potable water to remove
all dust, abrasive products etc. and finally allowed to dry.

Coating system:

Itis imperative that all surface dirt and contaminants are completely removed before
over-coating or the adhesion between the existing and new coats will be impaired.
No more than 4 h shall elapse between cleaning and the application of the primer
coat to avoid recontamination of the surface.

The repair coating shall then be applied by brush or roller in accordance with the
relevant specification.

Patch repair those areas where the metal substrate are exposed with the full coating
system as per original specification.

Where only the intermediate or final coats have been damaged, these should be re-
instated as per original specification.
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3.9.4.22 Specification DS — 22

3.9.4.22.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the hot spun galvanising or sherardizing of small to medium threaded and

cast iron articles.

(All environments where hot dip galvanised or sherardized fasteners/articles are specified)

Item:

Detail

Standards:

Hot spun galvanised fasteners shall be purchased from an SABS approved bolt
manufacturer to SANS 121 (ISO 1461) and sherardized zinc coated items from
DiSTek or LEVICOR Technologies SA to SANS 53811 (EN 13811). If this is not
stipulated there is likelihood that zinc or cadmium electroplated fasteners will be
supplied.

Supply:

Sheradized zinc coatings can be considered for the protection of small to medium
size steel articles that may otherwise be protected by means of the hot spun
galvanising process, providing the coatings are applied to a minimum coating
thickness of 45 microns (Class 45 in terms of SANS 53811) and the mechanical
properties of the items are not jeopardized in the process.

However, the implementation of extensive quality control measures by the user/s
and supplier/s of these products cannot be overemphasized. If incorrectly applied,
the performance of the Sheradized zinc coatings will be inferior to that of Hot dip
galvanising and will result in early corrosion of the mild steel substrate.

Similar to Hot dip galvanising, over-application of Sheradized zinc coatings can
result in problems being experienced with the screwing on of nuts and bolts. Hence,
all threaded articles, whether coated by means of the sherardizing process or hot
spun galvanising shall be supplied in a nutted-up condition. This ensures that bolts
and nuts have been matched, supplied by the same manufacturer and that no
losses are experienced.

When repacking is necessary at premises other than those of the sherardizing /
galvanising works, threaded articles shall be repacked in the assembled state, with
the repacker ensuring a proper fit between bolt and nut.

Wear and tear during transport shall be avoided to limit mechanical damage of the
coatings. Hence, the articles shall be packed in closed containers that can withstand
transport conditions.

Any defective articles following transport or subsequent processing shall be
replaced.

As part of the quality control procedures, all items shall be free of white and red rust
when Taken over. To assist in meeting this requirement, close attention shall be
paid to the manner in which the material is stacked and stored at the sherardizing /
galvanising works and during its subsequent handling.

Any material that has been inspected at the sherardizing / galvanising works and
passed by the user shall still be liable to rejection if it has been found that excessive
white rust has developed between the date of inspection and Take over.

Unless sherardized / galvanised items are to be subsequently Duplex Coated /
Painted, all items shall be passivated, to afford additional protection to the zinc
coated surfaces. This coating shall be even, and shall be sufficiently transparent to
enable the user to examine the underlying surfaces for any defects.
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Item: Detail

It is considered that the risk of under-protected areas and for mechanical damage
of Sheradized zinc coated items increases with an increase in the size of the
articles. Hence, these methods shall only be used or specified for the corrosion
protection of small to medium size Eskom components.

Overcoating and
Repair:

As far as the overcoating and repairing of Sheradized zinc coated items are
concerned, no major problems are envisaged and the same processes can be
followed in terms of surface preparation and duplex coating than what normally
would be specified in the case of Hot dip galvanising. However, whereas
micro/sweep blasting of Hot dip galvanised surfaces will enhance the adhesive
strength of organic coatings, it shall not be done in the case of the Sheradized zinc
coated items, since any removal of the coating may result in early corrosion.

The use of small galvanised items in combination with larger Sheradized zinc
coated articles should be avoided, since galvanic cells may develop which will result
in an increase in the depletion of the Hot dip galvanised zinc coating. However, the
use of small Sheradized zinc coated items in combination with larger Hot dip
galvanised articles can be considered since no significant galvanic effects are
anticipated.

Marking: Where the SABS Mark applies, this Mark shall appear on every container or on a
label securely attached to the container.
4, Authorization
This document has been seen and accepted by:
Name and surname Designation
Sibongile Maphosa Engineer
Abre Le Roux Chief Engineer
Bheki Ntshangase Senior Manager HV Plant
5. Revisions
Date Rev Compiler Remarks
Sept 2020 2 Sibongile Maphosa Revised document and change applicability from
Eskom to Distribution and Transmission. Eskom
encompassed Generation and more content was
required to suit Generation purposes as well.
Dec 2014 1 Sibongile Maphosa Document reformatted.

Changed Distribution to Eskom in the title and
standard content to suit both Eskom and
Transmission.

This document supersedes document number:
DSP_34-1658
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Rensburg Added definition for high strength bolts

Added details of pre-treatment for 3SCR12
Document title changed to include structural
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Names added as part of the development team
Changes made to specifications to explain and
simplify different corrosion categories
Application guide and example added to facilitate
use of specification]and provide additional
information regarding what is classified as Inland
and Coastal.
Technical Bulletin 10TB-011 Rev.0 added as
important reference document to facilitate the
performance testing and approval of suitable
protective systems

June 2009 B DT Janse van Document unique identifier changed from

Rensburg SCSCAAP9 to 34-1658

Changes to national and international standards
reference in the text.
Replacement of obsolete products and/or supplier
information.
Improvement of certain Detailed Plant/ltem
Corrosion Protection Specifications.
Changes to quality requirements.
Incorporation of performance guarantees
Powder coating of 3CR12 surfaces.
Alternatives to zinc metal spraying.

June 2002 A The corrosion protection of indoor mild steel
components
Changes to national and international standards
reference in the text
To address environmental, safety and health issues
surrounding the use of protective coating systems
Corrosion protection quality requirements —
incorporate ESKCAABS revision 2 requirements
Overcoating of 316 and 304 stainless steel
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sprayed surfaces
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A guide to assist Eskom staff with the selection of
suitable corrosion protection system.
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Annex A — Application Guide for New Equipment Classified as Inland and
Coastal
(Normative)

The purpose of this guide is to assist the compilers of equipment specifications with the selection of corrosion
protection requirements. It will also promote a standardised approach in the specification of corrosion
protection requirements in Eskom’s equipment specifications.

The corrosion protection specification distinguishes between five corrosivity ratings in accordance with 3. Due
to practical and logistical reasons, Eskom has standardised on only two corrosion classifications for outdoor
applications, namely INLAND and COASTAL. These two classifications correspond to a corrosivity rating of
“Low to Medium” (C2 to C3) and “High to Very high” (C4 to C5) respectively, as indicated in Al.

Table Al: Eskom’s application classification versus corrosivity rating

Dx Application Classification Corrosivity Rating Corrosivity category
INLAND Low to Medium C2to C3
COASTAL High to Very high C41t0C5

NOTE: That the classification of INLAND and COASTAL refers to the corrosivity rating of the environment and not necessarily the
location of the equipment. Equipment classified as COASTAL will for example be required in Gauteng at a location with a heavy
industrial pollution environment.

A2 provides a summary of which detailed corrosion specifications (i.e. DS numbers) are required for the various
substrate types, in relation to Eskom’s INLAND and COASTAL classifications. It therefore provides a quick
lookup reference for the user, eliminating the need to study the entire corrosion protection specification.

The required/acceptable detailed corrosion specifications must be selected from Table B2 and then referenced
in the equipment specification. If only certain of the DS options are acceptable, it should be referenced as
such. For example, if it is specified that metering kiosks are to be manufactured from 3CR12 only, then only
DS-9 and DS-10 should be referenced for INLAND applications. If subcomponents of a product (e.g.
transformers tank and radiator) have different corrosion protection requirements, it should be referenced as
such.

The supplier will be required to indicate in technical schedule B, which of the corrosion protection systems is
offered.

The accepted coating suppliers and products are provided in technical bulletin 10TB-011. The most current
version of this bulletin must be included in enquiry documentation to ensure that equipment suppliers are
aware of it.

An example of how the corrosion protection requirements should be specified is provided at the end of this
guide.

Table A2: Summary of Detailed specifications

Protective
I?:)iag[;.ipfli?zfttii(;)nn Environment | Substrate Type A;g:poliactg':%n Special Notes DS Number
Method
Indoors Mild Steel Powder Coat - Ds-1
Indoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - Ds-2
) Indoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - DS-3
Indoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - DS-4
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Protective
L Ap_pl_lcatllon Environment | Substrate Type Cogtlng Special Notes DS Number
Classification Application
Method
QOutdoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - DS-5
Outdoors Mild Steel Powder Coat - DS-6
Outdoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - DS-7
This specification only applies to
Flow Coat those components, which due to
Outdoors Mild Steel (to be used with | their ~ complicated geometry, | DS-8
caution) cannot be properly painted by
normal spray techniques.
Outdoors 3CR12 Spray Paint - DS-9
= Outdoors 3CR12 Powder Coat - DS-10
I Outdoors 3CR12 Spray Paint DS-11
c
- This specification only applies to
Flow Coat those components, which due to
Outdoors 3CR12 (to be used with | their  complicated geometry, | DS-12
caution) cannot be properly painted by
normal spray techniques.
Outdoors Mild Steel HDG Excludes a duplex coating. DS-13
Outdoors Mild Steel ZMS Excludes a duplex coating. Ds-14
Mild Steel + . Duplex coating system of new | DS-13 + DS-15 or
Outdoors HDG Spray Paint HDG surfaces. DS-16 or DS-17
Mild Steel + . Duplex coating system of new | DS-14 + DS-15 or
Outdoors ZMS Spray Paint ZMS surfaces. DS-16 or DS-17
Outdoors 3CR12 Spray Paint - DS-11
This specification only applies to
Flow Coat those components, which due to
. their ~ complicated geometry, )
Outdoors 3CR12 (to be used with | cannot be properly painted by DS-12
caution) normal spray techniques, e.g.
radiators.
Mild Steel + . Duplex coating system of new | DS-13 + DS-15 or
- Outdoors HDG Spray Paint HDG surfaces. DS-16 or DS-17
7 Mild Steel + . Duplex coating system of new | DS-14 + DS-15 or
§ Outdoors ZMS Spray Paint ZMS surfaces. DS-16 or DS-17
S/IS (316 or .
Outdoors 304L) Spray Paint - DS-18 or DS-19
Excludes a duplex coating.
This specification only applies to
) structural steelwork, equipment
Outdoors Mild Steel HDG mounting brackets and fabricated | DS-13
components such as line
hardware, nuts, bolts and
washers.
NOTE:
1) Abbreviations: HDG - Hot dip galvanising, ZMS - Zinc metal-spraying
2) The use of a higher corrosion specification is acceptable. E.g. coating systems that are specified for Coastal applications are

also acceptable for Inland and Indoor applications
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Typical example

The following are typical clauses that should be included in each equipment specification to specify the
corrosion protection requirements.

1) Corrosion protection

The corrosion protection shall be conducted in accordance with Eskom specification 240-75655504. The
acceptable detailed corrosion protection specifications will be indicated in schedule A of the technical
schedules of an enquiry document. The manufacturer/supplier shall state in Schedule B the specific detailed
specification number offered.
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Annex B — Technical schedules A and B
For pole mounted transformers
Schedule A: Purchaser's specific requirements
Schedule B: Particulars of equipment to be supplied
1 2 3 4
Sub o
Description Schedule A Schedule B
clause
Corrosion protection detailed specification number
(according to DSP 34-1658) offered for:
DS-6;
DS-7;
DS-9;
- Transformer tank for INLAND applications DS-10;
DS-13 + DS-15
or
DS-14 + DS-15
DS-11;
1.1 .
DS-13 + DS-16;
DS-14 + DS-16;
- Transformer tank for COASTAL applications DS-13 + DS-16;
DS-14 + DS-16;
or
DS-18
DS-8
- Radiators for INLAND applications or
DS-12
- Radiators for COASTAL applications DS-12

When downloaded from the WEB, this document is uncontrolled and the responsibility rests with the user
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Evaluation criteria for vandalised mini-subs 2022.pdf
Technical evaluation criteria for vandalises Type A and Type B mini-
substations

1. Technical evaluation criteria for repairs to be done on vandalised mini-substations:
Mandatory requirements

Level 1 gatekeeper

Acceptance

Criteria Evidence
Yes/No

Submit a signed letter with the company letterhead,
that states and guarantees that the following
activities for a minisub enclosure are done in-
house:

e Cutting 6mm thick 3CR12 steel
e Bending 6mm thick 3CR12 steel

e Welding (Metal arc (MMA) or Tungsten Signed letter
Inert Gas (TIG))

e Post Welding cleaning

e Powder Coating with Avocado C12 colour
in accordance with SANS 1091

e The corrosion protection of the installed
metal part shall be of category C5
according to specification 240-75655504

Any “NO” on the above scores, the supplier will be disqualified.

2. Technical evaluation criteria for repairs to be done on vandalised mini-substations:
Level 2 scoring- (only submission that passes Level 1 gatekeepers)

TASK / MEASURE

Criteria Clause Weighting Score

Submit a signed letter with the company
letterhead, that states and guarantees that the
following scope of work, where applicable, can be
done:

e Replace/install mini-sub doors, roof
and/or padlock protection facility with
new ones made of 6mm thick 3CR12,
stainless steel or zinc metal sprayed mild
steel (depending on the vandalized part) SANS 1029 25

e Allreplaced/installed mini-sub doors (MV
and LV) shall be recessed such that they
are flush with the sides of the mini-sub
enclosure

e The corrosion protection of the
replaced/installed metal part shall be of
category C5 according to specification
240-75655504

Sensitivity: Controlled Disclosure





2. Technical evaluation criteria for repairs to be done on vandalised mini-substations:
Level 2 scoring- (only submission that passes Level 1 gatekeepers)

TASK / MEASURE

Criteria

Clause

Weighting

Score

e Replace/install heavy duty hinges on all
the doors

e The final colour of the mini-sub enclosure
shall be Avocado C12 in accordance with
SANS 1091

e Supply and install busbars

e Supply and install jumpers to busbars

e Supply and install missing wiring on the
LV and/or MV compartment

e Re-test LV panel as per SANS 1029

e Re-testthe RMU (to be arranged with the
OEM)

Equipment and tools list

NB: All tools must be owned; marks will be
deducted if tools are hired

Print and complete the
provided tool/equipment list
on annexure A and sign

15

Vehicles

Provide proof of ownership for LDV, and proof of
ownership or hiring letter for a truck (LDV, Truck)

Print and complete the
vehicle list on annexure B
and sign, and/or submit
hiring letter where applicable

20

PPE for all staff assigned to the job with register
signed by the employees

PPE asset register

20

Provide staff training certificates from the service
providers or training instructors. This is to ensure
that staff is trained and qualified to do the work
e.g., welding, crimping, etc.

20

TOTAL

/100

NB: The tenderer must score 80% on the scoring phase of this this evaluation to get compliance. A

score below 80% will result in disqualification.

Compiled by: Sandisiwe Mtshaulana

Signature:m/

Date: 27/01/2023

Approved by: Stephen Nkwane
Signature:

Date: 27/01/2023
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Annexure A

EiT Tool/Equipment Owned/hired Max Score
1 Handheld welding machine 3
2 220V generator 3
3 Multi-meter 1
4 Polarity tester 1
5 Crimping Tools 4P1 MV 1
6 Hex Crimping Tool LV 2
7 Barricading for the working 2
space
8 Road traffic signage 2
Total 15
Signature: Date:
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Annexure B

Vehicles Registration number Owned/Hired | Max Score

5-10 ton truck 10

LDVs 10

Total 20
Signature: Date:

Sensitivity: Controlled Disclosure
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1. Introduction

It is important that a site be characterised in terms of its expected atmospheric corrosivity prior to the selection
of appropriate corrosion protection systems.

Typical on-site factors or types of microclimates which can cause breakdown of protective coatings include the
following:

. Exposure to sunlight

. Exposure to sea breezes

. Temperature

. Moisture

. Air pollutants

. Use or normal wear and tear
. Land contours etc.

2. Supporting clauses
2.1 Scope

The document specifies the corrosion protection methods to be used for new Eskom Distribution and
Transmission equipment exposed to indoor and outdoor environments. The standard covers coatings for new
mild steel and hot dip galvanised mild steel, as well as 3CR12, 316 and 304L stainless steel fabricated
equipment for use in various corrosive environments.

The Contractor shall refer to the Project Manager for queries related to this standard or items not addressed
in this standard.

The standards detailed herein shall not be modified in any way without the written approval of the Project
Manager.

2.1.1 Purpose

None

2.1.2 Applicability

This document shall apply to Eskom Distribution and Transmission Divisions.
2.2 Normative/informative references

Parties using this document shall apply the most recent edition of the documents listed in the following
paragraphs.

2.2.1 Normative

[1] ASTM D4414: Standard practice for measurement of wet film thickness by notch gauges

[2] ASTM E376: Measuring coating thickness by magnetic field or eddy current electro-magnetic test
methods. (Can be used as alternative to SANS ISO 2808).

[3] BS EN 22063: Metallic and other inorganic coatings. Thermal spraying. Zinc, aluminium and their
alloys.

[4] ISO 2409. Paints and varnishes — Cross cut test.

[5] ISO 4624. Paints and varnishes — Pull-off test for adhesion.

ESKOM COPYRIGHT PROTECTED

When downloaded from the WEB, this document is uncontrolled and the responsibility rests with the user
to ensure it is in line with the authorized version on the WEB.





Document Classification: Controlled Disclosure

CORROSION PROTECTION STANDARD FOR NEW Unique Identifier: 240-75655504
INDOOR AND OUTDOOR ESKOM EQUIPMENT, L

COMPONENTS, MATERIALS AND STRUCTURES Revision: 2
MANUFACTURED FROM STEEL STANDARD Page: 5 of 42

[6]

[7]

[8]

(9]

[10]

[11]

[12]

[13]

[14]
[15]
[16]
[17]
[18]
[19]
[20]

[21]

[22]
(23]

[24]

[25]

[26]
[27]

(28]

ISO 4628 — 1. Paints and varnishes — Evaluation of degradation of coatings — Designation of quantity
and size of defects, and of intensity of uniform changes in appearance — Part 1: General introduction
and designation system.

ISO 4628 — 3. Paints and varnishes — Evaluation of degradation of coatings — Designation of quantity
and size of defects, and of intensity of uniform changes in appearance — Part 3: Assessment of degree
of rusting.

ISO 8501-1. Preparation of steel substrates before application of paints and related products — Visual
assessment of surface cleanliness — Part 1: Rust grades and preparation grades of uncoated steel
substrates and of steel substrates after overall removal of previous coatings.

ISO 8502-3. Preparation of steel substrates before application of paint and related products — Test
for the assessment of surface cleanliness — Part 3: Assessment of dust on steel surfaces prepared
for painting (pressure sensitive tape method). (Can be used as alternative to SANS 5769).

ISO 8502-6. Preparation of steel substrates before application of paint and related products — Test
for the assessment of surface cleanliness — Part 6: Extraction of soluble contaminants for analysis —
The Bresle method.

ISO 8503-4. Preparation of steel substrates before application of paint and related products — Surface
roughness characteristics of blast-cleaned steel substrates — Part 4: Method for the calibration of ISO
surface profile comparators and for the determination of surface profile — Stylus instrument procedure.
(Can be used as alternative to SANS 5772).

SANS ISO 9002: Quality systems — Model for quality assurance in production, installation and
servicing.

ISO 12944-3. Paint and varnishes — Corrosion protection of steel structures by protective paint
systems. Part 3: Design considerations.

ISO 9223: Corrosion of metal and alloys — Corrosivity of atmospheres — Classification.

ISO 14713: Protection of iron and steel structures — Zinc and aluminium coatings — Guidelines.
SAHDGA 01-1990 — Code of practice for surface preparation and application of organic coatings.
SANS 1091: National colour standards for paints

SANS 10064: The preparation of steel surfaces for coating.

SANS 1274: Coatings applied by the powder-coating process.

SANS 1391 (1-3): Thermally sprayed metal coatings Part 1: Zinc and aluminium coatings for the
protection of iron and steel against atmospheric corrosion.

SANS / ISO 2808: Paints and Varnishes: Determination of film thicknesses (Can be used as
alternative to ASTM E376).

SANS 5159: Adhesion of paint and varnish films (cross-cut test).

SANS 5769: Cleanliness of blast-cleaned steel surfaces for painting thicknesses (Can be used as
alternative to ISO 8502-3).

SANS 5770: Preparation of steel substrates before the application of paints and related products —
Test for the assessment of cleanliness of blast-cleaned steel surface — Freedom from certain soluble
salts.

SANS 5772: Preparation of steel substrates before the application of paints and related products —
Surface roughness characteristics of blast-cleaned steel surfaces — Profile of blast-cleaned surfaces
determined by a micrometer profile gauge (Can be used as alternative to ISO 8503-4).

SANS 630:1972: Decorative high gloss enamel paints

SANS 121 (ISO 1461): Hot-dip galvanised coating on fabricated iron and steel articles — Specification
and test methods.

SANS 53811 (EN 13811). Sherardizing — Zinc diffusion coatings on ferrous products — Specification.
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[29] SIS 055900: Swedish Code of Practice - Pictorial surface preparation standard for painted steel
surfaces. (Can be used as alternative to ISO 8501 — 1).

[30] Eskom Distribution — Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011.

2.2.2 Informative

None

2.3 Definitions

2.3.1 General
Definition Description

Approved Refers to written approval by the Project Manager

Coat/coating/film

Refers to single layer of a product.

Coating System

Coating system is an all-embracing term including generic type, the number of
coats, the thickness of each and the overall thickness of the system

Contractor

Means the person(s) named as Contractor in the Contract Agreement.

Detailed Specification
(DS)

Plant/ltem specific corrosion protection specifications as attached in Section
3.1.9

High strength friction
grip bolts

High strength friction grip bolts are bolts of high tensile steel, used in conjunction
with high strength nuts and hardened steel washer, which are tightened to a pre-
determined shank tension in order that the clamping action thus afforded will
transfer loads in the connected members by friction between the parts in contact
and not by shear or bearing in the bolts.

Inspector Someone with vast experience in the application of coatings and ideally qualified
as a NACE International or SAQCC [South African Quality Certification
Committee] Coating Inspector.

Manufacturer Means the company that supplies the paint.

Product Data Sheet

Technical document issued by the Paint/Material Supplier for their products,
detailing the physical, chemical and performance qualities of the material, as
well all necessary information related to the safe handling and application of the
materials.

Supervisor Refers to a person having a minimum of two years’ experience in the field of
surface preparation and application of surface coatings.
2.3.2 Disclosure classification

Controlled disclosure: controlled disclosure to external parties (either enforced by law, or discretionary).

2.4 Abbreviations
Abbreviation Description
DFT /d.f.t Dry film thickness.
DS Detailed specification
ISO International Organisation for Standardisation
MIO Micaceous ion oxide
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Abbreviation Description
RP Repair Procedures
SANS South African National Standards
SAQCC South African Qualification and Certification Committee for Corrosion.
w.f.t Wet film thickness

2.5 Roles and responsibilities

Not applicable.

2.6 Process for monitoring

Not applicable.

2.7 Related/supporting documents
Not applicable.

3. Requirements

3.1 Health and Safety

a)

b)

3.2

It is important to realise that health and safety hazards can occur at different stages of the coating
process, i.e. during surfaces preparation, storage of paint, application of paint and the service use of
the coated surface, and that regular exposure to toxic elements may cause long-term health
problems. Therefore, before any work commences, the Contractor shall ensure that he conforms to
all statutory and regulatory requirements as reflected in all applicable Acts and regulations governing
occupational safety and health.

Emphasis is placed on the following:

1) Proper safety procedures and risk assessments shall be in place prior to any painting work
being carried out.

2) Special care shall be taken when working with all organic liquid materials. Prior to the use of
any of these specifications, the Material Safety Data Sheets for each product to be used shall
be obtained from the relevant coating supplier/manufacturer.

3) The use of any flammable products, such as solvents, cleaning agents, etc. in confined
spaces shall be closely monitored by a Qualified Safety Representative. Proper ventilation
of the internals shall be established and strictly monitored.

4) The Contractor shall ensure that the necessary protective equipment, clothing and safety
measures are provided for each of his workers.

Environmental

The Contractor shall ensure that any solid waste materials or liquids stripped or generated during the surface
preparation and coating processes are discarded in accordance with all statutory and regulatory requirements,
or as governed by Eskom’s Environmental Management Procedures.
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3.3 Quality assurance, control and surveillance
3.3.1 Paint supervisor and coating inspector requirements

Most coating failures on newly painted surfaces are the result of poor surface preparation. Therefore, all
coating work shall be overseen by a full-time, experienced paint supervisor. As a “minimum?” this person shall
have a recognised SAQCC or NACE coatings inspection qualification and at least two years’ experience in the
field of surface preparation and application of surface coatings.

3.3.2 Contactor quality requirements and documentation

a) The Contractor and his paint manufacturer shall have in place a quality system detailing application
techniques, processes, quality control methods and inspection points. SABS ISO 9000 series shall
be referred to for guidance.

b) Eskom may witness the final inspection and may elect to have witness and hold points other than
the final inspection. Prior to the commencement of work, the Contactor shall confirm with Eskom in
writing, the date of the commencement of work and Eskom’s inspection requirements.

c) In all cases, the Contractor shall be responsible for meeting the quality requirements and keep
records of all inspections and tests. These shall include quality control plans, inspection sheets, batch
certificates, daily inspection reports, as well as material and safety data sheets. The use of an
independent coating inspector by the Contractor is also strongly advised.

3.3.3 Eskom or third party quality surveillance inspections

The Project Manager may enforce witness and hold points during surface preparation and application of the
coating system. Quality surveillance inspections may also be carried out by a third party inspectorate team.
However, any quality surveillance inspections carried out by Eskom staff, the Project Manager or by an
appointed third party inspector shall not relieve the Contractor of his duties or liabilities in terms of quality
assurance and control during application of the coating system, and it is expressly understood that the
Contractor shall not rely on any reports or representations made by such a third party inspector.

3.3.4 Contractor quality documents and inspections

a) Prior to the commencement of work, the Contractor shall confirm with the Project Manager in writing,
the date of the commencement of work and the Project Manager’s inspection requirements.

b) The Contractor shall provide a detailed quality control plan of how the work will be done. This shall
be verified by the Project Manager or a coating specialist i.e. for technical correctness and whether
all the factors have been considered.

c) Prior to the application of any coating material, the selected manufacturer's product and safety data
sheets for the products to be used, shall be obtained by the Contractor. Copies of these data sheets
shall be signed by the coating supplier. This is to ensure that the latest product data sheet has been
provided to the Contractor, that the material manufacturer is aware of this standard, the conditions
under which their product/s will be applied/used and to allow for technical back-up where required.

d) In addition to obtaining updated product data sheets, the Contractor shall establish the impact of any
deviations from the standard recommended application procedures and exposure conditions of the
coating, as well as limitations of use, i.e. compared to the information provided in the most current
product data sheet, prior to the use of the material.

e) The Contractor shall be responsible for preparing and inspection of the metal surfaces to be
protected, the coating application/inspection of the work during and after coating, as well as testing
for electrical insulation defects, if required.

f) In order to comply with this standard, as well as to monitor and record the following parameters
throughout the coating process, the Contractor shall have suitable calibrated equipment on-site at all
times.
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Parameters to be monitored:

o Storage conditions of abrasives and coating materials (here the ambient temperature and humidity
shall be recorded).

. Expiry dates of paint materials.

o Calibration dates of all quality control test equipment.

. Acceptance of surfaces for coating — i.e. filling of imperfections and removal of sharp edges, burrs,
rags, weld spatter in accordance with ISO 12944-3.

. Degree of surface preparation — in accordance with ISO 8501/1 or SIS 055900.

. Blast profile readings — in accordance with SANS 5772 / ISO 8503-4.

) Degree of surface cleanliness — as per SANS 5769 / ISO 8502-3.

. Soluble salts — By means of the Weber Riley, Chlor*Test or Bresle Method (ISO 8502-6) or other
approved standard methods.

. Ambient and substrate temperatures — by means of calibrated temperature probes.

o Relative humidity — with a calibrated humidity meter.

o Dew point — by means of a dew point calculator.

. Other environmental conditions, e.g. incidence of industrial fall-out, mist, rain, etc.

o Mixing times of paint and quantities used.

. Wet film thickness (w.f.t) per each individual coat - in accordance with ASTM D4414.

. Dry film thickness (d.f.t) per each individual coat — in accordance with ASTM E376 / SANS I1SO 2808.

. Overcoating times — as per product data sheet

3.4 Design Requirements

Cognisance shall be taken of the fact that up to 15% of a steel component is seen as critical in terms of
corrosion protection because of inadequate welds, bolted surfaces, sharp edges and areas where dirt and
water can collect. Perfection of such finer points shall form an integral part of the design phase, the details of
which can be obtained from 1SO 12944-3, Paint and varnishes — Corrosion protection of steel structures by
protective paint systems. Part 3:

35 Material Selection and Manufacture
3.5.1 Alternative manufacturer’s or materials

a) In the case of most detailed specifications (DSs), specific products and suppliers are specified of
which the details and performance criteria are provided in Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest
revision). Where alternative manufacturers/materials are favoured, prior approval shall be obtained
from the Project Manager.

b) Where alternative corrosion protection systems or improved methods are known to the Contractor,
prior to the granting of any concessions for change, information of these systems or methods shall
be supported by detailed, technical reports and applicable case studies to show that the proposed
alternatives will meet or exceed Eskom’s performance requirements. Prior approval shall be obtained
from the Project Manager before any alternative coating systems or protection methods can be used.

C) In the case of equipment manufacturer proprietary finishes, these proprietary systems shall only be
used if prior approval has been obtained.

ESKOM COPYRIGHT PROTECTED

When downloaded from the WEB, this document is uncontrolled and the responsibility rests with the user
to ensure it is in line with the authorized version on the WEB.





Document Classification: Controlled Disclosure

CORROSION PROTECTION STANDARD FOR NEW Unique Identifier: 240-75655504

INDOOR AND OUTDOOR ESKOM EQUIPMENT, L 5

COMPONENTS, MATERIALS AND STRUCTURES Revision:

MANUFACTURED FROM STEEL STANDARD Page: 10 of 42

3.5.2  Material supply, storage, testing, composition and application methods

3.5.2.1 Material Supply

a) All materials, i.e. paint, solvents and cleaning agents for a specific paint system shall be supplied by
the same manufacturer.

b) All coatings, solvents and cleaning materials shall be supplied in sealed, sturdy containers which
have been labelled with all the information necessary to ensure proper storage, mixing, application
and traceability. The coating containers shall be of a size large enough to allow mixing in the
containers themselves.

3.5.2.2 Material Storage

a) All containers (i.e. coatings, solvents and cleaning materials) shall be kept in a storage area that is
completely dry, enclosed, well ventilated, covered and maintained at a temperature compatible with
good preservation of the materials.

b) Should any of the coating containers show traces of leakage prior to use, the contents of that
container shall not be used.

C) Similar to the coatings, all abrasive media shall be stored in an area that is completely dry and
covered to allow for good preservation of the materials.

3.5.2.3 Material Testing

a) All materials (coatings) shall be regularly tested at the manufacturers' factories. The Contractor shall
make sure that regular quality control tests are carried out to ensure that good quality of the materials
is maintained.

b) The following properties shall be closely monitored:

. Quality of raw materials

. Analytical formulation of finished products
. Percentage solids by volume

o Specific gravity

. Colour and gloss

. Drying time

. Viscosity

c) Records of the batch numbers, expiry dates, dates of manufacturing of each type of system used,
shall be retained by the Contractor. These records shall be presented to the Project Manager or his
appointed third-party inspector, prior to commencement of work. The Contractor shall also ensure
that the coating/material manufacturer retains a sample of each batch for at least the guarantee
period (see Section 3.8).

3.5.2.4 Material composition and application methods

a) All coatings shall be consistent and formulated for the proposed application method. If the Contractor
regards the proposed application method as unsuitable for the materials specified, he shall notify the
Project Manager in writing. His proposed alternative application method shall only be used after
approval has been obtained from the Project Manager.

b) All coats of a coating system shall come from the same manufacturer.

c) During application, solvents shall only be used for thinning of the coating:

o When they are specified by the manufacturer as being compatible with the coating material,
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. When the percentage added does not exceed the limits given by the paint manufacturer’s

d)

e)

3.6
3.6.1

b)

c)

3.6.2

b)

c)

d)

3.6.3

a)

b)

c)
d)

product data sheet.

Under no circumstances shall solvents be used that are not supplied by the relevant coating
manufacturer.

In the case of 2-part materials, the splitting of kits as supplied from the factory will not be permitted.
The Contractor either has to make use of smaller kits or needs to plan the coating work in such a
way that any unnecessary wastage of paint is avoided.

Surface Preparation
General

No leniency shall be tolerated in terms of the quality of surface preparation prior to application of the
coatings. It is extremely important that the Contractor endeavour to achieve the best surface
preparation possible, by means of using the latest technologies when it comes to surface preparation
apparatus and materials. The minimum degree of surface preparation shall be as stipulated in the
Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specifications (DS).

Industrial type surface preparation apparatus shall be used to ensure effective and time-efficient
cleaning of surfaces. The Contractor shall ensure that operative standard moisture and grease traps
are installed on all pressurised airlines of which the effectiveness may have to be demonstrated.

In general the following aspects shall always be considered:

. Before application of the protective system, the substrate shall be prepared, in accordance
with each Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specification (DS)'s requirements and
where applicable, as described in detail below.

. All harmful contaminants such as scale, grease, oil, soil, salt residues, corrosion product and
any foreign matter or residues that may affect the performance of the coating system shall
be removed, prior to application of the protective system.

Degreasing
All detrimental deposits of oil or grease spots and any other contaminants shall be removed prior to
the application of the coating system.

Depending on the degree of contamination, degreasing shall be carried out using a water-soluble
alkaline cleaner, alkaline detergent or cold organic solvents.

Following the degreasing operation, all surfaces shall be thoroughly rinsed with clean potable water
to remove any traces of the cleaning agent residues. The surfaces shall thereafter be allowed to dry
completely prior to coating or before continuing with the rest of the surface preparation process.

It is important that clean potable water is used for cleaning, or the surfaces will be left contaminated
after washing.
Acid Cleaning

Cleaning with acids shall only apply where specified in the Detailed Plant/Item Corrosion Protection
Specifications (DS).

Cleaning with acids shall be followed by neutralisation, passivation and rinsing with clean, potable
water.

All acid solutions shall be applied and removed as directed by the manufacturer.

The Contractor shall ensure that no smut is present after acid cleaning or the adhesion of the
coating/lining will be impaired.
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3.6.4 High pressure water jetting

a) High to ultra-high pressure water jetting may be required prior to, or after abrasive blast cleaning, or
subsequent to power and hand-tool cleaning of surfaces to remove excessive salts, paint, scale and
other loose contaminants.

b) All surfaces shall be tested for salt contamination prior to coating. In general the maximum permissible
limit is 100mg/m2. However, where lower values are preferred or considered critical by the paint
supplier, their maximum value shall apply.

C) In the case where water jetting is specified as the only form of surface preparation, the visual
assessment of surface cleanliness shall be as stipulated in the Detailed Item/Plant Corrosion
Protection Specification (DS) and in accordance with ISO 8501-4.

3.6.5 Power and hand-tool cleaning

a) Cleaning by means of hand or power-tools, i.e. wire brushes, chipping hammers, scrapers, grinders,
sanders, needle descalers etc. may only be used where specified in the Detailed Plant/ltem
Corrosion Protection Specification (DS) and the condition of the substrate metal is such that efficient
cleaning can be achieved and where the protective system is designed for application to brushed or
ground surfaces, e.g. in the case of surface tolerant coatings.

b) Prior to power or hand-tool cleaning, all welds shall be free of slag, slag inclusions and pinholes.
Adjacent areas shall be free of weld spatter, which shall be removed by grinding or scraping.

c) Oil and grease deposits shall be removed prior to cleaning as detailed above. In this regard, special
attention shall be paid to drillings, bolt holes, etc.

d) Following the degreasing as described above, all surfaces of steelwork and plant under this category
shall be prepared to remove all loose millscale, rust, paint and other deleterious matter.

e) Hand-tool cleaning may be utilised provided the required standard of finish is achieved. The finish
shall be to the stipulated standard Grade in the Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specification
(DS) and in accordance with 1ISO 8501-1 or SIS 055900. Where necessary, power-tool cleaning
shall be used. Burnishing of the surface shall not be permitted.

f) In all cases, after wire brushing or grinding, all traces of loose material shall be removed from the
surface by compressed air or vacuum cleaning.

Q) Cleaned surfaces shall not be contaminated with oil, grease, rust or other deposits before
coating/lining.

3.6.6 Abrasive blast cleaning

a) Abrasive blast cleaning is by far the preferred method for surface preparation and shall always be
considered first before any other cleaning method is used.

b) Prior to blast cleaning, all surfaces shall be free of oil and grease. Degreasing shall be carried out as
detailed above. In this regard special attention shall be paid to drillings, bolt holes, etc.

c) Prior to abrasive blast cleaning, all welds shall be free of slag, slag inclusions and pinholes. Adjacent
areas shall be free of weld spatter, which shall be removed by grinding or scraping. Here the onus is
on the Contractor to ensure that the surfaces are ready for coating.

d) Different grades and types of blasting media exist. The Contractor shall select the most suitable
abrasive to be used, in combination with a specific coating system. Here the required blast profile
height shall also be taken into consideration.

e) Abrasive blast cleaning shall be carried out by means of industrial equipment suitably designed for
this purpose.

f) The visual degree of surface cleanliness shall be to the requirements stipulated in the Detailed

Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specification (DS) and in accordance with ISO 8501-1 or SIS
055900.
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s)] In general, Grade Sa 2 % and Sa 3 are specified in the case of most protective coating systems. In

h)

k)

the case of the former grade, the requirement is very thorough blast cleaning where at least 95% of
the mill scale, rust and other matter are removed, whereas in the case of Grade Sa 3, the surfaces
must be blast-cleaned to white metal where all traces of rust, mill scale and other foreign matter are
removed. The Contractor shall refer to the relevant pictorial standards as provided in ISO 8501-1 or
SIS 055900 for verification purposes.

In general an anchor profile height of 25 to 75um is recommended for most industrial coating systems
up to a dry film thickness of about 250 micrometres. However, in the case of heavy-duty thicker film
systems, the anchor profile needs to be increased in order to cope with the mounting stresses exerted
by the coating.

The required blast profile height shall be carefully considered and be within the range of the specified
coating system, and as recommended in the product data sheets.

It is important that the blast profile does not exceed the specified thickness of the primer or first coat,
especially where delays in over coating are expected / encountered. Any primed or coated surfaces
showing signs of “measle” corrosion shall be considered defective and shall be re-blasted.

Blast cleaning of severely corroded surfaces may result in high profiles (i.e. > than 100 micrometres).
In these cases, an additional primer coat or second coat will be required. However, agreement shall
be reached between the Contractor and coating manufacturer as to the most suitable profile range
for a specific coating system. The following shall only be used as a guideline with respect to blast
profile requirements.

Table 1: Typical profile ranges

Coating/Lining Thickness Minimum profile Maximum profile

(Total) (um) (um)

90 to 180 micrometres 30 micrometers 60 micrometers

120 to 225 micrometres 40 micrometers 75 micrometers

150 to 300 micrometres 50 micrometers 100 micrometers

300 to 500 micrometres 75 micrometers 100 micrometers

>500 micrometres 75 micrometers 125 micrometers

m)

0)

p)

Abrasive blast cleaning shall be carried out on dry surfaces by means of dry air, free from impurities
(in particular grease or oils), in an atmosphere where relative humidity is less than 85%, and the
ambient temperature above +5°C. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to demonstrate
that the air is clean and dry.

Blast cleaned surfaces shall be coated as soon as possible after treatment and preferably within 4
hours. Alternatively, provided no deterioration of the blast has taken place, and the surface
cleanliness requirements of ISO 8501-1 or SIS 055900 are maintained, the primer coat may be
applied within the same working shift. Under no circumstances shall uncoated blast-cleaned
surfaces be permitted to stand overnight. Any surfaces showing signs of flash rusting or change of
colour shall be re-blasted.

Caution shall be taken to ensure adequate protection of machined parts or any other part not
requiring blast cleaning and coating/lining. Every effort shall be taken to avoid deformation of the
substrate and damage to welds, as well as to machined surfaces.

Blast cleaning may be carried out using grit or slag (silica sand is not allowed). Irrespective of the
type of abrasive used for blast cleaning, it shall in all cases be free of foreign matter such as clay,
humus, chlorides and bitumen. The use of re-cycled blasting media is not allowed for the final blast.

The Contractor shall satisfy himself that the abrasive materials used conform to all national health
and safety standards.
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q) Good quality abrasives shall be used in order to minimise the amount of waste grit being generated
and contamination of the surfaces.

r Subsequent to blast cleaning, all traces of blasting media and dust shall be removed from the surface
by vacuum cleaning or compressed dry air.

S) Cleaned surfaces shall not be contaminated with oil, grease, rust or other deposits before coating.
Unnecessary traffic prior to painting shall be avoided.

t) Blast cleaning on site shall only be carried out in areas approved by the Project Manager.

3.7 Coating Application General Procedures

a) Except where alternative application methods are mentioned in the Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion
Protection Specification (DS), all coatings shall be applied by means of airless spray technique. This
technique is not only normally quicker than other common application methods, but also usually
produces higher film thicknesses per coat, as well as a smoother and more uniform film of coating.
The correct hose, pump, tip and air cap shall be used.

b) General requirements that shall be followed to ensure that the coating is given optimal opportunity

to perform to acceptable standards are:

1) Painting is a skilled process and shall only be carried out by capable and experienced
personnel, as well as with equipment suitably designed for application of the coating.

2) All surfaces shall be inspected prior to coating, to ensure that the standard of cleaning
complies with the criteria as stipulated in the Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection
Specification (DS) and is in accordance with ISO 8501-1 or SIS 055900. The blast profile
shall also be verified.

3) Immediately before coating, the blast-cleaned steel shall not exhibit more than 0,2% dust
and debris when tested in accordance with SANS 5769.

4) Coating application and cleaning shall not take place when site conditions are likely to
negatively affect these operations. The Contractor shall ensure that the necessary protective
equipment is used to prevent contamination of the coatings and to minimise delays due to
such site conditions.

5) Surrounding areas shall be protected from overspray and paint contamination.

6) Equipment name plates and identification plates shall be protected from coating. No
coatings shall be applied over any surfaces where these will adversely affect the
performance of the item or component.

7 All newly primed steelwork, prior to erection, shall be stored clear of the ground on trestles
or other suitable material. The steelwork shall be placed in such a manner as to ensure
adequate drainage of rainwater and condensation.

8) The different coats shall all be evenly applied to form smooth, continuous, unbroken layers
free from sags, runs and other defects. Each coat shall provide complete coverage and the
film thicknesses for the different coats shall be as specified in the Detailed Plant/ltem
Corrosion Protection Specifications (DS).

9) With respect to the methods of application, overcoating requirements, pot life, mixing,
induction time, straining, thinning, drying times, etc. the manufacturer's recommendations
(as per the product data sheet) shall be strictly adhered to.

10) Mixing of the paint shall be carried out in accordance with the product data sheet. Here
proper industrial type power mixing tools shall be used and the paint shall be supplied in
containers large enough for mixing of the paint.

11) During application, the relative humidity shall not exceed 85% and ambient temperatures
shall be between 10°C and 30°C. However, in the case of special coatings, these conditions
may be waived providing the requirements as stipulated in the product data sheet are met.
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12) Using the above data, the dew point shall be determined by means of a suitable dew point

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

21)
22)

23)

24)

25)

calculator. During coating application, the substrate temperature shall be at least 3°C above
the dew point.

The maximum/minimum substrate temperature at the time of coating application shall be in
accordance with the product data sheet.

Care shall be taken to ensure adequate coating of all bolt and mouse holes, welds, fasteners,
edges and other areas normally prone to corrosion attack. These areas shall always be stripe
coated by brush prior to application of the rest of the coating system. Under no circumstances
shall stripe coating be carried out by roller or spray-application.

Where more than one coat is applied, the colour of each coat shall be clearly different from
the colour of the previous coat. However, two finishing coats of the same colour may be
applied to achieve complete colour uniformity. All finishing colours shall be to the Project
Manager’s approval. In the case where aesthetic requirements are secondary, repairs after
final testing shall be carried out using a different colour. All primers shall be of a contrasting
colour to the newly prepared substrate.

The coating shall be evenly applied to form a smooth, continuous, unbroken layer/s free from
sags, runs and other defects.

Each coat shall provide complete coverage and the film thickness per coat shall be as
specified in the product data sheet, providing any necessary deviations and the impacts
thereof can be supported by technically correct research data.

The coating thicknesses shall comply with the relevant Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion
Protection Specification (DS). All coating thicknesses on metal substrates shall be measured
in accordance with ASTM E376 or ISO 2808. These measurements shall be made on
surfaces free of contaminants. Calibrated electronic instruments and shims shall be used
for determination of film thicknesses.

Thicknesses of both magnetic and non-magnetic substrates shall also be checked by
verification of the quantity of coating consumed and by means of wet film thickness
measurements.

The average thickness of each coat shall be within the range as defined in the Detailed
Plant/ltem Coating Specification (DS). 90% of random readings shall be equal to or greater
than the lower specified thickness. No individual reading shall be less than 80% of the lower
specified thickness. No individual reading shall be greater than 120% of the upper specified
thickness. In the areas where stripe coating is carried out, the maximum total specified dry
film thickness range shall allow for the additional coat.

All deficient film thicknesses shall be rectified prior to release.

Where excessive film thicknesses can be detrimental to the integrity of the coating, the
manufacturer's recommended maximum (as indicated in the Product Data Sheet) shall

apply.

During application of the coatings, the Contractor shall ensure adequate ventilation to avoid
explosions or toxic effects of the solvent vapour.

Damaged paint, due to handling and erection of components, shall be cleaned and repaired.
Rust spots and any other deleterious matter shall be removed. Spot repairs shall be carried
out such that the patch painting extends at least 25 mm beyond the damaged areas. Spot
repairs shall reinstate each of the previous coats and shall commence directly after surface
preparation.

Due to the difficulty in repairing some coatings, if the defect cannot be rectified by patch
repairing or by application of an additional coat of the material, then the component shall be
repainted.
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26) In the case where dust and other light contaminants have settled on newly painted surfaces,

or in the case of pre-coated steel, prior to the application of additional coats of paint or
overcoating on site, the contaminants shall be removed by washing of the surfaces with clean
potable water, followed by drying. Removal of more persistent contaminants shall be dealt
with on a case by case basis.

27) All coatings shall be given adequate time for curing prior to service. On average, for most
organic coating systems, full cure is achieved after 7 days at 25°C providing good ventilation
iS maintained.

28) Prior to commencement of any coating process, the following shall be verified:
i. That the Contractor has the correct paint on site as specified.
il The materials are all from the same supplier and if relevant, of different colours.

iii. The containers are sealed / unopened.

iv. The paint is fresh and within its expiry date.
V. The Contractor has the proper mixing equipment, e.g. electric mixers.
Vi. The Contractor and employees have proper safety equipment on site.

29) The adhesion of the coating may be verified by means of cross cut or pull-off adhesion tests.
The method to be used shall be approved by all parties concerned and the damaged areas
repaired by the Contractor at no additional expense to Eskom.

3.8 Guarantees

3.8.1 Signing of product data sheets and contract order acceptance

It is important to note that all the Detailed Specifications (DSs) have been compiled based on long-term
laboratory and natural exposure testing of numerous materials, as well as written recommendations provided
by the various paint suppliers. Since the Contractor is obliged to submit signed product data sheets to the
Project Manager at the time of the Contract Order Acceptance, in doing so, and by supplying materials to the
Contractor, both the Contractor and his paint supplier bind themselves to a minimum guarantee period of 36
months in terms of the performance of the corrosion protection system.

3.8.2 Performance guarantee

As a minimum, the guarantee regarding the performance of the corrosion protection system is stipulated as
follows:

The coating will be considered defective should rusting of the coated surfaces develop within 36 months where
it is rated more than Ri 1 or 0.05% (in accordance with ISO 4628-3)

and/or

Blistering, flaking, delamination, cracking, alligatoring, or any other defects not specifically listed, are present
that in the opinion of the Project Manager or his coating specialist, reduces the aesthetic appearance or
compromises the integrity of the coating system.

It is important to note that this guarantee period is based on the natural exposure testing of coatings over a
period of more than 20 years, where it has been shown that most defective or unsuitable coatings fail within
the first two to three years of service. Research has also shown that when the rating for the degree of rusting
of coated surfaces exceeds Ri 1 (>0.05%), that the coating is no longer providing adequate protection of the
underlying substrate.
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3.9 Classification and Selection of Corrosion Protection Systems

3.9.1

Classification of corrosivity of atmospheres

The Detailed Specification (DS) to be used for the corrosion protection of the various items of plant shall be as
defined in 3 of this document. Each procedure has been provided with an arbitrary reference number (e.g. DS
-1) which should not be linked to other specifications or previous versions of this document. The procedures
distinguish between different atmospheric environments of which the corrosivity is classified in terms of 1ISO

9223 as follows:

Table 2: Categories of corrosivity of atmospheres

Corrosivity category General description Corrosivity Corrosion rate for mild steel
Ci Indoors and Desert to rural Very low <1.3 pm/yr
Cc2 Rural to light industrial Low <25 pum/yr
C3 Moderate iqdustrial or Medium <50 pm/yr
marine
c4 High industrial or marine High <80 pum/yr
C5 Severe / heavy industrial or Very high <200 pm/yr
marine
References:
. CSIR - Callaghan, BG Atmospheric corrosion testing in Southern Africa — Results of a twenty year

national exposure programme

. TSI Investigation Reports - Eskom Resources and Strategy Research Reports and
SABS ISO 12944 -2: 1998.

. ISO 9223: Corrosion of metal and alloys — Corrosivity of atmospheres — Classification.

3.9.2 Corrosion protection requirements

Table 3: Type of environment versus corrosion protection requirements

Hot dip
Cor_roswlty Environment Cc_:rrosmn rate of Mild steel g_alvanlsed and Stainless steel | 3CR12
Rating mild steel zinc metal
sprayed steel
DS 13 or DS14 bainti fional Painting optional -
VERY LOW Must be painted | Painting optional | —2nind optional |or;a more for
Indoors Less than 5um/yr - - - Mmore OF | aesthetic/colour
pmiyr- | DS-1or DS-20or | - more  for | aesthetic/colour -
(€1 DS-3 or DS5 ; . coding purposes
or aesthetic/colour | coding purposes
coding purposes
DS 13 or DS14 . .
- . Painting optional | painting optional -
_ Painting optional | 7 ,5re for | more for
Low  To | outdoors '\DA;S; be FE)aSmged e oo aestneticlcolour | aesthetic/colour
HIGH (Inland and | 5 to 80um/yr DS:7 or DS-6 or g(e)(sjin; ;fu?go()sljers co Ing' pur.poses codlng- purposes
(C2to C4) industrial) . o If required: If required:
(DS-8%) If required: DS-18 or DS-19 | DS-9 or DS-10
DS-15 or DS-16 (DS12¥)
or DS-17
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Hot dip
Cor_rosmty Environment C(_)rroswn rate of Mild steel g_alvanlsed and Stainless steel | 3CR12
Rating mild steel zinc metal
sprayed steel
outd Must be | ps 13 Or DS 14 | Painting
HIGH  TO | DUdoors galvanised torl Must be duplex | recommended | Painting
VERY HIGH S/CO""S""" H?“ﬂ 80 to 200um/yr ;g‘r‘;ye g Mo | painted to protect from | recommended
ery ig .
(C410CS) | i qustrial) then  duplex | DS-15 or DS-16 | fuststaining DS-11
coated or DS-17 DS-18 or DS-19 | (DS12%)

* DS-8 and DS-12 - Coating specifications only to be used where spray painting techniques cannot be used.

Table 4: Summary of Detailed Specifications

DS Number Indoors / Environmental Conditions Applicability
Outdoors
DS-1 Indoors Very low to Low corrosive Powder coating of mild steel indoor
environments components
DS-2 Indoors Very low to Low corrosive Spray painting of mild steel indoor
environments components — Alkyd system
DS-3 Indoors Very low to Low corrosive Powder coating of mild steel outdoor
environments components - Epoxy system
DS-4 Indoors Very low to Low corrosive Spray painting of mild steel outdoor
environments components — Polyurethane system
DS-5 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Spray painting of mild steel outdoor
components — Polyurethane system
DS-6 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Powder coating of mild steel outdoor
components
DS-7 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Spray painting of mild steel outdoor
components — Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DS-8 Outdoors Warning: The following procedure applies to
This specification shall only be the flow coating of mild steel
used to protect mild steel components
components, which due to their
complicated geometry, cannot be
properly painted by normal spray
techniques. Before this technique
can be used, the supplier shall
submit full details regarding the
specific products to be used, as
well as the reasons why the spray-
application specifications cannot
be used. Permission to use this
specification shall only be given
once Eskom has confirmed that
spray application isn’t feasible.
DS-9 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Spray painting of 3CR12 fabricated
components — Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DsS-10 Outdoors Low to High corrosive environments Powder coating of 3CR12 fabricated
components
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DS Number Indoors / Environmental Conditions Applicability
Outdoors
DS-11 Outdoors High to Very High corrosive Spray painting of 3CR12 fabricated
environments components — Epoxy/Polyurethane
system
DS-12 Outdoors Warning: Flow coating of 3CR12 components
This specification shall only be
used to protect 3CR12 steel
components, which due to their
complicated geometry, cannot be
properly painted by normal spray
techniques. Before this technique
can be used, the supplier shall
submit full details regarding the
specific products to be used, as
well as the reasons why the spray-
application specifications cannot
be used. Permission to use this
specification shall only be given
once Eskom has confirmed that
spray application isn’t feasible.
DS-13 Outdoors Low to Medium corrosive Hot dip galvanising of structural
environments — Uncoated steelwork and other fabricated
Medium to Very High corrosive components
environments — Duplex coated
DS-14 Outdoors Low to Medium corrosive Zinc metal-spraying of mild steel
environments — Uncoated surfaces
Medium to Very High corrosive
environments — Duplex coated
DS-15 Outdoors Medium to Very High Corrosive Duplex coating of new hot dip
Environments galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed
surfaces — Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DS-16 Outdoors Medium to Very High Corrosive Duplex coating of new hot dip
Environments galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed
surfaces - Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DS-17 Outdoors Medium to Very High Corrosive Duplex coating of new hot dip
Environments galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed
surfaces — Water based system
DS-18 Outdoors High to Very High Corrosive Spray painting of 316 or 304L
Environments stainless steel fabricated
components - Epoxy/polyurethane
system
DS-19 Outdoors High to Very High Corrosive Spray painting of 316 or 304L
Environments stainless steel fabricated
components — Water-based system
DS-20 Outdoors Where required Repair of new galvanised or zinc
metal-sprayed surfaces
DS-21 Outdoors Where required Patch repair of newly painted
damaged surfaces
DS-22 Outdoors Small items Hot spun galvanising or sherardizing

of small to medium threaded and
cast iron articles.
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3.9.3 Special Notes

a) It is important to realise that not all site conditions can be simulated under laboratory conditions.
Therefore, the practical applications of the specified corrosion protection systems will depend on the
specific product requirements and actual site conditions. These must be considered by the
Contractor prior to Contract Signature.

b) Various options are provided. This is to provide the opportunity for the Contractor to select a material
that he is most familiar with and to accommodate Contractor specific constraints. The Contractor
needs to familiarise himself with the constraints related to the site application of these materials.

C) Where proprietary coatings are specified, these shall be subject to the Project Manager’s approval.

d) Special care needs to be taken when working with all organic coatings. Prior to the use of any of
these specifications, the Material Safety Data Sheets shall be obtained from the relevant coating
supplier/manufacturer and a copy shall be given to the Project Manager.

e) With respect to the particulars not covered by the Detailed Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection
Specifications (DS) (e.g. equipment requirements, overcoating and curing times, mixing ratios, pot
life, thinning, safety precautions etc.), the manufacturer’s recommendations shall be strictly adhered
to (refer to Product Data Sheets).

f) All coatings shall be given adequate time for curing prior to service according to the Detailed
Plant/ltem Corrosion Protection Specifications (DS) or Product Data Sheets. On average, for most
organic coatings systems, full cure is achieved after 7 days at 25°C.

0)] The performance of all of these systems will depend on the quality of application.

h) During the applications of all coatings, care shall be taken to ensure adequate ventilation, to allow
for good visibility and proper curing of the coatings and to avoid/minimise health and safety risks.

i) Any solid waste materials or liquids stripped or generated during the coating operation shall be
discarded in accordance with the Site Environmental Management Plan.

)] Repairs to galvanising shall be carried out in accordance with SANS 121 or ISO 1461

k) The colour of each coat shall be different to the previous coat and the final coat shall be as specified.

) The specifications mentioned in this document shall apply unless otherwise specified by the Project
Manager whereby his alternative requirements shall take precedence.

m) For Very Low to Medium corrosive environments, unless otherwise detailed in the equipment
specification the colour of the final coat shall be “Avocado”, C12 of SANS 1091.

n) For High to High Corrosive conditions, unless otherwise detailed in the equipment specification the
colour of the final coat shall be “Dark Admiralty Grey”, G12 of SANS 1091.

3.9.4 Detailed plant/item corrosion protection specifications.

3.9.4.1 Specification DS -1

3.9.4.1.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to powder coating of mild steel indoor components.

(Indoors)
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Activity: Detail
Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1) or degrease, rinse, pickle and
phosphate.
Pre-treatment: The method used for cleaning the substrate and the need to prime the substrate prior

to the application of the powder coating shall be at the discretion of the Powder
Coating Applicator whom shall be held responsible for the satisfactory adhesion of the
powder coating to the substrate.

Coating system: Epoxy/polyester Resin Powder coating system applied by electrostatic process in
accordance with the Coating Manufacturer’s proprietary procedure.

Dry film thickness 60 to 70 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.2 Specification DS -2
3.9.4.2.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to spray painting of mild steel indoor components.

(Indoors)
Activity: Detail
Surface Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

preparation:

Coating system:

Primer coat: Apply one coat Semi High Build Alkyd Zinc Phosphate Primer by brush, roller or spray
to a dry film thickness of 60 to 80 micrometres.

Final coat: Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, apply one coat High Quality High
Gloss Enamel by brush roller or spray to a dry film thickness of 30 to 50 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 90 to 130 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

suppliers and/or

products:

3.9.4.3 Specification DS -3
3.9.4.3.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to spray painting of mild steel indoor components.

(Indoors)
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Activity: Detail
Surface Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

preparation:

Coating system:

Primer coat: Apply one coat general purpose epoxy primer by brush, roller or spray to a dry film
thickness of 35 to 50 micrometres.

Final coat: Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, apply one coat epoxy or
polyurethane enamel finish by brush roller or spray to a dry film thickness of 30 to 50
micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 65 to 100 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.4 Specification DS -4
3.9.4.4.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of mild steel indoor components
(Indoors)

Activity: Detail

Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

First coat: Apply one coat, Two Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film
thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.5 Specification DS-5
3.9.4.5.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of mild steel outdoor components

(Low to High corrosive environments)

Activity: Detail

Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

First coat: Apply one coat, Two Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film
thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Stripe coat: After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.
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Activity: Detail

Second coat:

Final coat:

Allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, the manufacturer's recommendations
shall be adhered to in this regard, apply an additional coat of Two Component High
Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply an additional coat of Two
Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120
micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 240 to 360 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.6 Specification DS -6

3.9.4.6.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the powder coating of mild steel outdoor components

(Low to High corrosive environments)

Activity:

Detalil

Surface
preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1) or degrease, rinse, pickle and
phosphate.

Pre-treatment:

The method used for cleaning the substrate and the need to prime the substrate prior
to the application of the powder coating shall be at the discretion of the Powder Coating
Applicator whom shall be held responsible for the satisfactory adhesion of the powder
coating to the substrate.

Coating system:
Primer coat:

Final coat:

Apply one coat zinc-rich epoxy primer to a dry film thickness of 65 to 90 micrometres.

Apply one coat exterior polyester powder coating system by means of electrostatic
spraying in accordance with the Coating Manufacturers proprietary procedure

Dry film thickness 85 to 120 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 150 to 210 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.7 Specification DS -7

3.9.4.7.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of mild steel outdoor components

(Low to High corrosive environments)
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Activity: Detail:

Surface preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Second coat:

Nuts and Bolts:

Final coat:

Apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack Zinc-rich Epoxy Primer to a dry film
thickness of 75 to 100 micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Twin Pack Epoxy MIO to a dry film thickness of 100 to 150 micrometres.

All fixings shall be additionally protected with one coat intermediate coat prior to
application of the final coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer’s
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Twin Pack High Build Recoatable Polyurethane Acrylic Finish to a dry film thickness
of 60 to 80 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 235 to 330 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.8 Specification DS -8

3.9.4.8.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the flow coating of mild steel components

Warning:

This specification shall only be used to protect mild steel components, which due to their complicated
geometry, cannot be properly painted by normal spray techniques. Before this technique can be used, the
supplier shall submit full details regarding the specific products to be used, as well as the reasons why the
spray-application specifications cannot be used. Permission to use this specification shall only be given once
Eskom has confirmed that spray application isn’t feasible.

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1) or Phosphoric acid etch.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

Apply by flow coating technique, one coat Phenolated Alkyd Primer to a dry film
thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Apply by flow coating technique, one coat Quick Dry Alkyd Gloss Enamel to a dry film
thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Upon completion of assembly, apply by airless spray a second coat Quick Dry Alkyd
Gloss Enamel to a dry film thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 120 to 165 micrometres.
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Activity: Detail:
Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these

materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.9 Specification DS-9
3.9.4.9.1Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of 3CR12 fabricated components

(Low to High corrosive environments)

Activity: Detail:

Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

First coat: Apply one coat, Two Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film
thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Stripe coat: After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Second coat: Allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, the manufacturer’'s recommendations
shall be adhered to in this regard, apply an additional coat of Two Component High
Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 160 to 220 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.10 Specification DS - 10
3.9.4.10.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the powder coating of 3CR12 fabricated components

(Low to High corrosive environments)

Activity: Detail

Surface preparation:  Chemical cleaning or pickling.

Pre-treatment: Chemical cleaning or pickling of 3CR12 steel is carried out using formulations based
on Nitric (HNO3z) and Hydrofluoric (HF) acids designed specifically for 3CR12.

Thorough washing with copious amounts of clean cold water is required after pickling
to remove all traces of the acids used.

Passivation of 3CR12 steel is carried out within a short period after post weld cleaning
as possible. A solution made up of 10% to 20% HNOs: balance water (Hz20) is suitable
for passivation of 3CR12 steel.

Thorough washing with clean, cold water after passivation is required.

Coating system:
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Primer coat: Apply one coat liquid or powder epoxy primer to a dry film thickness of 60 to 90

micrometres.

Final coat: Apply one coat exterior polyester powder coating system by means of electrostatic
spraying in accordance with the Coating Manufacturers proprietary procedure.

Dry film thickness 80 to 120 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 140 to 210 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.11 Specification DS - 11
3.9.4.11.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of 3CR12 fabricated components

(High to Very High corrosive environments)

Activity: Detail:

Surface preparation: Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).

Coating system:

Primer coat: Apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack General Purpose Epoxy Primer to a dry
film thickness of 80 to 100 micrometres.

Stripe coat: After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Undercoat: Allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, the manufacturer’'s recommendations
shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray one coat Polyamide Cured
Epoxy MIO to a dry film thickness of 100 to 150 micrometres.

Final coat: Allowing sufficient time for the wundercoat to cure, the manufacturer’s
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Twin Pack High Build Recoatable Polyurethane Acrylic Finish to a dry film thickness
of 60 to 80 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 240 to 330 micrometres.

Safety note: The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
and/or products:

3.9.4.12 Specification DS — 12
3.9.4.12.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the flow coating of 3CR12 components.
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Warning:

This specification shall only be used to protect 3CR12 steel components, which due to their complicated
geometry, cannot be properly painted by normal spray techniques. Before this technique can be used, the
supplier shall submit full details regarding the specific products to be used, as well as the reasons why the
spray-application specifications cannot be used. Permission to use this specification shall only be given once
Eskom has confirmed that spray application isn’t feasible.

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1) or Phosphoric acid etch.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

Apply by flow coating technique, one coat Modified Alkyd Flow-coating Primer to a
dry film thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Apply by flow coating technique, one coat Quick Dry Alkyd Gloss Enamel to a dry film
thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Upon completion of assembly, apply by airless spray a second coat Quick Dry Alkyd
Gloss Enamel to a dry film thickness of 40 to 55 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of the system 120 to 165 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.13 Specification DS - 13

3.9.4.13.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to hot dip galvanising of structural steelwork and other fabricated components.

(Low to High corrosive environments) — Uncoated hot dip galvanised steel as per SANS 121.

(Medium to Very High corrosive environments) — Duplex coating, i.e. Hot dip galvanised mild steel
overcoated with a suitable organic coating system.

Activity:

Detail:

Design:

Special design considerations need to be taken in terms of all items to be protected
by means of hot dip galvanising. Here the design engineer needs to refer to 1SO
14713 and the “Design for hot dip galvanizing” from HDGASA for guidance.

In order to ensure proper hot dip galvanising of the steel surfaces, the Contractor shall
ensure that the steel to be used for galvanising shall comply with the requirements of
SANS 121 (ISO 1461).

Surface preparation:

All weld areas shall be abrasively blast-cleaned to Grade Sa 2,5 (ISO 8501-1).
Following blastcleaning of the welds, all items shall be suitably pickled, rinsed, dried
and fluxed.

Galvanising:

All items shall be hot dip galvanised in accordance with SANS 121 (ISO 1461), to a
minimum coating thickness as laid down in the appropriate tables of SANS 121 (ISO
1461).
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Activity: Detail:

All nuts, bolts, clips and other items, including High Strength Friction Grip and High
Tensile Bolts up to M10 size required for the fixing of galvanised articles shall be hot
dip galvanised to this Standard. Hot dip galvanising of higher strength bolts greater
than M10 size is not allowed (due to the possibility of hydrogen embrittlement) and
these shall be Electro-plated in accordance with BS 3382.

Tolerances: Tolerances on all threaded articles shall be according to SANS 121 (ISO 1461).
Threaded items shall be spun in a Centrifuge during the galvanising process.
Note: In addition to the requirements of SANS 121 (ISO 1461), the following criteria with

respect to white rust and passivation treatments shall apply.

1) White rust:

All material shall be free from white rust and black staining when it is handed over to
Eskom.

To assist in meeting this requirement, close attention shall be paid to the manner in
which the material is stacked and stored at the galvaniser's works and also during its
subsequent handling until such time as it is handed over to Eskom.

Material, which has been inspected at the galvaniser's or manufacturer's works and
passed by Eskom's appointed inspectors will still be liable to rejection if it has been
found that white rust has developed between the date of inspection and the date when
the material is handed over to Eskom.

If the material is affected by white rust the Contractor may clean it (using non-metallic
brushes) before handing over and if the weight of zinc coating still meets the
requirements specified in the appropriate tables of SANS 121 (ISO 1461), the material
will be accepted.

Unless galvanised items are to be subsequently painted, all items shall be passivated.

2) Passivation

The passivation coating shall be applied to the material immediately after galvanising
to afford temporary protection to the galvanised surfaces

This coating shall be even, and shall be sufficiently transparent to enable Eskom's
appointed inspectors to examine the underlying surfaces for any defects.

Duplex coating:

Duplex coating is a special process and requires proper surface preparation to avoid
delamination of the organic coating system. (SAHDGA 01-1990 — “Code of practice
for surface preparation and application of organic coating can be consulted in this
regard).

When a further paint system is to be applied over the hot dip galvanised surfaces, this
shall be done in accordance with Detailed Specification DS — 15, DS 16 or DS -17.

Approved
galvanisers:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.14 Specification DS - 14

3.9.4.14.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to zinc metal-spraying of structural steelwork and other fabricated

components.

(Medium to Very High corrosive environments) — Duplex coating, i.e. Zinc metal-sprayed mild steel
overcoated with a suitable organic coating system.
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Activity: Detail:

Surface preparation:

Abrasive blast-clean to Grade Sa 3.

Metal spraying:

All metal spraying shall be carried out by Plasma Arc or the hot wire spraying process.
Maximum atomisation of wire shall be attained, at all times, to obtain a fine-grained,
dense sprayed film.

Zinc sprayed coatings shall be carried out in accordance with BS EN 22063. The wire
analysis shall be: -Zinc 99,995% minimum.

Metal spray types:

Unless otherwise agreed to by Eskom, the minimum coating thickness shall be 110
to 130 micrometres.

Coating thickness:

The final metal-sprayed surface shall be free of all lumps, atomised wire and other
surface irregularities.

General:

Prior to the application of a paint system, the surface shall be brushed down to remove
all loose oxidation deposits and blown off with clean, dry compressed air.

3.9.4.15 Specification DS - 15

3.9.4.15.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the duplex coating of new hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed

surfaces.

(Medium to Very High Corrosive Environments)

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Hot dip galvanised or zinc-metal sprayed surfaces shall be cleaned prior to painting
to provide a water break-free surface, using a solvent detergent degreaser specifically
formulated by the supplier of the paint system, for cleaning new galvanising surfaces.

Water rinsing after cleaning is essential to remove all traces of the cleaner. This is
best achieved by hosing with a high-pressure water spray. Allow drying.

Or

Micro blasting can be carried out in accordance with SAHDGA 01- 1990 — Code of
practice for surface preparation and application of organic coatings. It is critical that
the micro blasting does not damage or remove the hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-
sprayed coating.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack Epoxy
Primer specifically formulated for zinc surfaces to a dry film thickness of 80 to 100
micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply one coat of Two
Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120
micrometres.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply an additional coat of Two
Component High Build Polyurethane Primer/Finish to a dry film thickness of 80 to 120
micrometres.
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Activity: Detail:

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 240 to 340 micrometres.

Safety note:

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.16 Specification DS — 16

3.9.4.16.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the duplex coating of new hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed

surfaces.

(Medium to Very High Corrosive Environments)

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Hot dip galvanised or zinc-metal sprayed surfaces shall be cleaned prior to painting
to provide a water break-free surface, using a solvent detergent degreaser specifically
formulated by the supplier of the paint system, for cleaning new galvanising surfaces.

Water rinsing after cleaning is essential to remove all traces of the cleaner. This is
best achieved by hosing with a high-pressure water spray. Allow drying.

Or

Micro blasting can be carried out in accordance with SAHDGA 01- 1990 — Code of
practice for surface preparation and application of organic coatings. It is critical that
the micro blasting does not damage or remove the hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-
sprayed coating.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack Epoxy
Primer specifically formulated for zinc surfaces to a dry film thickness of 80 to 100
micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the first and stripe coats to cure, the manufacturer’s
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply one coat Twin Pack Epoxy
MIO to a dry film thickness of 100 to 150 micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, apply by airless spray, one
coat of Twin Pack High Solids Polyurethane Acrylic Finish to a dry film thickness of
50 to 60 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 230 to 310 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)
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3.9.4.17 Specification DS - 17

3.9.4.17.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the duplex coating of new hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed

surfaces.

(Medium to Very High Corrosive Environments)

Activity:

Detail:

Surface preparation:

Hot dip galvanised or zinc-metal sprayed surfaces shall be cleaned prior to painting
to provide a water break-free surface, using a solvent detergent degreaser specifically
formulated by the supplier of the paint system, for cleaning new galvanising surfaces.

Water rinsing after cleaning is essential to remove all traces of the cleaner. This is
best achieved by hosing with a high-pressure water spray. Allow drying.

Or

Micro blasting can be carried out in accordance with SAHDGA 01- 1990 — Code of
practice for surface preparation and application of organic coatings. It is critical that
the micro blasting does not damage or remove the hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-
sprayed coating.

Coating system:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Second coat:

Final coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Water-based Acrylic
Primer specifically formulated for zinc surfaces to a dry film thickness of 25 to 35
micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt
holes and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same
material as the following coat.

Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, the manufacturers
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Water-based Modified Vinyl Acrylic to a dry film thickness of 180 to 220 micrometres.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, a second
coat Water-based Modified Vinyl Acrylic to a dry film thickness of 180 to 220
micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 385 to 475 micrometres.

Safety note:

and/or products:

Approved suppliers

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.18 Specification DS — 18

3.9.4.18.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of 316 or 304L stainless steel fabricated components.

(High to Very High Corrosive Environments)
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Activity: Detail:
Applicability: This specification covers the overcoating of 316 Stainless Steel for outdoors

Surface preparation:

applications and can be used where stainless steel are preferred for their non-
magnetic properties or where these materials are to be painted for colour coding
purposes. This specification also applies to High to Very High corrosive environments.

Remove all loose oxidation deposits by means of brushing down with “Scotch Brite”
Pads. Scrub down all surfaces using a suitable degreaser. Rinse with fresh water and
allow drying.

No more than 4 hours shall elapse between cleaning and the application of the
coating.

Metal spraying:

Primer coat:

Stripe coat:

Final coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Twin Pack General
Purpose Epoxy Primer to a dry film thickness of 50 to 80 micrometres.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt holes
and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same material
as the primer coat.

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure, apply by airless spray, one coat
of Twin Pack Polyurethane Acrylic Finish 60 to 80 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 110 to 160 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer’s recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.19 Specification DS - 19

3.9.4.19.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the spray painting of 316 or 304L stainless steel fabricated components.

(High to Very High Corrosive Environments)

Activity:
Applicability:

Surface preparation:

Detail:

This specification covers the overcoating of 316 Stainless Steel for outdoors
applications and can be used where stainless steel are preferred for their non-
magnetic properties or where these materials are to be painted for colour coding
purposes. This specification also applies to High to Very High corrosive environments.

Remove all loose oxidation deposits by means of brushing down with “Scotch Brite”
Pads. Scrub down all surfaces using a suitable degreaser. Rinse with fresh water and
allow drying.

No more than 4 hours shall elapse between cleaning and the application of the
coating.

Metal spraying:

Primer coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry, apply by airless spray, one coat Water-based Acrylic
Primer specifically formulated for non-ferrous surfaces to a dry film thickness of 25 to
35 micrometres.
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Activity: Detail:

Stripe coat:

After allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, all edges, weld seams, bolt
holes and other crucial areas shall be given an additional stripe coat with the same
material as the following coat.

Second coat:

Final coat:

Allowing sufficient time for the primer coat to cure, the manufacturers
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, one coat
Water-based Modified Vinyl Acrylic to a dry film thickness of 100 to 150 micrometres.

Allowing sufficient time for the second coat to cure, the manufacturer's
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard, apply by airless spray, an
additional coat of the Water-based Modified Vinyl Acrylic to a dry film thickness of 100
to 150 micrometres.

Total dry film thickness of organic coating system 225 to 335 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

Approved suppliers
and/or products:

See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.20 Specification DS - 20

3.9.4.20.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the repair of new hot dip galvanised or zinc metal-sprayed surfaces

(Only applicable where hot dip galvanising or zinc metal-spraying is specified)

Activity: Detail:

Applicability: The following specification covers the repair of new galvanised or zinc-metal sprayed
surfaces prior to erection.

Inspection: A detailed visual inspection shall be carried out to identify all areas where the

galvanising coating is damaged.

Surface preparation:

The affected and close surrounding areas shall be degreased using a solvent
detergent degreaser specially formulated for galvanising. Water rinses after cleaning
is essential to remove all traces of the cleaner.

The damaged area shall then be lightly abraded with sandpaper to remove all
corrosion products and any other deleterious matter.

Following abrading of the surface, the affected area shall be cleaned down to a
smooth surface and feathered back to a hard edge, using abrasive paper. This
cleaning shall be extended to a minimum distance of 25 mm beyond the periphery of
the affected area. It is vitally important that the sound, existing galvanising/zinc
coating be abraded in order to provide a good "key" for the repair coating.

After sanding, the affected area shall be washed with clean potable water to remove
all dust, abrasive products etc. and finally allowed to dry.

Spot repair:
Option 1:

First coat:

As soon as the surfaces are dry (no more than 4 hours shall elapse between cleaning
and the application of the repair system to avoid recontamination of the surface) apply
by brush, one coat Single Pack Zinc-Rich (> 90%) Primer to a dry film thickness of 40
to 60 micrometres.
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Activity: Detail:

Second coat:

Spot repair:
Option 2:

First coat:

After allowing sufficient time for the first coat to cure (the Manufacturer’s
recommendations shall be adhered to in this regard) apply a second coat Single Pack
Zinc-Rich (>90%) Primer to a dry film thickness 40 to 60 micrometres.

As soon as the surfaces are dry (no more than 4 hours shall elapse between cleaning
and the application of the repair system to avoid recontamination of the surface) apply
by brush, one coat Twin Pack Solvent free Zinc-Rich (>80%) Epoxy to a dry film
thickness of 90 to 110 micrometres.

Safety note:

The manufacturer's recommendations regarding the safe handling and use of these
materials shall be adhered to.

and/or products:

Approved  suppliers See Technical Bulletin No. 10TB-011 (Latest revision)

3.9.4.21 Specification DS - 21

3.9.4.21.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the patch repair of newly painted damaged surfaces.

(Applicable in terms of all organic coating specifications)

Activity:

Detail

Inspection:

A detailed visual inspection shall be carried out to identify all areas where localised
rusting or mechanical damage to the existing coating is evident.

Surface preparation:

The damaged area shall be thoroughly mechanically and/or hand wire brushed to
remove all paint, corrosion product and any other deleterious matter.

Following wire brushing, the affected area shall be cleaned down to a smooth
surface and feathered back to a hard edge, using abrasive paper. This cleaning
shall be extended to a minimum distance of 25 mm beyond the periphery of the
affected area. It is vitally important that the sound, existing coating be abraded in
order to provide a good "key" for the repair coating.

After sanding, the affected area shall be washed with clean potable water to remove
all dust, abrasive products etc. and finally allowed to dry.

Coating system:

Itis imperative that all surface dirt and contaminants are completely removed before
over-coating or the adhesion between the existing and new coats will be impaired.
No more than 4 h shall elapse between cleaning and the application of the primer
coat to avoid recontamination of the surface.

The repair coating shall then be applied by brush or roller in accordance with the
relevant specification.

Patch repair those areas where the metal substrate are exposed with the full coating
system as per original specification.

Where only the intermediate or final coats have been damaged, these should be re-
instated as per original specification.
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3.9.4.22 Specification DS — 22

3.9.4.22.1 Applicability and conditions of use

The following procedure applies to the hot spun galvanising or sherardizing of small to medium threaded and

cast iron articles.

(All environments where hot dip galvanised or sherardized fasteners/articles are specified)

Item:

Detail

Standards:

Hot spun galvanised fasteners shall be purchased from an SABS approved bolt
manufacturer to SANS 121 (ISO 1461) and sherardized zinc coated items from
DiSTek or LEVICOR Technologies SA to SANS 53811 (EN 13811). If this is not
stipulated there is likelihood that zinc or cadmium electroplated fasteners will be
supplied.

Supply:

Sheradized zinc coatings can be considered for the protection of small to medium
size steel articles that may otherwise be protected by means of the hot spun
galvanising process, providing the coatings are applied to a minimum coating
thickness of 45 microns (Class 45 in terms of SANS 53811) and the mechanical
properties of the items are not jeopardized in the process.

However, the implementation of extensive quality control measures by the user/s
and supplier/s of these products cannot be overemphasized. If incorrectly applied,
the performance of the Sheradized zinc coatings will be inferior to that of Hot dip
galvanising and will result in early corrosion of the mild steel substrate.

Similar to Hot dip galvanising, over-application of Sheradized zinc coatings can
result in problems being experienced with the screwing on of nuts and bolts. Hence,
all threaded articles, whether coated by means of the sherardizing process or hot
spun galvanising shall be supplied in a nutted-up condition. This ensures that bolts
and nuts have been matched, supplied by the same manufacturer and that no
losses are experienced.

When repacking is necessary at premises other than those of the sherardizing /
galvanising works, threaded articles shall be repacked in the assembled state, with
the repacker ensuring a proper fit between bolt and nut.

Wear and tear during transport shall be avoided to limit mechanical damage of the
coatings. Hence, the articles shall be packed in closed containers that can withstand
transport conditions.

Any defective articles following transport or subsequent processing shall be
replaced.

As part of the quality control procedures, all items shall be free of white and red rust
when Taken over. To assist in meeting this requirement, close attention shall be
paid to the manner in which the material is stacked and stored at the sherardizing /
galvanising works and during its subsequent handling.

Any material that has been inspected at the sherardizing / galvanising works and
passed by the user shall still be liable to rejection if it has been found that excessive
white rust has developed between the date of inspection and Take over.

Unless sherardized / galvanised items are to be subsequently Duplex Coated /
Painted, all items shall be passivated, to afford additional protection to the zinc
coated surfaces. This coating shall be even, and shall be sufficiently transparent to
enable the user to examine the underlying surfaces for any defects.
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Item: Detail

It is considered that the risk of under-protected areas and for mechanical damage
of Sheradized zinc coated items increases with an increase in the size of the
articles. Hence, these methods shall only be used or specified for the corrosion
protection of small to medium size Eskom components.

Overcoating and
Repair:

As far as the overcoating and repairing of Sheradized zinc coated items are
concerned, no major problems are envisaged and the same processes can be
followed in terms of surface preparation and duplex coating than what normally
would be specified in the case of Hot dip galvanising. However, whereas
micro/sweep blasting of Hot dip galvanised surfaces will enhance the adhesive
strength of organic coatings, it shall not be done in the case of the Sheradized zinc
coated items, since any removal of the coating may result in early corrosion.

The use of small galvanised items in combination with larger Sheradized zinc
coated articles should be avoided, since galvanic cells may develop which will result
in an increase in the depletion of the Hot dip galvanised zinc coating. However, the
use of small Sheradized zinc coated items in combination with larger Hot dip
galvanised articles can be considered since no significant galvanic effects are
anticipated.

Marking: Where the SABS Mark applies, this Mark shall appear on every container or on a
label securely attached to the container.
4, Authorization
This document has been seen and accepted by:
Name and surname Designation
Sibongile Maphosa Engineer
Abre Le Roux Chief Engineer
Bheki Ntshangase Senior Manager HV Plant
5. Revisions
Date Rev Compiler Remarks
Sept 2020 2 Sibongile Maphosa Revised document and change applicability from
Eskom to Distribution and Transmission. Eskom
encompassed Generation and more content was
required to suit Generation purposes as well.
Dec 2014 1 Sibongile Maphosa Document reformatted.

Changed Distribution to Eskom in the title and
standard content to suit both Eskom and
Transmission.

This document supersedes document number:
DSP_34-1658
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Date Rev Compiler Remarks
July 2011 1 DT Janse van Incorporated TESCOD comments
Rensburg Added definition for high strength bolts

Added details of pre-treatment for 3SCR12
Document title changed to include structural
steelwork
Names added as part of the development team
Changes made to specifications to explain and
simplify different corrosion categories
Application guide and example added to facilitate
use of specification]and provide additional
information regarding what is classified as Inland
and Coastal.
Technical Bulletin 10TB-011 Rev.0 added as
important reference document to facilitate the
performance testing and approval of suitable
protective systems

June 2009 B DT Janse van Document unique identifier changed from

Rensburg SCSCAAP9 to 34-1658

Changes to national and international standards
reference in the text.
Replacement of obsolete products and/or supplier
information.
Improvement of certain Detailed Plant/ltem
Corrosion Protection Specifications.
Changes to quality requirements.
Incorporation of performance guarantees
Powder coating of 3CR12 surfaces.
Alternatives to zinc metal spraying.

June 2002 A The corrosion protection of indoor mild steel
components
Changes to national and international standards
reference in the text
To address environmental, safety and health issues
surrounding the use of protective coating systems
Corrosion protection quality requirements —
incorporate ESKCAABS revision 2 requirements
Overcoating of 316 and 304 stainless steel
fabricated components
Repair procedure for new galvanised or zinc metal-
sprayed surfaces
Repair procedure for organic coatings
A guide to assist Eskom staff with the selection of
suitable corrosion protection system.
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Annex A — Application Guide for New Equipment Classified as Inland and
Coastal
(Normative)

The purpose of this guide is to assist the compilers of equipment specifications with the selection of corrosion
protection requirements. It will also promote a standardised approach in the specification of corrosion
protection requirements in Eskom’s equipment specifications.

The corrosion protection specification distinguishes between five corrosivity ratings in accordance with 3. Due
to practical and logistical reasons, Eskom has standardised on only two corrosion classifications for outdoor
applications, namely INLAND and COASTAL. These two classifications correspond to a corrosivity rating of
“Low to Medium” (C2 to C3) and “High to Very high” (C4 to C5) respectively, as indicated in Al.

Table Al: Eskom’s application classification versus corrosivity rating

Dx Application Classification Corrosivity Rating Corrosivity category
INLAND Low to Medium C2to C3
COASTAL High to Very high C41t0C5

NOTE: That the classification of INLAND and COASTAL refers to the corrosivity rating of the environment and not necessarily the
location of the equipment. Equipment classified as COASTAL will for example be required in Gauteng at a location with a heavy
industrial pollution environment.

A2 provides a summary of which detailed corrosion specifications (i.e. DS numbers) are required for the various
substrate types, in relation to Eskom’s INLAND and COASTAL classifications. It therefore provides a quick
lookup reference for the user, eliminating the need to study the entire corrosion protection specification.

The required/acceptable detailed corrosion specifications must be selected from Table B2 and then referenced
in the equipment specification. If only certain of the DS options are acceptable, it should be referenced as
such. For example, if it is specified that metering kiosks are to be manufactured from 3CR12 only, then only
DS-9 and DS-10 should be referenced for INLAND applications. If subcomponents of a product (e.g.
transformers tank and radiator) have different corrosion protection requirements, it should be referenced as
such.

The supplier will be required to indicate in technical schedule B, which of the corrosion protection systems is
offered.

The accepted coating suppliers and products are provided in technical bulletin 10TB-011. The most current
version of this bulletin must be included in enquiry documentation to ensure that equipment suppliers are
aware of it.

An example of how the corrosion protection requirements should be specified is provided at the end of this
guide.

Table A2: Summary of Detailed specifications

Protective
I?:)iag[;.ipfli?zfttii(;)nn Environment | Substrate Type A;g:poliactg':%n Special Notes DS Number
Method
Indoors Mild Steel Powder Coat - Ds-1
Indoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - Ds-2
) Indoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - DS-3
Indoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - DS-4
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Protective
L Ap_pl_lcatllon Environment | Substrate Type Cogtlng Special Notes DS Number
Classification Application
Method
QOutdoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - DS-5
Outdoors Mild Steel Powder Coat - DS-6
Outdoors Mild Steel Spray Paint - DS-7
This specification only applies to
Flow Coat those components, which due to
Outdoors Mild Steel (to be used with | their ~ complicated geometry, | DS-8
caution) cannot be properly painted by
normal spray techniques.
Outdoors 3CR12 Spray Paint - DS-9
= Outdoors 3CR12 Powder Coat - DS-10
I Outdoors 3CR12 Spray Paint DS-11
c
- This specification only applies to
Flow Coat those components, which due to
Outdoors 3CR12 (to be used with | their  complicated geometry, | DS-12
caution) cannot be properly painted by
normal spray techniques.
Outdoors Mild Steel HDG Excludes a duplex coating. DS-13
Outdoors Mild Steel ZMS Excludes a duplex coating. Ds-14
Mild Steel + . Duplex coating system of new | DS-13 + DS-15 or
Outdoors HDG Spray Paint HDG surfaces. DS-16 or DS-17
Mild Steel + . Duplex coating system of new | DS-14 + DS-15 or
Outdoors ZMS Spray Paint ZMS surfaces. DS-16 or DS-17
Outdoors 3CR12 Spray Paint - DS-11
This specification only applies to
Flow Coat those components, which due to
. their ~ complicated geometry, )
Outdoors 3CR12 (to be used with | cannot be properly painted by DS-12
caution) normal spray techniques, e.g.
radiators.
Mild Steel + . Duplex coating system of new | DS-13 + DS-15 or
- Outdoors HDG Spray Paint HDG surfaces. DS-16 or DS-17
7 Mild Steel + . Duplex coating system of new | DS-14 + DS-15 or
§ Outdoors ZMS Spray Paint ZMS surfaces. DS-16 or DS-17
S/IS (316 or .
Outdoors 304L) Spray Paint - DS-18 or DS-19
Excludes a duplex coating.
This specification only applies to
) structural steelwork, equipment
Outdoors Mild Steel HDG mounting brackets and fabricated | DS-13
components such as line
hardware, nuts, bolts and
washers.
NOTE:
1) Abbreviations: HDG - Hot dip galvanising, ZMS - Zinc metal-spraying
2) The use of a higher corrosion specification is acceptable. E.g. coating systems that are specified for Coastal applications are

also acceptable for Inland and Indoor applications
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Typical example

The following are typical clauses that should be included in each equipment specification to specify the
corrosion protection requirements.

1) Corrosion protection

The corrosion protection shall be conducted in accordance with Eskom specification 240-75655504. The
acceptable detailed corrosion protection specifications will be indicated in schedule A of the technical
schedules of an enquiry document. The manufacturer/supplier shall state in Schedule B the specific detailed
specification number offered.
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Annex B — Technical schedules A and B
For pole mounted transformers
Schedule A: Purchaser's specific requirements
Schedule B: Particulars of equipment to be supplied
1 2 3 4
Sub o
Description Schedule A Schedule B
clause
Corrosion protection detailed specification number
(according to DSP 34-1658) offered for:
DS-6;
DS-7;
DS-9;
- Transformer tank for INLAND applications DS-10;
DS-13 + DS-15
or
DS-14 + DS-15
DS-11;
1.1 .
DS-13 + DS-16;
DS-14 + DS-16;
- Transformer tank for COASTAL applications DS-13 + DS-16;
DS-14 + DS-16;
or
DS-18
DS-8
- Radiators for INLAND applications or
DS-12
- Radiators for COASTAL applications DS-12
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